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The Hospital Authority (HA) is a statutory body corporate in the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region. Its functions are stipulated in Section 4 of the
Hospital Authority Ordinance (Chapter 113).
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The Hospital Authority is responsible for:
2l B BREEE

* Managing and controlling public hospitals
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* Advising the Government of the needs of the public for hospital services and of the
resources required to meet those needs
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* Managing and developing the public hospital system
EREINELIEYNVA- I ES

* Recommending to the Secretary for Food and Health appropriate policies on fees for
the use of hospital services by the public
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» Establishing public hospitals
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* Promoting, assisting and taking part in the education and training of persons involved in
hospital or related services
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VISION, MISSION AND VALUES
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The corporate vision, mission and values (VMV) of Hospital Authority reflect aspirations
of the Board, the management and staff in fostering a healthy community. Guided by the
mission of “Helping People Stay Healthy”, the Authority collaborates with community
partners to strive for continued success and works towards the vision of “Healthy People,
Happy Staff and Trusted by the Community”.
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MISSION f&an

* Helping People Stay Healthy
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VISION [F&R
e Healthy People e Trusted by the Community
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* Happy Staff
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* People-centred Care e Committed Staff
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* Professional Service * Teamwork
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CORPORATE STRATEGIES
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The Hospital Authority (HA] aims to achieve its corporate VMV by adopting five strategic
goals as outlined in the HA Annual Plan 2020-2021:
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Under the above strategic goals and 19 strategies, the Authority formulated around 201
programme targets for 2020-2021, which were all achieved in the year, save for 40 which
experienced slight delay. Most of them were deferred due to the COVID-19 pandemic. The
Head Office and Cluster Reports in Chapter 6 describe major achievements in these areas.
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MEMBERSHIP OF THE HOSPITAL AUTHORITY
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Mr Henry FAN Mr Thomas CHAN Dr Constance CHAN
Hung-ling, SBS, JP Chung-ching, JP Hon-yee, JP
SEISHR B L BRIE XL REEELE
e Appointed as Chairman of the Permanent Secretary for Food Director of Health
Authority on 1 December 2019 and Health (Health] HreEr
* Managing director of a property RYRFEBFINER (FL) « Appointed on 13 June 2012
|\nvestment company . ¢ Appointed on 5 June 2020 * Board Member in capacity as
° EQZ_OQ:QE 12 A1 BRRER * Board Member in capacity as Director of Health of HKSAR
BReBRER Permanent Secretary for Food Government
o MERERRNEFALE and Health (Health) of HKSAR o 201246 B 13 BEEE
Government _ -
X ' o UEBRITRREFELEE
* R2020%6 A5 ARE(E BB B IRREERRA

o UEBRAITRRBIFRY N
BFERRENER (FE) 57
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Prof CHAN Wai-yee

FRIZEHIR
Ms Margaret CHENG
« Appointed on 1 April 2019 Wai-ching, JP Mr Duncan CHIU
e Pro-Vice-Chancellor of the BMEEZt ERER L
Chinese University of Hong Kong
o R2019F 4 A1 HEZE * Appointed on 1 April 2020 « Appointed on 1 December 2019
o BEFXKREBRRE  Human resources director of

e Co-founder and managing

MTR Corporation Limited director of a venture capital fund
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Prof Francis CHAN
Ka-leung, SBS, JP
PR ZHIR

e Appointed on 1 April 2013

e Dean of the Faculty of Medicine
of the Chinese University of
Hong Kong

o R20135F4 A1 AEEE
* BRTXABREREER

Mr David FONG

Man-hung, BBS, JP
FXigERE

e Appointed on 1 April 2017

e Managing director of a
development company
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Mr Ambrose HO, SBS, JP
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e Appointed on 1 December 2018
e Senior Counsel
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Ms Mary HUEN Wai-yi
BWEELZLT

e Appointed on 1 April 2020

e Executive director and chief
executive officer of a listed bank
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Dr Tony KO Pat-sing
BHEEE

Chief Executive, HA
Bl R B TIARS,
¢ Appointed on 1 August 2019

¢ Board Member in capacity as
Chief Executive of the Hospital
Authority

Mrs Ann KUNG YEUNG
Yun-chi, JP
BERZELL

e Appointed on 1 December 2016

¢ Deputy chief executive of a listed
bank

o R20164E12 A1 BEEE
o FWRTTRIGE

Mr Daniel LAM Chun,
SBS, JP
MBEE

e Appointed on 1 December 2016

¢ Building surveyor and practising
arbitrator
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o R2019F 8 A1 HEEE
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Mr Quinton LAM Chun-ki

Mr Franklin LAM
Fan-keung, BBS

MEREE

MEH XL

e Appointed on 1 April 2018

¢ Advanced Practice Nurse of o
the Department of Surgery o

of Pamela Youde Nethersole
Eastern Hospital

o M2018F4 1 REERLE .
* RELEBRABITEER .

SNEHERE R &N

Appointed on 1 April 2017
Founder of an independent
non-profit public policy
research organisation
2017 F4 A1 BREE
TN IR BRI AR
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MEMBERSHIP OF THE HOSPITAL AUTHORITY
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Prof LAU Chak-sing, JP
ZEEHR

e Appointed on 1 December 2018

* Chief of Service (Medicine] of
Queen Mary Hospital and Head
of Department of Medicine of

Li Ka Shing Faculty of Medicine

of the University of Hong Kong
o A2018F 12 A1 HEZE
o WBBLAMMBHITELES
REFERESLEARER
REE

Mr Raistlin LAU Chun, JP
BIEXRE

Deputy Secretary for Financial
Services and the Treasury

HEFEBREFBRNER
¢ Appointed on 12 July 2019

* Representing Secretary for
Financial Services and the

Treasury of HKSAR Government

o R2019F7 A 12 BEZE

o RREBEINITHERA
FREBREBRRER

Ir Dr Hon LO Wai-kwok,
GBS, MH, JP
EEEEL

{up to 30.11.2020)
(E#Z 20204 11 H308)

e Appointed on 1 December 2014
e Engineer and Member of the

Legislative Council (Engineering

Functional Constituency)
° M2014F 12 1 BEZ T
o IRMREGHE (IRA)

Prof David SHUM
Ho-keung
LIERHE

¢ Appointed on 1 November 2018

¢ Dean of the Faculty of Health and
Social Sciences of the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University
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Ms Lisa LAU Man-man,
BBS, MH, JP
gL+t

e Appointed on 1 December 2016
¢ Design consultant

o KR2016F 12 A1 HEEE
BayEl

Prof Gabriel Matthew
LEUNG, GBS, JP
REFHR

e Appointed on 1 August 2013

e Dean of Li Ka Shing Faculty of
Medicine of the University of
Hong Kong
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Mr Ivan SZE Wing-hang,
BBS, JP
HERE L

* Appointed on 1 December 2015

e Director of a real estate
development company

o R2015F 12 B 1 HERT
BERZENRES

Prof Agnes TIWARI
Fung-yee
EREHE

 Appointed on 1 December 2018

e Chairman of the Nursing Council
of Hong Kong
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Mr Philip TSAI
Wing-chung, BBS, JP
BXKBEE

e Appointed on 1 April 2019
e Certified public accountant
o R20195F 4 A1 AEZFE
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Dr Thomas TSANG Ho-fai
BEEELE

¢ Appointed on 1 December 2020

¢ President of the Hong Kong
College of Community Medicine
and Honorary advisor of Hospital
Authority
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Ms Elizabeth TSE
Man-yee, GBS, JP
HEMLE

Permanent Secretary for Food and
Health (Health]

[up to 4.6.2020)
RYRELEBHEENER (FE)
(FBIZ2020F6 A4 A)

e Appointed on 24 July 2017

e Board Member in capacity as
Permanent Secretary for Food
and Health (Health) of HKSAR
Government
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BERRENER (BE) 57
HTEREERBKE

Ms Priscilla WONG
Pui-sze, SBS, JP
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e Appointed on 1 December 2015
e Practising barrister

o R2015F 12 A1 BEEE
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Ir Billy WONG Wing-hoo,
BBS, JP
BEKREE

e Appointed on 1 December 2019

¢ Registered professional engineer
and director of a real estate
development company

o R20195F 12 A1 BEEE
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Mr Jason YEUNG Chi-wai
B TR

* Appointed on 1 December 2015

¢ Group chief compliance and risk
management officer of a group
of listed companies
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Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong
BEXERE

¢ Appointed on 1 August 2015
¢ Retired social worker

* RN20156F8 A1 AKZE
o RARHMT
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CHAPTER 1 o §—&
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
A=Y

The Hospital Authority (HA) is a statutory body established under the
Hospital Authority Ordinance (Cap. 113) (the HA Ordinance) in December
1990, responsible for managing all public hospitals in Hong Kong. HA is
accountable to the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (HKSAR)
Government through the Secretary for Food and Health.
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The Board acknowledges its responsibility for and commitment
to corporate governance principles and recognises that the
Authority’s stakeholders expect the highest standards of
performance, accountability and conduct.

Under the HA Ordinance, the Chief Executive of the HKSAR
appoints members to the HA Board. Membership of the
Authority comprises 24 non-public officers, three public officers
and one principal officer (the Hospital Authority Chief Executive).
The Board membership is not remunerated. The 2020-21 Board
consisted of 28 members, including the Chairman, with details
listed in Appendix 1.

The HA Board meets formally about 12 times a year and any
other times as required. In 2020-21, the Board conducted
15 meetings and considered over 120 agenda items. They
covered an array of important matters in leading and managing
HA, including management of the COVID-19 epidemic;
formulation of policies and strategies; steering and monitoring
of the planning, development and operation of hospital
services and supporting facilities; resource management; risk
management; internal control; contingency preparedness;
governance, etc. In addition, 14 Board papers on urgent matters
or regular reports were circulated between meetings.
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The Board in the past year continued to enhance corporate
governance practices to reinforce stewardship and effective
management of HA and its services. The Code of Corporate
Governance Practices of the HA Board (the Code) was updated
to guide Members of the HA Board and its committees in
performing their roles and responsibilities. The Task Group
on Sustainability formed under the HA Board in December
2019 had examined the major challenges facing HA and
recommended strategic directions and action plan to drive
for the sustainable development of our public healthcare
system. The Board also steered and monitored organisation-
wide risk management in HA across different functional areas
and management structures, covering both clinical and non-
clinical risk management in the Authority. In particular, the
outbreak of COVID-19 epidemic set unprecedented challenges
to public health globally and locally. To timely address this
emergency situation, the Emergency Executive Committee
under the Board conducted nine meetings in 2020-21 to assess
the risks facing HA and acted for the Board on strategies and
policies for managing the emergency issues arising from the
COVID-19 epidemic.
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For optimal performance of its roles and exercise of powers,
the HA Board has established 11 functional committees:
Audit and Risk Committee, Executive Committee, Emergency
Executive Committee, Finance Committee, Human
Resources Committee, Information Technology Services
Governing Committee, Main Tender Board, Medical Services
Development Committee, Public Complaints Committee, Staff
Appeals Committee and Supporting Services Development
Committee. Membership of the committees and their terms
of reference and focus of work in 2020-21 are outlined in
Appendix 3.

To enhance community participation and governance of public
hospitals, Hospital Governing Committees (HGCs) were
established in the hospitals and institutions in accordance with
the HA Ordinance. These committees are listed in Appendix 4.
In 2020-21, a total of 131 meetings were conducted by the
33 HGCs, with some businesses transacted via circulation due
to infection control considerations as a result of the COVID-19
outbreak. HGCs received regular management reports from
Hospital Chief Executives, monitored operational and financial
performance of the hospitals, reviewed risk management
issues, provided policy guidance on hospital management,
and participated in HR and procurement functions, as well as
hospital and community partnership activities.

HGCs operate in accordance with corporate governance
policies and practices as reflected in the Manual on the
Operation of Hospital Governing Committees approved
by the HA Board. The linkage and interactions between
the Board and HGCs are of particular significance to the
development of HA's corporate policies and strategies. To
provide a consistent and holistic coverage of the related
governance matters in a single publication for easy
reference by Members, the Manual on the Operation of
Hospital Governing Committees was incorporated into the
updated edition of the Code. During the year, continuous
efforts were made to actively engage HGCs in corporate-
wide issues, such as regular briefings by Cluster Chief
Executives at HGC meetings; and enhanced governance
in two-way communication of views raised by HGCs and
monitoring of actions taken and reporting to the HA Board.
In line with the practice adopted by the HA Board and its
functional committees, HGCs also conducted annual self-
assessment to drive for continuous improvement.
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To provide HA with advice on the healthcare needs for specific
regions of Hong Kong and assist the Authority with better
performance of its functions in relation to the regions, HA
has established three Regional Advisory Committees (RACs).
These committees and their respective membership are listed
in Appendix 5.

Due to the COVID-19 epidemic, the RACs each conducted
two meetings in 2020-21, and transacted other businesses
by circulation of papers. During the period, the RACs
received reports on a number of corporate matters,
including management of advanced technology, winter surge
preparation under the epidemic, 2018 Patient Experience
Survey on Specialist Outpatient Service, as well as Annual
Report on Public Appreciation, Feedback and Complaints
Management 2019-20. Each RAC was also briefed on annual
plan progress and targets of respective clusters, as well as
services and programmes of individual clusters, including the
development of the HA Patient Support Call Centre, 24-hour
Primary Percutaneous Coronary Intervention service and fetal
medicine services.

12 Hospital Authority Annual Report Bz &1 FEFE R 2020-2021

REBUtERHBERGTE
F BB ITRIAE -

V8RR IBEH
5% A Y = EE
AERE - HEsHAE=HERS RN
E4E -

EE2019BRRERRE - SEEARNEE
GHE2020-21 FELBHAMASE - HithE
HABRAGSRE S AT - TR - B
HEESRHBEERZFEEENRE &
FBAEREER BB TAERESIEK
EETE 2018 FERFIZMAKLRASL -
NRARTES BERMIRFEREFHR2019-
20)c REE GBI T BEREBANTF
ETIERTEIEEMBAZE - AR BRI AR
BHIEE - BIEEBE REMRREMNER -
24 /NEETE AR BY AR I AR B AR S K R T B8 22
ARTS o



The executive management team of HA is outlined in
Appendix 2(b). The executives are charged by the HA Board
with the responsibility to manage and administer day-to-day
business and operations of the Authority. To ensure that the
management can discharge duties in an effective and efficient
manner, the HA Board has set out clear delegated authority,
policies and codes of conduct. The Board approved the 2020-
21 annual plan prepared by the executives in accordance
with the Board’s direction. Regular executive reports on the
progress of agreed performance indicators and targets were
presented to the Board.

Under the HA Ordinance, the Authority determines the
remuneration and terms and conditions of employment for all
HA employees. Remuneration packages of executive directors
and other senior managers are devised to attract, motivate
and retain high calibre individuals in a competitive talent
market. Remuneration packages of all senior executives are
considered and approved by the HA Board or its Executive
Committee.
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CHAPTER 2 o« §_ &

CHAIRMAN'’S REVIEW
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2020-21 was a year fraught with challenges. The ongoing COVID-19
pandemic brought about unprecedented burden to the global healthcare
system, and Hong Kong is no exception. While facing the challenging year,
the Hospital Authority (HA) further consolidated on past experience,
reinforced our “people-first” value, and moved ahead in providing
excellent public healthcare services and sustainable development for
safeguarding the health of the people of Hong Kong.
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To tackle the COVID-19 outbreak, the HA Board convened
Emergency Executive Committee meetings in a timely
manner to steer anti-epidemic strategies and policies, as
well as to monitor the progress. In this arduous battle, the
HA community stood hand-in-hand and weathered each
and every wave of the outbreak with profound devotion and
professionalism. | can proudly say that their commitment
in safeqguarding people’s health is truly remarkable. My
gratitude is beyond words.

The COVID-19 outbreak has undoubtedly aggravated the heavy
burden on the local public healthcare system. Thanks to the
unwavering support from the Central People’s Government
and the HKSAR Government, HA established within very short
timeframe the Community Treatment Facility at AsiaWorld-
Expo and the North Lantau Hospital Hong Kong Infection
Control Centre, which have greatly enhanced the capability
of the public healthcare system in managing the epidemic.
| have to also express my sincere gratitude to the HKSAR
Government for being the most reliable support of HA always.
Notwithstanding the pressure of economic downturn, the
HKSAR Government has allocated to HA a total of $75 billion
of recurrent financial provision in 2020-21 under the triennial
progressive recurrent funding arrangement, as well as over
$8 billion in total provided to HA in support of various anti-
epidemic efforts.

Video of Chairman’s Report
T RERF
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http://videocwp.ha.org.hk/wmv/CMAR2021.mp4

While fighting against the COVID-19, the HA has to plan ahead
the development of healthcare with bold vision. A sharp rising
trend of service demand is foreseen due to the growing and
ageing population, plus the increasing prevalence of chronic
diseases among the younger generation in Hong Kong. In
December 2020, the HA Board endorsed the report of its Task
Group on Sustainability, which has put forward a series of
recommendations that are being implemented in stages, with
a view to achieving a sustainable future in public healthcare
services. Along the strategic directions in the report, HA is
adopting a three-pronged approach through “narrowing
upstream, collaborating downstream, and diverting midstream”
to drive for balance in service demand and supply. To narrow
upstream demand and reduce the need for specialist services
and hospitalisation, we leverage on big data and predictive
risk modelling to empower patients to manage their health
condition proactively. “Collaborating downstream” involves
reorientation of HA's service delivery models by promoting
ambulatory care and primary care to reduce unnecessary
hospital admission. “Diverting midstream” will promote
community-based care through developing smart hospitals and
deployment of information technology, as well as strengthen
medico-social collaboration. We envisage the above initiatives
would not only relieve the pressure in public healthcare system,
but also enhance patients’ experience during their treatment
journey in HA.

The HA has been pressing ahead with the two 10-year Hospital
Development Plans (HDP). Upon completion of the first 10-
year HDP, a total of over 6 000 additional beds and more
clinical spaces and hospital facilities would be available in
public hospitals. Apart from hardware, retaining our human
capital is another critical factor in the provision of sustainable
healthcare services. In this respect, HA continues to enhance
talent management policies and launch various initiatives to
uplift employee morale and reduce staff attrition.
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My heartfelt appreciation goes to all members of the
HA Board, Regional Advisory Committees and Hospital
Governing Committees, and co-opted members of Functional
Committees for their valuable guidance and support to HA
over the years, in particular during the trying times in 2020-
21. We welcome Mr Thomas Chan Chung-ching, Ms Margaret
Cheng Wai-ching, Ms Mary Huen Wai-yi, and Dr Thomas
Tsang Ho-fai for joining the Board last year. Their professional
expertise and experience shall allow HA to maintain a steady
course. We also thank the outgoing members Mr Quinton
Lam Chun-ki, Ir Dr Hon Lo Wai-kwok and Ms Elizabeth Tse
Man-yee, who rendered significant contribution to HA with
their wise counsel. In addition, | am indebted to all members
of the Legislative Council and District Councils, patient
organisations and volunteers for their long-term dedication
and support. HA has received enthusiastic support and
generous donations from the community in the past year,
which give us great encouragement and recognition.

This year marked the 30" Anniversary of HA. Building on the
solid foundation laid by our predecessors, HA has achieved
notable developments and breakthroughs in the past three
decades. Looking ahead, HA colleagues will remain united,
perseverant and passionate in making great strides in
healthcare services for the people of Hong Kong.

m

Henry Fan Hung-ling
Chairman
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CHAPTER 3 o =8
CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REPORT
{TIEX 48 =X BE ¥R

While the world fought fearlessly against the COVID-19 pandemic in
2020-21, the Hospital Authority (HA) has kept our guard up and
maintained its agility against the disease. This year was also the

30" Anniversary of the establishment of the HA. In celebrating this
meaningful milestone, we also seized the opportunity to boost our
hardware and software capacity with a view to better equipping ourselves
for future challenges.
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Throughout the past year, Emergency Response Level
remained activated in public hospitals. The HA Central
Command Committee has closely monitored the situation
and promptly adjusted HA's anti-COVID-19 strategies to
dovetail with prevailing circumstances and emerging risks.
With the waves of outbreak in the city, HA strived to augment
its capacity of isolation facilities to cater for sudden surge of
cases by transforming general wards into second tier isolation
wards, and by setting up the Community Isolation Facility in
Lei Yue Mun Park and Holiday Village and the Community
Treatment Facility at AsiaWorld-Expo. In February 2021,
North Lantau Hospital Hong Kong Infection Control Centre
commenced service to receive and treat COVID-19 patients
with mild to moderate clinical conditions, substantially
enhancing our capacities.

As the COVID-19 pandemic swept across the world and
overwhelmed the global healthcare systems, we drew on the
experience and continuously tightened our infection control
measures in hospitals and ensured adequate supply of
personal protective equipment for our staff. In tandem with
the strategy on “early identification, early isolation and early
treatment”, we continuously enhanced laboratory surveillance
for symptomatic outpatients of Accident and Emergency
Departments, at general outpatient clinics (GOPCs]), as well
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http://videocwp.ha.org.hk/wmv/CEAR2021.mp4

as for inpatients. Meanwhile, regular tests were arranged
since early 2021 for targeted staff groups providing care for
vulnerable patients, with a view to protecting patients and
healthcare staff from nosocomial transmission. Regular tests
were later extended to more staff groups.

During peaks of outbreaks, our public hospitals adjusted
their non-emergency services and non-essential services so
as to reserve resources for treatment of COVID-19 patients.
Notwithstanding, we strived to cater for the medical needs
of patients through tele-rehab and tele-care services piloted
in some public hospitals for suitable patients. There was
also the "HKSAR Government Special Support Scheme for
Hospital Authority Chronic Disease Patients Living in the
Guangdong Province to Sustain Their Medical Consultation
under Coronavirus Disease-2019" to cater for HA chronic
disease patients residing in Guangdong Province, who were
unable to return to HA for follow-up consultations. To address
the needs of long-stay inpatients, we facilitated video visiting
and progressively enabled special visiting arrangement
in some hospitals when the local epidemic situation had
eased. Moreover, HA is supporting the Universal Community
Testing Programme in line with the Government’s epidemic
control policy. Since the launch of Government’s COVID-19
Vaccination Programme, our healthcare professional
teams have not only participated in the operation of
seven Community Vaccination Centres, but also provided
vaccination service at designated GOPCs as well as outreach
vaccination service to Residential Care Homes for the Elderly.
Our professional and dedicated staff have gone beyond the
call of duty to safeguard the community. My whole-hearted
thanks to their teamwork and relentless efforts.
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While focusing on the combat against the COVID-19, HA did
not lose sight of the importance of exploring more sustainable
service models to cope with the vigorous growth in service
demand from the ageing population and the rising occurrence
of chronic illnesses. Under the guidance of the HA Board,
major challenges facing HA were critically examined. A basket
of strategies under the visionary plan of sustainability were
subsequently devised, driving forward for expansion of primary
care services, change of service delivery model, enhancement
of public-private partnership, as well as the pursuit of digital
health with the Smart Hospital strategies.

During the year, the HA further developed the Integrated
Model of Specialist Outpatient Service through Nurse Clinics
to deliver the right care for patients at the right time through
collaboration of multidisciplinary healthcare team. The service
was further extended to specialties like Medicine (Hepatitis),
Ophthalmology (Cataract Surgery), Ear, Nose and Throat
(Hearing Loss), etc. in 2020-21.
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We continued our endeavor to expand the physical capacity
for clinical services. A series of hospital development projects
under the two 10-Year Hospital Development Plans are in full
swing. Projects commenced in 2020-21 included main works
(superstructure and refurbishment works) for the expansion
of United Christian Hospital; demolition, site formation and
foundation works for phase 1 redevelopment of Grantham
Hospital; Hospital Authority Supporting Services Centre; and
Community Health Centre cum social welfare facilities at Pak
Wo Road, North District.

In addition, the scope of various Public-Private-Partnership
(PPP) programmes was extended through measures such
as extending subsidy validity period, increasing service
quotas and expanding the coverage of patients etc. New
PPP programmes were also developed to provide options
for patients, which included Neonatal Phototherapy Service,
Radiation Therapy Service, Cystoscopy Collaborative
Programme and Oseophago-Gastro-Duodenoscopy
Collaboration Programme, to name a few.

HA is working towards the strategic direction of developing
smart hospitals, aiming to develop new models of healthcare
delivery, empower patients for own care and enhance work
efficiency with IT innovations. To take this forward, we have
designated three hospitals, namely Tin Shui Wai Hospital,
Tseung Kwan O Hospital and Queen Elizabeth Hospital,
as pilots to develop and deploy Smart Hospital initiatives.
Meanwhile, the HA one-stop mobile app “"HA Go” has been
upgraded with numerous features, including payment,
checking medication and allergy record, booking GOPCs, and
many more, allowing users - patients and their carers - to
manage their healthcare anytime, anywhere.
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Healthcare manpower shortage is a long-standing concern
for HA. Much effort has been spent on staff retention and
promotion of staff wellbeing. During 2020-21, we recruited
over 580 doctors, 2 500 nurses and 700 allied health
professionals. Meanwhile, recruitment of non-locally trained
doctors as well as part-time healthcare professionals via
Locum Office continued to strengthen the workforce.

As for senior appointments in HA hospitals, in 2020-21 (in
chronology), Dr Kenny Yuen was appointed as Hospital Chief
Executive (HCE] of Tseung Kwan O Hospital and Haven of
Hope Hospital; and Dr Alexander Law Chun-bon as Cluster
Chief Executive of Kowloon West Cluster and HCE of Princess
Margaret Hospital and North Lantau Hospital. At the Head
Office, Dr Cheung Ngai-tseung took up the post as Head of
Information Technology and Health Informatics, while Mr
David Mak was appointed as Head of Human Resources.

The road of fighting the epidemic has been tough, yet all
members of HA bravely rose to the challenges. | wish to offer
my deepest respect to all my fellow healthcare workers for
their noble contribution and dedication. | would also like
to sincerely thank the HKSAR Government for its all-time
unfaltering support in policy and funding, as well as various
community stakeholders for their enthusiastic support to back
up us in the battle against the virus. Looking ahead, HA will
stay united with our utmost steadfastness and strive to achieve
a sustainable public healthcare system and protect Hong Kong
people’s health with professionalism, care and love as stated
in the theme of the HA's 30" Anniversary.

M/

Tony Ko Pat-sing
Chief Executive
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HOSPITAL AUTHORITY AT A GLANCE IN 2020-21
5507 &2/ 2020-21 FSIBES

BEPT R PR BB (B=2021438318)

29,850

43 Number of Hospitals and
Institutions under the

Hospital Authority

(as at 31 Mar 2021) 49

BRERRE TER/

B2 A

(BZ202143A318)

Total Inpatient and

1,637,561

Day Inpatient discharges and deaths'
b & B EER A A LR AR RIET AZ

Number of hospital beds' (as at 31 Mar 2021)

73

Number of Specialist
Outpatient Clinics
(as at 31 Mar 2021)

ERFMZ 2 EA

(B Z=202143A318)

Total Accident and Emergency
attendances’

SIEERDBAKX

1,640,453
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Number of General

Outpatient Clinics
(as at 31 Mar 2021)

BRMMZ2EE

(BE2021%3F31H)

Total Specialist Outpatient
(Clinical) attendances'

BRI (BR) SRR B AR

71,473,666

General Outpatient attendances'
BRI HZ AKX

5,568,280



Total Manpower of Hospital Authority?
No. of Full-time Equivalent Staff (as at 31 Mar 2021)

BIiERRAFRET?
ZRZBABEE o214383188F)

88,690

Medical Nursing Allied Health
353 HRER

6906 29.736 8,886

Others (including Supporting (Care-related),
Management / Administration and Others)

Hip (BIEEESER - B/ 1THRREAMD)

43,162

|
[ %

Ny ===
.\

Total Allied Health (Outpatient)
attendances'

HERER(F2) 2 AR

2,512,370

Family Medicine Specialist
Clinic attendances'

REBEEMFIZID AR

313,065

1. For detailed statistics of the services of Hospital Authority (HA], please refer to Appendix 9 of this report.
2. Manpower on full-time equivalent basis includes all full-time and part-time staff in HA's workforce i.e. permanent, contract and temporary.
Individual figures may not add up to the total due to rounding.
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CHAPTER 4 « F[UE

MILESTONES OF THE YEAR
AS[O)RA

In 2020-21, Hong Kong has experienced several waves of COVID-19 outbreak.
To combat the disease, Central Command Committee of the Hospital Authority
(HA) formulated a series of strategies and countermeasures, which dovetailed
with the HKSAR Government’s anti-epidemic strategies, to achieve “early
identification, early isolation and early treatment”. With reference to past
experience in handling infectious diseases and overseas practices, we adjusted
our strategies as circumstances arouse.
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Adopting a multi-pronged approach to
enhance HA's capability

One of the key strategies adopted by HA to tackle COVID-19
was to strengthen our capacity in isolation and testing, with a
view to identifying and isolating the confirmed cases as early
as possible to prevent further transmission. In view of the
volatile development of the epidemic, we planned our facility
capacity and triage strategy in the early stage to tackle large-
scale community infection. In addition to ensuring sufficient
first and second tier isolation beds in public hospitals, the
Community Isolation Facility at Lei Yue Mun Park and Holiday
Village, the Community Treatment Facility at AsiaWorld-
Expo (AWE), and North Lantau Hospital Hong Kong Infection
Control Centre (HKICC) were launched accordingly. With these
facilities, patients with different conditions could be triaged
to appropriate facilities based on a flexible approach having
regard to two factors: scalability and optimisation of care, all
contributing to enhancing our capacity of receiving patients as
aresult.

Meanwhile, triage and test stations were set up in AWE and
Accident and Emergency (A&E) Departments in various
hospitals to test suspected cases as soon as possible. The
scope of coverage of admission screening was also expanded
multiple times, from particular high-risk groups to all
newly admitted inpatients to prevent nosocomial infection.
Separately, regular COVID-19 testing for HA staff, from
staff providing care for vulnerable patients to other staff
groups later, was arranged. In case of cluster of outbreak
recorded, universal staff testing at the concerned hospitals
was arranged immediately. Besides, to enhance testing
capacity, new rapid test kit was adopted to obtain faster
diagnostic results for COVID-19. State-of-the-art laboratory
equipment was installed in HKICC, allowing confirmed cases
to be identified and isolated in a prompt manner, and also
enhancing arrangement of patient triage and management.
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Adjusting services and staying full alert
against COVID-19 infections

With the Emergency Response Level activated, public hospitals’
non-emergency services and non-essential services were
reduced significantly, and all visiting arrangements were
suspended. This was to allow healthcare staff to focus on the
epidemic, strengthen the implementation of infection control
measures in public hospitals, and also reduce the flow of people
in hospitals and hence the risk of cross infections. At the same
time, universal masking and social distancing were observed
in all HA hospitals and clinics, and ventilation systems at A&E
Departments’” and public clinics’ waiting areas were improved to
prevent transmission of the virus.

To address the needs of long-stay patients, we provided video-
visiting and special visiting arrangement in selected non-acute
hospitals, having regard to the development of the epidemic.
We also made compassionate visiting arrangement as far as
practicable in some urgent situation. The scope of various
Public-Private-Partnership programmes was also extended to
allow eligible patients of public hospitals to receive treatment
in the private sector on a voluntary basis, providing them with
more service options.
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Staff safety is our top priority

HA attaches great importance to ensuring that staff were
adequately protected. Due to the global tight supply of personal
protective equipment (PPE), multi-pronged approach was
adopted to increase and stablise the supply of PPE. In addition
to procuring PPE worldwide, we also proactively reached
out to local suppliers to explore the opportunity of domestic
production of PPE. This included collaboration with the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University to produce eye visor frames and
face shields in mass quantity in Hong Kong using 3D printing
technology. Also, locally-manufactured Nanofiber respirators,
which conform to international standards, have been adopted
as an alternative to N95 respirator.

Besides, a series of temporary human resources measures
and allowances were introduced to recognise frontline staff’s
contribution in combating the epidemic and boost staff morale.
Meanwhile, staff communication was strengthened. Initiatives
included COVID-19 Bulletins, designated COVID-19 webpage
for staff, 24-hour hotlines, psychological support and more,
all aiming to provide staff with timely updates and all-round
support. Caring packs were also delivered to infected staff and
staff under quarantine to show care and support.

Since the outbreak of COVID-19, HA has received generous
support and donations from various sectors of the society. The
donations were allocated to HA staff in accordance with the
donors” wishes. We are deeply thankful for the generous and
unfailing support from the community.
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Fighting COVID-19 together
with the community

As the major healthcare provider in Hong Kong, HA is supportive
of the HKSAR Government’'s anti-epidemic measures,
including the Universal Community Testing Programme and
COVID-19 Vaccination Programme. Since July 2020, HA's
general outpatient clinics (GOPCs] have been distributing
specimen collection packs and collecting specimens, and
vending machines were installed at selected GOPCs to assist
individuals in need to obtain specimen collection packs.
With regard to COVID-19 vaccination, HA has been providing
vaccination services to the general public at selected GOPCs
and running seven Community Vaccination Centres since
February and March 2021 respectively, in addition to setting up
staff vaccination depots inside hospitals to facilitate our staff in
receiving vaccination.

Moreover, to keep the public abreast of the latest information
on the situation of COVID-19, multiple channels, such as press
briefings and press releases on updates of COVID-19 cases,
HA Blog “Blog 147B" and Facebook page, designated website
for patients “Walk with Us - Combat COVID-19", were utilised
to increase transparency and build trust.

202152 H258
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Acknowledgement

Thanks to the concerted effort and professionalism of HA
staff, together with staunch support from the Central People’s
Government and HKSAR Government, community partners,
members of the public and more, the above measures have
been implemented successfully. While exerting enormous
pressure on the local healthcare system, COVID-19 also allowed
us to accumulate precious experiences to prepare for any
challenges in the future.
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The Community Isolation Facility at

Anti-epidemic Effort fi1& T
nti-epidemic ort U L{F Lei Yue Mun Park and Holiday Village

e Service Development A 75538 started admitting patients meeting

Special visiting arrangement was specific clinical criteria and other The Community Tregtment Facility [CTF]_at AWE
implemented in some non-acute conditions. commenced operatlon ar\d began admitting
hospitals for the first time under R AFI AR RE RN A (R MEEE COVID-19 confirmed patients aged 18 to 60 and
Emergency Response Level triggered én/\—)ﬁy}gﬁ , T%H&ZEE);’IEX‘\R&ﬁ?WEﬁ with clinically suitable condition. The CTF helped

g by COVID-19 outbreak. The ;ﬂ_y\\ﬁfﬂ ‘ /NI sRIAR triage patien.ts and allowed publ.ic hospitals to
arrangement was subsequently SEHEA i focus on caring more severe patients.
suspended or resumed according to 7R R AR A [RIBRERMBRUA - EW18E60m &
the epidemic situation. A designated telephone hotline was set up at the HA ERIKIE & EHY 20197@%%%%?@%’?%)\ C ADR
NI EEBRH 2019 MR RS [ B & Patient Support Call Centre, through which nurses BA - BAM R R EERREREREORA -
EEER | 18 - EREDD ISR To dovetail with the anti-epidemic would make telephone calls to COVID-19 patients
B RS 2 bt o HIA 5 B e measures of the Government, 22 general awaiting hospital admission to offer pre-admission
KRR - T e B o_utpgtier_‘nt clinics_ (GOPCs) of _HA started support and professional nursing advice.

COVID-19 test services for inbound travellers with respiratory AR o distributing specimen collection packs [ | BT EEEE L HBRERE R AL

. : _ and collecting deep throat saliva N . o . . N N
symptoms provided at test centres at AsiaWorld-Expo (AWE] b B2EE - AMFIREARAISEREXNEIRER - HA launched a designated website entitled

and North Lantau Hospital (NLTH) were consolidated for I specimens for testing. The service was J _ )

centralised provision at AWE. Meanwhile, triage and test Angt later extended to more GOPCs with Wal.k with .US - Combat COV'P'1_9 o

stations were set up in Accident and Emergency Departments T longer service hours to bring greater prOV|de.pat|ents and carers with .|nforme.1t|on
e convenience to citizens. on service arrangements of public hospitals

in various public hospitals to offer tests to suspected patients.
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Castle Peak Hospital established Queen Mary Hospital (QMH) piloted the provision of

“Mind Space”, the first Mental round-the-clock Intra-arterial Mechanical Thrombectomy

Health Experience Museum in service. Cases meeting the criteria would be referred to QMH. New Territories East Cluster Breast

rlong Kong, to promote a better BB SLTHL 6 24/ NS BIREVRATRTS » RF e SRR ER A Care Centre located at North District
understanding of mental illness B T o Hospital started service in phases to
through interactive exhibits. ) e deliver one-stop multidisciplinary

patient care covering diagnosis,
treatment and post-operation
follow-up.
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Kowloon East Cluster (KEC) has implemented

tele-care pilot programme during the epidemic
as an initiative of Smart Hospital development.
Patients at home were provided with tele-care

The “Book GOPC” function in the
\ HA's one-stop mobile application

examination and consultation, in order to S “HA Go” has been rolled out to all
reduce the risk of infection of healthcare PN ¥~ GOPC
4 Wer—E) S.
workers and patients. *Hiﬂﬁﬁcgjfm" Boglx - [ .
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10/2020
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LAS @

The admission screening was
enhanced to offer COVID-19 \\\
testing to all newly admitted ~

patients.
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QMH and Li Ka Shing Faculty of

first case of Chimeric Antigen
Kong, for the treatment of a
acute lymphoblastic leukemia

after haematopoietic stem cell
transplantation.
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Medicine of the University of Hong
Kong successfully completed the

Receptor - T cell therapy in Hong

patient who has relapsed B-cell
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A total of nine members of the HA Board, Regional Advisory
Committees, Hospital Governing Committees as well as

43 colleagues of HA were awarded in the Honours List or
appointed as JPs by the HKSAR Government.
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11/2020

Hong Kong Children’s Hospital (HKCH)
commenced paediatric cardiology and
cardiothoracic service in phases since October
2020, starting with outpatient and ambulatory
services, as well as simple surgeries and
intervention. Service translocation was fully
completed on 8 December when five inpatients
from QMH were transferred to HKCH smoothly.
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To enhance convenience and accessibility for the public, HA piloted the use of vending
machines in distributing specimen collection packs in three GOPCs. Another 14 vending

machines were later installed in selected GOPCs.
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Located at Pamela Youde Nethersole
Eastern Hospital, the first child and
adolescent psychiatric ward in the
Gazette on Hong Kong Island opened.
Considerate ward design was adopted
to help patients resume daily and
school life upon discharge.
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With the last ward commenced operation, the

first phase development of NLTH was

completed. The construction of the Hospital
Authority Supporting Services Centre under the

first stage of the second phase hospital
development is underway.

BEE &1& — @R E IERR AR - db AR L EER:
F-HERCIENTHK - WEERRS —HERE
FEEREZEREERBEREHOMNTRE

12/2020

hospitalauthority & a -

120 433 0
MFH BEAR EHT

By

BSMRE 2B Hospital Authority
HRETF RERE
Helping People Stay Healthy

BHiH B

i3
=+ERE5Y
£#finstagram ¥ ZfE2EIA.
BERARERTS -
HEBER= 1A%
BEFSATHAG
BxE

SN mEasaen . b
WLEEHAE

A
¥

In celebrating HA's 30"
Anniversary, a new social
media platform - HA Instagram
was launched to foster closer

ties with the public.
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In order to protect patients and
frontline staff, HA piloted regular
tests for targeted staff providing care
for vulnerable patients.
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HA commenced the Special Chinese Medicine Programme
for COVID-19 inpatients to provide free Chinese medicine
general consultation to COVID-19 patients at the CTF at
AWE through the tripartite Chinese Medicine Clinic cum
Training and Research Centres, offering another treatment
option to patients.
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New Territories West Cluster Positron Emission
Tomography-Computed Tomography Centre located
at Tuen Mun Hospital opened to cater for the
service demand in the district.
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02/2021

Accommodated with over 800 isolation beds, the Hong Kong Infection Control
Centre of NLTH commenced service and began receiving COVID-19 confirmed
patients aged between 16 and 65 in mild or moderate clinical conditions.
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To support the Government’s COVID-19 Vaccination Programme,

18 GOPCs of HA began to provide vaccination of CoronaVac of Sinovac
to the public starting from 26 February, while seven Community
Vaccination Centres operated by HA commenced service to provide
Comirnaty vaccine by Fosun Pharma / BioNTech since 10 March.
Later on, outreach vaccination service was also provided to suitable
patients at Residential Care Homes for the Elderly.
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™ W em— Y A o » An oncology ward was opened at
6] k 3B Oncology Ward Grand Opening Ceremony J [ 5] United Christian Hospital which

N\ 4 laid a cornerstone for the
progressive development of
KEC's flagship oncology services.
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CHAPTERS5 o EH&E

ENGAGEMENT AND TEAMWORK
/12 BEREFS)

To build strong team spirit and improve overall performance, the
Hospital Authority (HA) has always attached great importance to good
communication with its staff. As such, HA has provided multiple channels
and platforms for staff to express their opinions. In promoting constant
and direct communication between the management and frontline

staff, the Head Office of HA convened regular meetings with staff
representatives of the six Staff Group Consultative Committees (SGCC)
and a Central Consultative Committee, keeping staff engaged in the
review of the prevailing policies and formulation of new initiatives.
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In addition to attending the said committees” meetings,
the HA Chief Executive met with staff at hospital visits, and
engaged staff through different channels such as emails,
blogs and letters to all staff. The online staff letter box also
enables colleagues to raise their concerns and suggestions.
Moreover, staff newsletter HASLink and various HA social
media platforms served as effective and timely channels to
keep staff abreast of the latest corporate news. At the local
level, Cluster Chief Executives and Hospital Chief Executives
maintained communication with staff through regular meetings,
newsletters and staff hotline.

A Focused Staff Survey targeted at Registered Nurses and
Enrolled Nurses was conducted in 2019 and more follow-
up actions were taken in the past year to enhance staff
communication channels. These actions included strengthening
the training for nursing supervisors to optimise the function
of shift handover. The insights gained from staff surveys were
also useful to the formulation of the communication strategy
during COVID-19 epidemic to address colleagues’ expectation.
Continued efforts were therefore made to publish COVID-19
Bulletin and set up designated COVID-19 webpages, enabling
staff to receive the latest information about the COVID-19 and
HA's measures from a trustworthy source. Moreover, staff
support hotline was set up to answer colleagues’ queries
instantly to allay their worries.

In 2020-21, the myHR App has been further upgraded
with options of different layout appearances, new modules
such as “myOSH” [my Occupational Safety and Health) and
“myFeedback”, as well as a new Artificial Intelligence tool “"HA
Chatbot”. While “myFeedback” could help collect staff views on
particular subjects to facilitate the formulation of strategy, “HA
Chatbot” facilitated staff in obtaining useful information at work
and played an important role during the epidemic by enabling
staff to report COVID-19 test results, book vaccination and
input vaccination records. Access to HA email, HA Chat and web
conference were also incorporated in myHR App to facilitate
staff communication at fingertips. As of 31 March 2021, myHR
App recorded around 86 000 downloads since its launch.
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Furthermore, the safety and wellbeing of our staff always remain
a top priority of HA. The new Occupational Safety Hygienist grade
was thus formed with effect from 1 April 2020, and the grade
specific, structured and competence-based training curriculum
was implemented to nurture professionals to manage the
complicated occupational hazards in HA. To enhance colleagues’
awareness of occupational safety and foster safety culture,
behavioral-based safety observation programme on sharps
injury prevention was implemented. Training programmes
on ventilation and chemical exposure monitoring were also
organised for designated staff groups.

As a people-oriented organisation, HA also organised a vast
array of recreational, sports and family activities to promote
a balanced and healthy lifestyle among staff, with a view to
improving their health and boosting staff morale.

Last but not least, to commend outstanding staff members and
teams, HA organises the Outstanding Staff and Teams and Young
Achievers Award annually. In 2021, a total of 72 nominations
were received for the Award programme, from which 13 Young
Achievers were selected, nine staff and eight teams won the
Outstanding Staff and Teams Awards respectively. Another five
staff and four teams received Merit Staff and Teams Awards, and
another six staff received Young Achievers (Merit Award).
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¢ COVID-19 Patient Management and Support Team
Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital
(Hong Kong East Cluster)

¢ PWH Endoscopy Team
Prince of Wales Hospital (New Territories East Cluster)

e HKWC COVID-19 Combat Team
Hong Kong West Cluster

 Implementation of Drug Refill Services (DRS) in HA

Hospital Authority Head Office / Hong Kong East Cluster /

Kowloon East Cluster / New Territories East Cluster /
New Territories West Cluster

¢ Innovative KEC Smart Hospital Team
Kowloon East Cluster

e KCC COVID-19 Laboratory Testing Team
Queen Elizabeth Hospital / Kwong Wah Hospital /
Hong Kong Children's Hospital (Kowloon Central Cluster)

¢ Minimal Access Surgery Training Centre
Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital
(Hong Kong East Cluster)

¢ NTEC Lung Cancer Multidisciplinary Team
Prince of Wales Hospital / Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole
Hospital / North District Hospital (New Territories East
Cluster)

¢ Adult ECMO-Assisted CPR Team
Queen Mary Hospital (Hong Kong West Cluster)

¢ COVID-19 Admission Allocation System (CAAS) Team
Hospital Authority Head Office

¢ HKCH Imaging Team - Making imaging fun and safe
Hong Kong Children’s Hospital (Kowloon Central Cluster]

« Patient Clinical Handover System (PCHOS) Working Group

Princess Margaret Hospital (Kowloon West Cluster)

List of other awardees

HinS8ERE

s

Video of HA Outstanding Staff and Teams and
Young Achievers Award 2021 - Highlights of
Awardees’ Achievements
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https://www.ha.org.hk/haho/ho/hrd_sa_e/Other_Awardee_List.pdf
http://videocwp.ha.org.hk/wmv/Highlight(20210429)10mins.mp4

CHAPTER 6 ¢ &

HEAD OFFICE AND
CLUSTER REPORTS
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The Hospital Authority (HA) provides public healthcare services to
the people of Hong Kong through its Head Office and seven hospital
clusters. Head Office and Cluster Reports present an overview of the
performance of HA Head Office and the Clusters under five corporate
strategic goals, as well as achievements in contributing to a friendly
environment.
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HA Head Office (HAHO) aligns corporate values and directions. It plays a strategic
role in leading corporate development and supporting hospital clusters through
interactive collaboration of seven divisions, namely Cluster Services, Corporate
Services, Finance, Human Resources, Information Technology and Health Informatics,
Quality & Safety, and Strategy & Planning. In 2020-21, HAHO initiated around
106 programme targets under the five strategic goals outlined in the HA Annual Plan.
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Strategic goal:
Improve service quality

In face of the enormous service demand, HA endeavored
to adjust service delivery models for more efficient use of
resources. We stepped up the development of day services to
reduce the reliance on inpatient care. While oncology day beds
were added in Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital
(PYNEH) and Prince of Wales Hospital (PWH), additional day
beds were also offered in Tseung Kwan O Hospital (TKOH) and
Tin Shui Wai Hospital. A Fast Track Clinic in the Day Medical
Centre of TKOH was set up to provide rapid assessment and
treatment to patients. We also increased the capacity of day
rehabilitation and geriatric day hospital in New Territories
West Cluster (NTWC).

HA continued to promote coordination and collaboration among
different healthcare services to achieve better patient care.
The collaborative care model between Paediatrics and Child
and Adolescent Psychiatry Departments was introduced in
Kowloon East Cluster (KEC) and New Territories East Cluster
(NTEC) to deliver better care and treatment for patients with
mild Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder. Furthermore,
a collaborative model between Geriatrics and Accident and
Emergency (A&E) Departments was implemented in five
clusters, aiming to provide early focused geriatric assessment
and discharge planning services to elderly patients attending
A&E.

To streamline service provision, cluster-based service was
enhanced and cluster-based infectious disease networks were
established at KEC and NTWC. Also, a cluster-based patient
relations office structure was established in Hong Kong East
Cluster (HKEC), Hong Kong West Cluster (HKWC) and NTEC,
with a view to enhancing the HA's complaints management
system. Moreover, cross-cluster collaboration was facilitated,
allowing more cross-cluster Robotic Assisted Surgeries were
conducted in the year.
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On rehabilitation, services in public hospitals were extended
to weekends and public holidays, enabling the provision of
additional physiotherapy and occupational therapy attendances.
In addition, an early patient mobilisation programme supported
by physiotherapists was introduced in the acute general adult
Intensive Care Units of all clusters, with an aim to maintain
physical mobility of patients in serious condition. Besides, a
structured, non-surgical treatment programme was piloted to
provide additional physiotherapy services to patients waiting
for total joint replacement surgery at Yan Chai Hospital under
case management approach, so as to optimise their physical
function.

To improve the standard of care for patients on mechanical
ventilation, mobile teams were set up at Queen Mary Hospital
(QMH), Princess Margaret Hospital (PMH), PWH and Tuen
Mun Hospital (TMH] to offer respiratory care to patients in
the medical wards. Centralised care was also provided by
designating three paediatrics beds for chronic ventilator
assisted care at Caritas Medical Centre (CMC).

Meanwhile, a proactive approach was adopted in exploring more
options for patient care. In 2020-21, the Integrated Model of
Specialist Outpatient Service through Nurse Clinics was further
extended to Medicine (Hepatitis], Ophthalmology (Cataract
Surgery), Ear, Nose and Throat (Hearing Loss), Surgery
(Colorectal Care) and Clinical Oncology (Systemic Anti-Cancer
Therapy), to deliver appropriate care to patients in a timely
manner.
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As for obstetric care services, while maternal special care
beds were provided in the labour wards of various hospitals
and high-risk pregnancy care training were offered to nursing
staff, breastfeeding of newborns was further promoted by
strengthening the breastfeeding support teams in the eight
Baby-Friendly Hospitals. The scope of the HA Drug Formulary
was also widened to cover more drugs with accumulated
scientific evidence on clinical efficacy. Two self-financed drugs
were repositioned as special drugs while the therapeutic
application of one special drug was expanded for management
of hepatitis, cancers and cardiovascular diseases.

In the meantime, we constantly seek to foster collaborations with
community partners to provide patients with on-going care and
support. In collaboration with the Food and Health Bureau (FHB],
Education Bureau and Social Welfare Department, the “Student
Mental Health Support Scheme” was again extended to support
more students with mental health needs. Moreover, additional
case managers were recruited in various clusters to strengthen
the community psychiatric services.

HA strives to adopt modernised technology to enhance patient
experience and treatment outcomes. The newborn screening
programme for Inborn Errors of Metabolism was rolled out in all
public hospitals with Obstetric Department. Medical grade 3D
printing technology was adopted in HKEC and KEC to optimise
surgical planning at the Orthopaedics & Traumatology (0&T)
Departments. Suitable patients with advanced Parkinson’s
disease were provided with modernised deep brain stimulation
treatment. On the other hand, with the funding support from the
Government to the Capital Block Vote as well as the Designated
Fund of HA, we upgraded our medical facilities with over
1000 equipment items installed as additions or replacements in
the year.
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Facing vigorous growth in service demand, HA is working
towards the strategic direction of developing smart hospitals,
aiming to enhance HA's digital capabilities to improve service
effectiveness. We continued to apply information technology-
based solutions to support clinical works, which included the
fourth Clinical Management System, clinical mobile apps,
as well as the extension of the Inpatient Medication Order
Entry system to more hospitals. Besides, Queue Management
System, Smart Kiosks, Electronic Bed Panel along with
Electronic Vital Signs Tracking, Hospital Navigation App, Smart
Patient List and A&E Department Dashboard have already been
in place at a number of hospitals and clinics. Al algorithms have
also been implemented in all general outpatient clinics (GOPCs)
as well as A&E Departments of some pilot hospitals to improve
diagnostic efficiency.

In empowering patients for self-care, we continued to upgrade
HA's mobile app “"HA Go” with new features including payment,
medications, allergy and queuing management, carer model
and booking of GOPC services. Moreover, a pilot programme of
tele-consultation via “HA Go” was launched in Queen Elizabeth
Hospital (QEH) and TKOH in early 2021. Meanwhile, to further
support patients to receive allied health tele-care service
via mobile devices, the patient rehabilitation mobile app was
extended to cover more patient groups.

In view of increasing threats of cyberattacks, HA developed a
cybersecurity strategy and carried out various inspection and
security measures. Training programmes were also organised
to heighten staff awareness in cybersecurity and protection of
patient privacy. Being the technical agency of the Electronic
Health Record Sharing System, HA was commissioned
by the FHB to provide IT support for various Government
programmes related to COVID-19, such as the development of
the back-end system for the Targeted Group Testing Scheme
and Universal Community Testing Programme, COVID-19 Case
Handling and Information Sharing Portal, and the COVID-19
Vaccination Programme.

Last but not least, to build rapport with the public, online
platforms and social media including HA Facebook page,
YouTube channel and the newly-launched Instagram page
were used for public information dissemination. Updates
were communicated through various means including media
activities, press releases, contributed articles in various
media platforms, and blogs amid the COVID-19 epidemic. In
addition to responding to media and community inquiries, this
also allowed us to keep members of the public abreast of the
latest epidemic development. Moreover, we maintained close
communication with members of the Legislative Council,
district councilors and community members, to provide them
with timely updates on latest developments in HA policies and
services.
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Strategic goal:
Optimise demand management

In 2020-21, multiple measures were adopted by HA to
increase the capacity of high demand services. We continued
to implement the Support Session Programme in A&E
Departments to better manage Triage Ill (urgent), Triage IV
(semi-urgent) and Triage V (non-urgent) cases. As for surgical
services, additional operating theatre sessions were offered at
PMH to enhance surgical services for acute geriatric fragility
fracture patients, with the provision of acute geriatric fragility
fracture nursing coordination service at PMH and CMC.

Proactive efforts were made by HA to bolster specialist
outpatient clinic (SOPC]) service, with the provision of around
6 250 additional new case attendances of SOPCs in the year.
Besides, HA further extended the collaborative O&T and Family
Medicine service (FMSC) model to Kowloon Central Cluster
(KCC) and Kowloon West Cluster [KWC), providing an additional
total of 4 000 FMSC attendances to relieve workload of O&T
SOPCs.

To improve Diabetes Mellitus (DM) service, Targeted Active
Intervention programme for young patients with poor DM
control was further rolled out in SOPCs at KWC, NTEC and
NTWC, of which risk assessment, treatment intensification
and empowerment were provided by a multidisciplinary team.
Continuous Glucose Monitoring [CGM) service was also piloted
in HKEC, HKWC and KCC by providing CGM sensors to suitable
patients to enhance their care with technological advancement.
In the area of renal services, the provision of haemodialysis (HD)
service was expanded by providing over 60 additional HD places
in hospitals.

Moreover, to strengthen the management of viral hepatitis, HA
set up hepatitis nurse clinics and provided enhanced services
at antenatal clinics to prevent mother-to-child transmission of
Hepatitis B Virus. Direct Acting Anti-viral in Hepatitis C Virus
treatment was also adopted to improve treatment outcomes.
Meanwhile, laboratory capacity was enhanced with additional
33 000 hepatitis related tests conducted in the year. Separately,
to enhance our multidisciplinary support for sleep service under
a 24-hour integrated model, we conducted an additional total of
1 000 sleep studies at HKEC and NTWC, on top of the provision
of two additional beds for sleep studies at HKEC.

Measures were carried out to enhance time-critical care for
patients with life-threatening conditions too. While extended
Intra-arterial Mechanical Thrombectomy service during
weekdays were provided at HKEC, NTEC and NTWC, 24-hour
service was provided at HKWC to strengthen the provision
of stroke service. Furthermore, the “Pre-hospital 12-lead
Electrocardiogram Project” was launched in collaboration
with the Fire Services Department, equipping all ambulances
with patient monitors with 12-lead electrocardiogram data
transmission function for early diagnosis and detection of
patients with ST-Elevation Myocardial Infarction.
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On the other hand, HA continued to strengthen its pharmacy
services, of which clinical screening of all chemotherapy
prescriptions in PWH and TMH was conducted to enhance
medication safety for oncology patients. Pharmacist clinic
services for patients undergoing anti-coagulant therapy were
also introduced in PYNEH, QMH and QEH. Besides, to enhance
the quality of cancer service by providing coordinated and
patient-centred care, the Cancer Case Manager Programme
was extended to serve over 1 400 additional cancer patients.

To better cope with the service pressure under the COVID-19
situation, we expanded the coverage of current Public-
Private-Partnership (PPP) programmes, new PPP initiatives
included Neonatal Phototherapy Service, Radiation Therapy
Service, Cesarean Section Services, Trauma Operative
Service Collaboration Programme, Breast Cancer Operative
Service Collaboration Programme, Cystoscopy Collaborative
Programme and Oseophago-Gastro-Duodenoscopy
Collaboration Programme. Also, the "HKSAR Government
Special Support Scheme for Hospital Authority Chronic Disease
Patients Living in the Guangdong Province to Sustain Their
Medical Consultation under Coronavirus Disease-2019" was
launched to address the medical need of HA chronic disease
patients residing in Guangdong Province, who were unable to
return to HA for follow-up consultations due to the COVID-19
situation.
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Strategic goal:
Attract and retain staff

To motivate and retain staff, a series of measures were put
forward throughout the year. Apart from recruiting over 580
doctors, 2 530 nurses and 700 allied health professionals, over
50 medical laboratory technologists were hired in the year to
address the service demand for COVID-19 testing. Moreover, as
at March 2021, 31 non-local doctors were recruited under the
Limited Registration in HA to relieve the pressure of frontline
doctors, while the “Special Retired and Rehire Scheme” and
the “Retired and Rejoin Mechanism” continued to re-employ
suitable healthcare workers and supporting / other grades staff.

To enhance career progression of frontline doctors, additional
promotion opportunities were provided to meritorious doctors
through the centrally coordinated additional Associate
Consultant promotion mechanism. Also, to retain staff to
support clinical services, the annual progression exercise for
Patient Care Assistant (PCA] IlIA of inpatient services on 24-
hour shift, Operation Assistant (OpA) IlIB in inpatient services,
and Executive Assistant (EA) IIIA (Ward) was carried out.
Enhancement measures for PCA / OpA/ EA and staff at obsolete
ranks performing PCA / OpA jobs were also implemented to
improve their remuneration and benefits.

Besides, HA is greatly concerned about employees’ emotional
health. To strengthen psychological services for staff, over
2 100 additional attendances were offered in the year to enhance
staff’'s psychological resilience. We also developed the HA
mental health app “myOasis”, which provides useful functions
such as screening assessment and education materials
with interesting app features to encourage staff accessing
psychological services.
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Strategic goal:
Enhance staff training and development

Ceaseless efforts have been made by HA to develop
professional and competent workforce so as to maintain the
provision of quality healthcare services. Territory-wide training
programmes, including Crew Resource Management training,
were conducted for doctors and nurses in various specialties
to enhance their competence in service. Specialty training and
competence enhancement programmes were organised to
nurses and allied health professionals (including pharmacy
staff) respectively to meet service needs and enhance staff's
career development. Multidisciplinary programmes for mental
health services were also offered to develop the capability
of case managers with different professional backgrounds
to support patients suffering from severe mental illness in
community. Besides, Advanced Practice Nurses were recruited
as part-time preceptors to enhance the competency of junior
nurses. Simulation Training Programmes were conducted
for over 1 000 newly qualified Registered Nurses who were
undergoing Preceptorship Programme.

With the recurrent $183.5 million Government designated
training fund, HA launched a wide range of training
programmes in 2020-21 for both clinical and non-clinical
staff to raise staff training opportunities. However, due to the
pandemic, all overseas training activities were suspended
and local face-to-face training programmes including clinical
training programmes were also affected. We therefore
offered some clinical training programmes as well as generic
competencies training series to different levels of professional
staff in online mode, while vocational and generic competencies
training programmes for supporting staff were delivered in
blended learning mode. In addition, HA had commenced the
preparatory work on setting up a vocational training institute to
offer more training opportunities to supporting staff. To dovetail
with the corporate direction of creating a digital workplace,
we further enhanced the Training Management Information
System to generate useful data which facilitated the planning
and management of staff training.

Occupational Safety and Health (OSH) of healthcare staff is
particularly important under COVID-19. In this connection, HA
continued to reinforce its infection control measures, including
but not limited to enhancing infection control training and
maintaining sufficient supply of personal protective equipment,
so as to reduce the risk of infection at work. The OSH and
Infection Control teams from HAHO and clusters also supported
the Government’s Universal Community Testing Programme by
assisting in respirator fit testing for healthcare workers in the
Community Testing Centres. Besides, site visits were conducted
at the Community Isolation Facility at Lei Yue Mun Park and
Holiday Village, Community Treatment Facilities at AsiaWorld-
Expo, as well as all Community Vaccination Centres operated
by HA and hospital vaccination depots to provide OSH advice
to enhance staff safety at work. We also arranged training for
colleagues who worked in the above-mentioned facilities before
the actual operation to ensure that infection control guidelines
were strictly followed.
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Strategic goal:
Drive accountable and efficient use of
financial resources

In 2020-21, the COVID-19 pandemic continued to spread rapidly
around the world. Public hospitals, as one of our main lines of
defense in Hong Kong's anti-epidemic efforts, have been facing
immense pressure and challenges brought about by resurgence
of COVID-19 cases throughout the year. Since the start of the
COVID-19 epidemic, the Government has continued to provide
unwavering funding support to HA for combatting the outbreak.
Over $8 billion has been allocated to HA for ensuring sufficient
support and protection for frontline healthcare staff and timely
treatment for patients.

Apart from the above, the Government continued its strong
commitment to public healthcare in 2020-21 through
progressively increasing subvention to HA on a triennium basis,
having regard to population growth and demographic changes.
During the financial year ended 31 March 2021, HA's total
income was $85.2 billion, representing an increase of 5.6% from
$80.7 billion in 2019-20. Similar to previous years, HA, through
annual planning exercise, adopted prudent financial measures
to ensure the proper and efficient use of resources. Priority was
given to initiatives which aimed to improve clinical effectiveness
and aligned with the strategic directions outlined in HA Strategic
Plan, and those which helped address pressure areas, while
taking into account prevailing constraints in manpower and
hospital facility situations for capacity growth.

HA's total expenditure for 2020-21 was $84.7 billion (an
increase of 10.1% from $76.9 billion in 2019-20). Out of the
sum, $4.1 billion was incurred for combating COVID-19, which
was supported by designated funding for COVID-19 from the
Government. An underspending of $0.5 billion was recorded for
the year. These unused resources have been transferred to the
Revenue Reserve, increasing it to $7.2 billion as at 31 March
2021. Such reserve will serve as an important safeguard to
help maintain financial stability of HA in light of the challenges
inflicted on Hong Kong's economy by the COVID-19 pandemic,
and to meet the expected increase in resource need in the
foreseeable future given the progressive commissioning of
more new and redeveloped hospitals on the horizon.

With the Government’s continual staunch financial support to
public healthcare services, HA will stay vigilant in optimising its
available resources and ensure proper deployment of resources
in addressing the challenge arising from the escalating service
demand owing to ageing population as well as to enhancing
public hospitals’ capability in managing infectious diseases.
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Contributing to a green environment

HA makes ongoing efforts in creating a greener and more
sustainable environment through implementation of various
measures.

In 2020-21, apart from continuously replacing aged air-
conditioning chillers and installing intelligent LED luminaires
in various hospitals, a new Retro-commissioning project was
commenced in various hospitals. This allowed us to review
the indoor environment parameters of hospitals such as
temperature, humidity and operating hours, so that indoor
environment could be improved while achieving energy
efficiency with low commissioning cost.

We continued to participate in the Energy Saving Charter and
4T Charter Schemes initiated by the Government. Thanks
to the concerted efforts of various clusters, energy saving
plans with targets and timeline were formulated. A number of
public hospitals and institutions have also joined the Energy
Saving Charter for five consecutive years in support of the
Government’s appeal to combat climate change. Besides,
to improve air quality, we purchased vehicles of higher
environmentally friendly emission standards.

Participation of hospitals in various waste reduction and
recycling programmes continued. HA also strived to minimise
food waste disposal by promoting waste reduction at source,
and delivering collected food waste to the Organic Resources
Recovery Centre Phase 1 (0 - PARK1) for converting to energy.
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HONG KONG EAST CLUSTER (HKEC)
BEREM IR (BESRER)

To cope with the escalating service demand under the
ageing population, HKEC continued to expand service
capacity and enhance service quality. Meanwhile,
tremendous effort has been made to optimise the
services in pressure areas and life-threatening diseases,
reinforce multidisciplinary coordination, as well as
enhance ambulatory and outreach services to reduce
unnecessary admission in particular of geriatric patients.

In PYNEH, additional Intensive Care Unit bed and
oncology day beds were added, and a child and
adolescent psychiatric ward was opened during the year.
Ruttonjee Hospital also provided additional acute medical beds. To facilitate pre-discharge planning and enhance bed utilisation, a
discharge lounge was set up in PYNEH. In addition to more imaging service attendances, the first Angio-CT system in Hong Kong
and an additional mammography machine were installed in PYNEH so as to strengthen the service of radiological examination.
Surgical planning at the orthopaedic and traumatology departments was optimised by adopting medical grade 3D printing in the
cluster. Moreover, service hours for Intra-arterial Mechanical Thrombectomy service at PYNEH were extended to enhance clinical
outcomes for patients with acute stroke.

Amidst the challenges brought by COVID-19 in the past year, staff members of HKEC stay committed to rendering quality patient
service with strong team spirit. While the initial successive infection clusters took a toll in the Hong Kong Island, all departments
in HKEC synergised with professionalism to protect the community and frontline staff with flexible deployment of resources. Staff
of HKEC took pride in receiving the 2020 HA Outstanding Staff and Outstanding Team Award for their excellent performance. The
Accident and Emergency Training Centre at RTSKH was awarded for its well-known professional training courses in emergency
medicine and simulation training for HA staff.

With the immense efforts contributed by stakeholders including fellow colleagues and members of Hospital Governing
Committees of HKEC, the HKEC Clinical Services Plan was published in December 2020, which mapped out the development of
HKEC in next 10 to 15 years and delineated the roles of hospitals across the cluster. Taking the opportunity of the establishment of
an Ambulatory Care Block at PYNEH in HA's second 10-year Hospital Development Plan, a concept plan of development potential
of the existing PYNEH site was also formulated. A cluster Committee in Healthcare Innovation was also formed to foster the
innovation culture and facilitate trials of new service models and projects.
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MMRC - MacLehose Medical Rehabilitation Centre Z5¥ 418 FEkz
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HONG KONG WEST CLUSTER (HKWCQ)
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In face of the challenges of the COVID-19 and the winter service surge, HKWC has flexibly deployed measures to manage
service demand. At the Accident and Emergency Department, it has upheld the gatekeeping role on avoidable hospitalisation
through optimising and augmenting buffer capacity, including provision of influenza and COVID-19 screening for patients with
influenza-Llike illness symptoms and setting up of temporary beds.

At ward and clinic level, aside from deploying additional manpower to isolation areas, other measures were implemented to
cope with the increasing needs of service at the time of outbreak, which included providing pre-admission COVID-19 screening
for patients with appointment of surgery and procedures, arranging designated device for each inpatient to minimise the risk
of cross-contamination, as well as upholding social distancing in hospital areas such as Central Pharmacy or Central Blood
Taking Station, which were more prone to mass gathering. Besides, there were opening of second-tier isolation wards for
COVID-19 patients with stable clinical situation, and flexible allocation of beds by cluster hospitals. Elective services and other
non-emergency services were also adjusted for necessary manpower deployment.

Despite all the challenges brought by COVID-19, HKWC continued its endeavors to improve service quality. There was
enhancement in medical support for ventilated, neurosurgical and orthopaedic patients in MMRC and provision of end-of-life
care to needy patients in FYKH. In addition, a mobile team was set up in QMH to provide respiratory care to patients in medical
wards, and two beds were designated to support cases with respiratory complications.

In terms of optimising demand management, HKWC has provided additional sessions for endoscopic procedures and new
case attendances for SOP services in adult immunology and allergy, orthopaedic and child assessment. Moreover, through
the Visiting Medical Practitioner programme, outreach services were offered to discharged elderly patients, while additional
timeslots of clinic consultation were also provided to patients-in-need in Residential Care Homes for the Elderly.
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Hospitals E&F% HKEC B SREIE | HKWC B BT
Number of general outpatient clinics E3@RIFI2 2 P B 12 6
Throughput fRS 2

@ Number of hospital beds B25 % A2k B 3302 3076
Patient discharges* HBTmAZE* 164 741 199 001
Total A&E attendances &JE EFZ B AR 155 067 98 145

Total specialist outpatient (clinical) attendances

< BE A 807 387 861816
HERIPIZ (FRIK) B2 RAR
General outpatient attendances X @REIFI2 L2 AR 527719 353 859
Full-time equivalent staff &R 2Bk A S 218 9230 8616

* Total inpatient and day inpatient discharges and deaths {EF% & B BH{EREAA HFE AR RILT- A S
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NEW TERRITORIES WEST CLUSTER (NTWC)
%ﬁﬁ@%“ﬂ 9I'nl|-.| (¥ﬁﬁ@ 9I'm|-.|)

Addressing the escalating service demand for a wide range of medical specialties is a key challenge to NTWC. This is posed by the
continued growing population in the catchment area, which is projected to further increase from 1.14 million in 2018 to 1.30 million
in 2028, particularly with a significant increase of 65% in the elderly population. To tackle the situation, NTWC is implementing the
key clinical strategies and service directions set out in the Clinical Services Plan for NTWC.

NTWC strived to increase the number of patient beds, including additional acute inpatient beds and day beds at TSWH, High
Dependency Unit beds at TMH, as well as Intensive Care Unit beds at POH, so as to expand the service capacity. Services volume
of day rehabilitation and geriatric day hospital was strengthened, while the Community Geriatric Assessment Team support was
enhanced for terminally-ill patients in Residential Care Homes for the Elderly. Besides, NTWC established cluster-based service
networks to provide Intra-arterial Mechanical Thrombectomy service at extended hours during weekdays for acute ischaemic
stroke patients. To improve radiology services, Positron Emission Tomography-Computed Tomography scanner had started
operation in TMH, providing better scanning for cancer patients. The construction work of the extension of TMH Operating Theatre
Block has approached the final stage and is expected to be completed in 2021 by phases, providing more space to accommodate
expand clinical services.

Amid the COVID-19 epidemic, staff of NTWC has united together to fight against the disease. In addition to devoting our full
capacity to take care of patients, we disseminated timely information about the disease to the community through various
channels. NTWC will continue to pursue priorities and increase service capacity to meet the healthcare needs of the community
with full commitment in providing quality services.
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CPH - Castle Peak Hospital & LI Z&Bx
POH - Pok Oi Hospital &k

SLH - Siu Lam Hospital /ME&E&EE

TSWH - Tin Shui Wai Hospital X7k B2k
TMH - Tuen Mun Hospital #5 P92k

Hospitals Z&F% NTWC $T5RFaEE4 ~ NTEC 3R REE

Number of general outpatient clinics & @RIFI2 2 Fri B 8 10

Throughput fRIS &

Number of hospital beds Z2BZ /R R £ B 4 682 5042 @
Patient discharges* HiBTmAZE* 219 585 285 835

Total AXE attendances %Fi L BAR 306 622 270 257 @
General outpatient attendances & BRI FIZHLZ AKX 856 459 959 551

Full-time equivalent staff & [F 28 A B & B 12 361 13810

* Total inpatient and day inpatient discharges and deaths {EF% & B BH{EREA A HFE AR RILT- A S

52 Hospital Authority Annual Report E&Fx &2 HF 3R 2020-2021



NEW TERRITORIES EAST CLUSTER (NTEC)
5T oR 8 bre A5k A8 (57 SR EHAR)

NTEC has always strived to enhance its service capacity to improve waiting time, as well as to alleviate access block situations.
In 2020-21, additional inpatient beds and day beds were added to address the escalating demand. Capacity of operating theatre
was augmented for enhancing joint replacement, fetal surgeries as well as metabolic and bariatric surgeries in the cluster.
More operating theatre sessions were also added per week at PWH and NDH to benefit more patients. Besides, 24-hour
Primary Percutaneous Coronary Intervention was implemented in NTEC for eligible ST-Elevation Myocardial Infarction patients.
Cluster service network was established to provide Intra-arterial Mechanical Thrombectomy service to acute ischaemic
stroke patients with extended hours during weekdays. Further, AHNH progressively scaled up its emergency surgical service
in accordance with the NTEC Clinical Services Plan by providing two additional emergency operating theatre sessions on
Saturdays to enhance timely surgical care.

NTEC proactively developed collaborative models
to deliver patient care in greater efficiency. Ortho-
geriatric collaboration was implemented in PWH to
support elderly hip fracture patients with improved
perioperative management, transition and post-
discharge support. Enhanced Recovery After
Surgery programme, aiming at reducing patients’
post-operation length of stay, was also launched
in PWH General Surgery in collaboration with
medical, nursing and allied health staff after a
fruitful pilot run.

The outbreak of COVID-19 posed daunting
challenges to NTEC. We implemented strategies
directed by the HA Central Command Committee
and formulated detailed contingency plans to
cope with possible surge of cases. Thanks to the dedication, professionalism and teamwork of our staff at all levels, responses
were swiftly made when tackling various challenges. Patients” accessibility to healthcare services was inevitably affected by the
epidemic, and great efforts in developing tele-care services to our patients thus ensued. In particular, colleagues of allied health
have been providing tele-care services, covering inpatient, outpatient, ambulatory and community care. A number of protocol-
driven tele-rehab models were also established for providing pre-discharge assessment, home environment screening, etc. As
for support to staff, NTEC ensured that staff members were well informed of latest information of the disease through different
channels, like regular forums and e-posters. NTEC Critical Incident Psychological Services also organised a series of talks on
stress management to provide psychological support to staff along this challenging journey.

Various development projects remained going in full steam ahead. PWH phase two redevelopment are progressing on schedule, while
ground investigation works of NDH expansion project has commenced. The purpose-built Block D, SH was completed and is in use.
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BBH AHNH - Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital JEEE R #: ABFT = 2T PWH - Prince of Wales Hospital EEE# £ 2%
p BBH - Bradbury Hospice REIZE &0 SH - Shatin Hospital 7 FHE&RE
SCH - Cheshire Home, Shatin ) AZ K E & TPH - Tai Po Hospital A3 E&R:

@ NDH - North District Hospital 3t E &%

b
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KOWLOON WEST CLUSTER (KWC)
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KWC has been playing a pivotal role in combating the COVID-19 epidemic. Following the handover of the North Lantau Hospital
Hong Kong Infection Control Centre (HKICC) from the Government to HA in January 2021, KWC, which is tasked with the
responsibility for the management and operation of HKICC, immediately commenced the preparation work and started admission
of COVID-19 patients with mild to moderate clinical conditions on 26 February. The tremendous efforts made by KWC ensured the
smooth commencement of service of HKICC within a short period of time. Offering over 800 isolation beds along with hospital-
grade isolation facilities, together with a laboratory equipped with the most advanced testing equipment, HKICC provided timely
support during the long-enduring epidemic and greatly enhanced the overall testing capability of Hong Kong. HKICC also adopted
doctor-patient separation design and smart technology elements, which accorded highest priority to protecting healthcare
professionals from infection, while catering for the needs of patients at the same time.

During the third wave of outbreak, apart from deploying manpower from cluster hospitals to the Community Treatment Facility (CTF)
in AsiaWorld-Expo, NLTH also supported the operation of CTF by receiving patients with special medical needs.

The HA Infectious Disease Centre at PMH also played a significant role in this uphill battle, by admitting most of the COVID-19
patients, as well as formulating the treatment protocols. The demand of rehabilitation services has grown as more COVID-19
patients are recovered. KWC has thus proactively provided clinical and psychological support to recovered patients in restoring
normal life.

While keeping up efforts in fighting the epidemic, the provision of sustainable patient care is still of utmost importance. Serving
a large community with ageing and growing population has been a major challenge to KWC. To meet the ever-escalating
service demand, more beds were added in the cluster hospitals while the capacity of various clinical services was strengthened.
Pharmacist chemotherapy clinic and integrated cancer clinic services were set up at PMH. The service provision at the Breast
Centre of YCH was enhanced by adopting one-stop outpatient services approach. Veno-Arterial Extra Corporeal Membrane
Oxygenation services commenced at the Cardiac Care Unit of CMC. Pharmacy services were extended to 24 hours and clinical
psychology services were set up at NLTH.

To cope with the growing clinical service demand, a number of KWC capital projects are in progress, including the expansion of Lai
King Building at PMH and the redevelopment of KCH. Upon completion of these projects, additional space for expanded services
and upgraded facilities will be in place to cater for the needs of the community in the long run.
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CMC - Caritas Medical Centre BiE Bz HKBH - Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital & &5t gkx KWH - Kwong Wah Hospital B2z

KCH - Kwai Chung Hospital 2%/ 20z HKCH - Hong Kong Children’s Hospital & & 52 Z 2&Fx OLMH - Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital 22 ﬂ’ 5

NLTH - North Lantau Hospital 1t i1 8Bz HKEH - Hong Kong Eye Hospital & &R 7} E&br QEH - Queen Elizabeth Hospital fRFIMBE R (7Bx)
PMH - Princess Margaret Hospital 3552 21280 BTS - Hong Kong Red Cross Blood Transfusion Service WTSH - Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Wong Tai Sin Hospital
YCH - Yan Chai Hospital {=7582[% BERATFERMAREH L RE=REALER

KH - Kowloon Hospital J13EE&Ft
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KOWLOON CENTRAL CLUSTER (KCC)
NeEP BBk (N BEdPHEER)

KCC continued to expand its service capacity to cope with
the growing demand and ageing population. Additional
beds were added in QEH and HKBH to enhance the
inpatient service capacity. Besides, extra operating theatre
sessions in QEH and HKCH were opened to shorten
patients” waiting time.

With regard to oncology and haematology services, an
integrated oncology service model was developed in KCC
for enhanced inpatient, SOPC and day services. 24-hour
support for on-site haematopathology consultation was
also provided in KWH to support the development and
service collaboration among KWH and QEH after re-clustering. Moreover, extended hours of radiotherapy services and additional
attendances for psychosocial support were provided to cancer patients, on top of the formation of a multidisciplinary palliative
care consultative team at KCC.

For outpatient services in KCC, a collaborative model for Family Medicine and Orthopaedics and Traumatology (0&T) was
implemented in KWH and OLMH to improve the O&T new case waiting time. Additional specialist outpatient clinic new case
attendances were provided in QEH Medicine and HKEH. General outpatient clinic quotas were also increased to meet the primary
care service demand. Apart from the above, KCC Child and Adolescent (C&A] services were initially set up by a C&A consultation
liaison team in KH, providing inpatient consultation service to HKCH.

To strengthen rehabilitation services in KCC, early patient mobilisation services were provided in acute adult Intensive Care
Unit, while restorative rehabilitation programme and stratified care management were implemented in KWH Physiotherapy
Department to shorten the waiting time. Community rehabilitation services were improved with the relocation of Community
Rehabilitation Service Support Centre to Multi-Service Centre at QEH.

During the COVID-19 outbreak, all KCC colleagues demonstrated concerted efforts and strong coordination in overcoming the
challenges. Contingency measures were adopted, where QEH and KWH shouldered the responsibility to receive confirmed and
suspected cases, together with the setting up of “triage and tests” areas for infection control and surveillance. KCC also reduced
non-emergency services, as well as converted general and private wards into isolation wards and surveillance wards. KCC piloted
Telemedicine Queue Management System in QEH to remotely handle outpatient consultation. KCC IT also developed a query
system which can identify whether the patient resides in a high-risk district or residential building.

Capital projects of KCC are progressing according to the 10-year Hospital Development Plan. Preparatory works for the new acute
hospital in Kai Tak Development Area and KWH Phase one opening are actively underway. OLMH is under decanting process with
the support of cluster hospitals to minimise interruption to patient services.
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KOWLOON EAST CLUSTER (KEC)
NeER B (N BETREELR)

KEC has weathered the storm of the COVID-19 outbreak
in Hong Kong especially in late 2020. With a raft of
timely anti-epidemic measures, exemplary team spirit
and remarkable resilience, our professional team has
remained united to stand firm against the epidemic.

In parallel, KEC has taken judicious steps to develop B |
hospital services which are articulated in the KEC Clinical & & ' L L -ﬁfﬁa
Services Plan to cope with the demand of the community, = ' T
as well as to form a cluster-based infectious disease
network to bolster the capability and coordination in
handling emergency infectious disease outbreaks.

To address the escalating service needs, extra inpatient beds, operating theatre sessions and haemodialysis quotas were added
in the cluster. An oncology ward was opened at UCH, which laid a cornerstone for the progressive development of KEC's flagship
oncology services. Initiatives were put forward to strengthen ambulatory services, which included addition of surgical day beds
and quotas for specialist outpatient services, as well as the establishment of a Fast Track Clinic in the Day Medical Centre of TKOH
which aimed to provide rapid assessment and treatment to outpatients so as to reduce unnecessary admission. KEC also further
developed rehabilitation services by engaging physiotherapists to provide early mobilisation services to high-risk patients in
Intensive Care Unit and offering post-discharge support to elderly patients with hip fracture and acute stroke.

Riding on the momentum of smart hospital development, KEC has leveraged on the latest technology to support quality
healthcare services, such as adopting medical grade 3D printing to optimise surgical planning and improve treatment outcomes;
using autonomous smart robots for cleansing and material transportation; and providing tele-care services as an alternative to
conventional consultation. In addition, TKOH has pioneered in the adoption of 5G infrastructure in operating theatre to improve
patient care and safety, and has received the Gold Award of “Best 5G Application” in the 2020 CAHK STAR Awards from the
Communication Association of Hong Kong. As one of the pilot smart hospitals, TKOH will dovetail the strategic development of HA
to establish and realise the smart hospital development blueprint. In appreciation of KEC’s outstanding performance in sustainable
smart hospital development, HA presented the 2021 Outstanding Team Award to the innovative Smart Hospital Team of KEC.

HHH celebrated its 65" Anniversary in the year, and commissioning of the new block has commenced in the first quarter of 2021.
UCH’s expansion project started the 2™ phase in September 2020. A new horizon on the provision of healthcare services in KEC is
envisaged upon accomplishment of the two capital work projects.
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Hospitals Z&F% KWC L EE B4 KCC hE 4 KEC hEERE#
Number of general outpatient clinics EBEIFI2 2 FTE B 16 13 8
Throughput fRFS 2

Number of hospital beds Z&F 5 R &1 B 4,906 5996 2846
Patient discharges* HHifrm ABKE* 271821 317 445 179133
Total A&E attendances 2JE ZEREZ AR 353972 238350 218 040
SRS B R 2y L iyt
General outpatient attendances ZBEIFI2 52 AR 991148 1044120 835 424
Full-time equivalent staff & [F 28 A S & B 13901 18 351 9667

* Total inpatient and day inpatient discharges and deaths {EF% & B BHEREA A HFE AR RILT- ASL
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Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of the Hospital Authority (“"HA")
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 62 to 125,
which comprise:

e the consolidated and HA balance sheets as at 31 March 2021;

e the consolidated statement of income and expenditure for the year
then ended;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

¢ the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;

¢ the consolidated statement of changes in total funds for the year then
ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of principal accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of HA and the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2021, and of the Group’s consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA”).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Other Information

HA is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all of the information included in the annual report other than
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of HA and Those Charged with Governance
for the Consolidated Financial Statements

HA is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA, and for such internal control as HA determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, HA is responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless there are events or conditions that
have caused or may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 10 of the Hospital Authority
Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

¢ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by HA.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated — ZEEIFE RS MEBRIRAENEE @

Financial Statements (Continued)

e Conclude on the appropriateness of HA's use of the going concern o
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the e
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial o
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among  BrEABZFEIASN - FAFIEREQEBIR T 5 BB FAE

other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
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audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 5l AIARHE il B9 (EA] &R ERPE ©

that we identify during our audit.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers BEORUKEETHEISEHA
Certified Public Accountants HEZEHAD
Hong Kong, 23 September 2021 BB —E—FNAZ+=H
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
mOEERMBR

At 31 March 2021

At 31 March 2020

Note HK$’000 HK$'000
MisE 20213 831H 202043 A31H
BT T BT T
Non-Current Assets ERBIEE
Property, plant and equipment #3 - #28 & % 5 7,323,375 6,600,193
Intangible assets B EE b 346,363 306,646
Right-of-use assets {£ AEBE 7 270,113 195,391
Loans receivable FEUER 8 18 122
Placements with the Exchange Fund JNEE £ 1F5 9 21,000,000 21,000,000
Fixed income instruments EE A B THE 10 250,000 -
29,189,869 28,102,352
Current Assets BN EE
Inventories 7 & M 2,541,995 1,714,742
Loans receivable FEMERX 8 104 237
Accounts receivable FEARFR 12 358,062 344,716
Other receivables E i FEUARR 13 522,360 629,386
Deposits and prepayments 1&& & IERIFRIA 14 613,257 327,145
Placements with the Exchange Fund YMNEZ &7 9 1,570,258 8,904,039
Fixed income instruments EEAETE 10 148,000 1,899,257
Cash and bank balances & RIRTT4EER 15 32,408,696 20,241,167
38,162,732 34,060,689
Total Assets BEE 67,352,601 62,163,041
Funds &
Designated fund #§E&E& 16 5,077,369 5,077,369
Revenue reserve WA REE 7,242,174 6,671,496
Total Funds E£ 4% 12,319,543 11,748,865
Current Liabilities REI & &
Balance with Samaritan Fund B35 F| 5 E & 464 17 520,713 273,201
Creditors and accrued charges &1 A RERE A 18 21,765,650 16,897,763
Deposits received EYiE® 19 460,636 393,716
Lease liabilities HHE & & 7 154,999 98,286
22,901,998 17,662,966
Non-Current Liabilities R E B E
Balance with Samaritan Fund S AR & € 4458 17 6,000,000 6,000,000
Death and disability liabilities T RIBEENER 20 290,110 307,420
Deferred income IEREH 21 8,031,944 9,436,133
Deferred income - capital subventions and capital donations 22 7,669,738 6,906,839
FEER T — BEARFE R AN IgHE
Lease liabilities HHE & & 7 139,268 100,818
Public-Private Partnership Endowment Fund 2FLE HIEE AE S 23 10,000,000 10,000,000
32,131,060 32,751,210
Total Liabilities A& & 55,033,058 50,414,176
Total Funds and Total Liabilities E&€ Rk B &4#% 67,352,601 62,163,041

Mr Philip TSAI Wing-chung, BBS, JP £k 564
Chairman, Finance Committee

MEERBEERE

The notes on pages 68 to 125 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.

B FEF R 2020-2021

Dr Tony KO Pat-sing & B4
Chief Executive
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BALANCE SHEET
SEBER

At 31 March 2021

At 31 March 2020

Note HK$'000 HK$'000
MisE 20213 A31H 202043 A31H
BET T BT T
Non-Current Assets ERBIEE
Property, plant and equipment #3 - #28 & % 5 7,323,375 6,600,193
Intangible assets B EE 6 339,243 301,185
Right-of-use assets {£ B E 7 270,113 195,391
Loans receivable FEUER 8 18 122
Placements with the Exchange Fund YNEE £ F5K 9 21,000,000 21,000,000
Fixed income instruments EJE A S THE 10 250,000 -
29,182,749 28,096,891
Current Assets RENEE
Inventories 758 1 2,541,995 1,714,742
Loans receivable FEUERX 8 104 237
Accounts receivable FEARFR 12 358,062 344,716
Other receivables E i FEUERTR 13 522,360 629,386
Deposits and prepayments 1&& &I FIA 14 613,128 327,033
Placements with the Exchange Fund YMNEZ & 775 9 1,570,258 8,904,039
Fixed income instruments EEAETE 10 148,000 1,899,257
Cash and bank balances 3R & RiR1T4EER 15 32,408,696 20,241,167
38,162,603 34,060,577
Total Assets BEE 67,345,352 62,157,468
Funds &
Designated fund #§E&E & 16 5,077,369 5,077,369
Revenue reserve A& # 7,242,168 6,671,490
Total Funds E£ 4% 12,319,537 11,748,859
Current Liabilities REI & &
Balance with Samaritan Fund #U5F| IR E ¢ 464 17 520,713 273,201
Creditors and accrued charges & A RENEH 18 21,765,527 16,897,657
Deposits received B 4ZE 19 460,636 393,716
Lease liabilities HE & & 7 154,999 98,286
22,901,875 17,662,860
Non-Current Liabilities R E B E
Balance with Samaritan Fund #USH| R E & 44 17 6,000,000 6,000,000
Death and disability liabilities 26 = R EFE@FIE T 20 290,110 307,420
Deferred income EREMW & 21 8,031,944 9,436,133
Deferred income - capital subventions and capital donations 22 7,662,618 6,901,378
FEEW = — BRI R A N5
Lease liabilities HHE & & 7 139,268 100,818
Public-Private Partnership Endowment Fund 2FLE HIEE AE S 23 10,000,000 10,000,000
32,123,940 32,745,749
Total Liabilities A8 & 55,025,815 50,408,609
Total Funds and Total Liabilities E£ R & E#E %5 67,345,352 62,157,468

AN (4

Mr Philip TSAI Wing-chung, BBS, JP £k 564 Dr Tony KO Pat-sing Sk FtE4
Chairman, Finance Committee Chief Executive

MEEBELE TTHRAREL

% 68 & 125 EMFEE AR A M RERM —EH ©

The notes on pages 68 to 125 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
ulﬂ_Cll'I&§mDE§‘%

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Note HK$'000 HK$ 000
Bk BZE 20215 HZE 20205
SA3MALFE BA3TRILFE
BT T BT
Income WA
Recurrent Government subvention &8 % 14 U 4 Bh 75,432,473 71,301,559
Hospital / clinic fees and charges 2Pt / 2E ML E 24 4,837,090 4,827,138
Donations &% 13 24
Transfers from ## 8 :
Designated donation fund 8 E B RS 21 360,809 202,263
Minor Works Projects Fund /NI Ti2IE B & & 21 1,495,069 1,288,539
Public-Private Partnership Fund AL & HIEE® 21 403,312 286,750
Capital subventions & ZNf#B) 22 1,266,063 1,107,972
Capital donations AR 22 166,021 159,394
Investment income & W& 342,107 612,865
Other income Azt 921,604 899,035
85,224,561 80,685,539
Expenditure XH
Staff costs B TR 25 (57,664,922) (53,700,090)
Drugs 24 (8,685,468) (8,102,162)
Medical supplies and equipment E&EYm K& &H (4,955,761) (3,842,072)
Utilities charges 2R (1,360,944) (1,392,665)
Repairs and maintenance 418 &R E (2,766,131) (2,550,646)
Minor works projects funded by the Government (1,495,069) (1,288,539)
AR SRR/ N THRIE B
Depreciation and amortisation #78 K #§4 5-7 (1,555,674) (1,353,449)
Finance costs #1742 7 (2,621) (3,154)
Other operating expenses Efibh & &R 26 (6,202,493) (4,688,247)
(84,689,083) (76,921,024)
Surplus for the year FRZE R 535,478 3,764,515
The notes on pages 48 to 125 are an integral part of these consolidated % 68 & 125 AW R ARG M BHREHN—F D -

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mOETEHWER

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Note HK$'000 HK$'000

BEE BZE2021F HZE2020F

SA3IBLEE 3A3MAILFEE

BT T BT

Surplus for the year FAZ &R 535,478 3,764,515

Other comprehensive income Efth4R& iz
Item that may not be reclassified to income or expenditure:
AUEEHDBRWARZ HHHIAR :

- Remeasurement of death liability 20 35,200 1,054
FRTRAMBEAENZ

Total comprehensive income for the year FR#ABLRE 570,678 3,765,569

The notes on pages 48 to 125 are an integral part of these consolidated % 68 & 125 AW R ARG M BHRERN —F D °
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RO IR EIMANIRER

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bk BZE2021F BHZ 20204
3HA31HLEFE 3A3IAILEE
BET T BT
Net cash generated from operating activities & )&ENFT1FIR &) F58 29(a) 5,356,311 8,193,795
Investing activities BR&ES
Investment income received B % & iz 332,777 646,370
Purchases of property, plant and equipment B E 13 - #288 &% 5 (1,961,159) (1,482,712)
Purchases of intangible assets &\ & E 6 (233,824) (184,104)
Net (increase) / decrease in bank deposits with original maturity (21,752,092) 6,962,045
over three months
R E A B R iR =18 A e sRITIF SR 588 (3E ) /
Decrease / (increase) in fixed income instruments 1,499,957 (1,099,705)
EEASTERD/ (3Em)
Decrease / (increase) in placements with the Exchange Fund 3 7,300,000 (5,000,000)
SNEESTFRCH A / (3E0)
Net cash used in investing activities $x & GBI FTAIR & 558 4814341 (158,106}
Financing activities B & & &)
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities ZNHHEBEARSESD  29(b) (119,609) (100,948)
Finance costs paid 2S5 & A (2,621) (3,154)
Net cash used in financing activities (122,230) (104,102)
BMEBBARSEE
(Decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (9,580,260) 7,931,587
ReRBEFE 2 CRL) /18
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 12,106,006 4,174,419
FY B e MIREEE
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 15 2,525,746 12,106,006
FR7ES MREEE
Note: B

The interest on the placements with the Exchange Fund on behalf of the ~ REUEEF|TSELFNINEELNERZA BB
Samaritan Fund was netted off with the outstanding balance with the Samaritan IR RO RIS E S A4 - AL BERMIFE17
Fund and the detailed arrangement is disclosed in note 17. HEE o

The notes on pages 48 to 125 are an integral part of these consolidated % 68 & 125 AW R AGRE M BHREHN—F D °
financial statements.

66 Hospital Authority Annual Report Efx & HF ¥R 2020-2021



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TOTAL FUNDS
MOERRBEHHE

Designated fund Revenue reserve Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
EEES WA @t
BT T BT T BT T
At 31 March 2019 5,077,369 2,905,927 7,983,296
K201943A31R
Total comprehensive income for the year - 3,765,569 3,765,569
FRRERE W
At 31 March 2020 5,077,369 6,671,496 11,748,865
202063 A31H
Total comprehensive income for the year - 570,678 570,678
FEFEE WS
At 31 March 2021 5,077,369 7,242,174 12,319,543
202143 A31H
The notes on pages 48 to 125 are an integral part of these consolidated % 68 & 1256 AW R ARG M BHRERN —F D ©

financial statements.
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(a)

Background

The Hospital Authority (“HA”) and its subsidiaries are collectively
referred to as the “Group” in the consolidated financial statements.
HA is a statutory body established in Hong Kong on 1 December
1990 under the Hospital Authority Ordinance (Cap.113). The
Hospital Authority Ordinance provides HA with the powers to
manage and control the delivery of public hospital services in Hong
Kong. Under the Hospital Authority Ordinance, HA is responsible
amongst other matters for the following:

e advising the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (the “Government”) of the needs of the
public for hospital services and of the resources required to
meet those needs;

e managing and developing the public hospital system;

¢ recommending to the Secretary for Food and Health appropriate
policies on fees for the use of hospital services by the public;

e establishing public hospitals; and

e promoting, assisting and taking part in education and training
of persons involved or to be involved in hospital services or
other services relevant to the health of the public, and research
relating to hospital services.

HA formally took over the management and control of all public
hospitals in December 1991 including the ex-Government hospitals
and ex-subvented hospitals as set out in Schedule 1 and Schedule
2 of the Hospital Authority Ordinance respectively.

For Schedule 1 hospitals, pursuant to Section 5(a) of the Hospital
Authority Ordinance, an agreement was subsequently entered into
between the Government and HA on 3 June 2011 ("Agreement”),
under which the Government and HA agreed that HA shall be
responsible for managing and controlling the Government lands
(including all new properties built on Government lands) and the
hospitals, clinics, facilities, buildings and premises established
thereon (as set out in Annex A of the Agreement and referred to as
“Properties”), as well as the facilities and amenities (as set out in
Annex B of the Agreement) that may be provided on the Properties.
The ownership of the Properties continues to be held by the
Government.

For Schedule 2 hospitals, HA entered into agreements with
individual governing bodies of the ex-subvented hospitals which
allowed HA to assume ownership of some operating assets as at
1 December 1991 and to manage and control other assets, the
ownership of which remains with the individual governing bodies.
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(a)

Background (Continued)

As a result, HA has assumed responsibility for the management
of the public hospital operations since 1 December 1991. Also, all
operating and capital commitments outstanding as at 1 December
1991 were assumed by HA, except for the capital works projects
funded under the Capital Works Reserve Fund of the Government.

The Government announced in the 2016 Policy Address that
HK$200 billion would be used to implement a ten-year Hospital
Development Plan (HDPJ. Given the significant number and scale
of Schedule 1 hospital projects in the HDP, the Government has
entrusted HA to carry out and complete a number of capital
works projects for Schedule 1 hospitals which are funded by the
Government. Similarly, HA is undertaking the capital works projects
for Schedule 2 hospitals which are funded by the Government and
the governing bodies of the ex-subvented hospitals. As at 31 March
2021, there were 15 major capital works projects in progress (of
which 11 projects were managed by HAJ, and the total funding
approved by the Government was HK$75,323,100,000.

As part of the Government’s healthcare reform plan, HA has taken
over the management and operation of all general outpatient
clinics ("“GOPCs") from the Department of Health from July 2003.
Under the arrangement, the title and ownership in respect of
the related operating assets of the GOPCs were retrospectively
transferred to HA in July 2003 after receiving formal approval from
the Government in June 2006. These assets were transferred at nil
value.

Through HA’'s subsidiary, HACM Limited, funding has been
provided to 10 non-governmental organisations ("NGOs”] to
enhance the operation of 18 Chinese Medicine Clinics cum
Training and Research Centres (‘CMCTRs”) in Hong Kong for the
provision of designated Chinese Medicine (CM] initiatives including
Government subsidised CM services at district level and Chinese
medicine practitioner trainee programme. HACM Limited has also
provided funding to six CMCTRs for the provision of CM services
to HA patients under the Integrated Chinese-Western Medicine
Programme which has been implemented at seven hospitals for
four disease areas. The funding provided by HACM Limited to NGOs
is based on each CMCTR's individual service components and
actual deliverables.
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(a)

(b)

Background (Continued)

In order to support the Government-led electronic health record
("eHR”) programme, which is an essential part of the healthcare
reform, HA has been engaged to serve as the technical agency
to the Government, leveraging its experience and know-how in
the Clinical Management System ("CMS”). With this role, HA
undertakes multiple streams of eHR related projects, which are
funded by the recurrent subvention and other designated funding
from the Government. During the financial year ended 31 March
2021, HA recognised HK$435,809,000 (2020: HK$390,443,000) as
other income to match with the expenditure incurred in relation to
the eHR related projects.

In order to support Department of Health ("DH") to enhance
its information technology (“IT”) system so as to better provide
healthcare service to the public, HA was appointed as the technical
agency to deliver the IT systems required for 19 Clinical Services
Improvement projects (“CIMS2”) under Initiative 1 of the First
Stage of the Strategic Plan to Re-engineer and Transform Public
Services of DH (“SPRINT-1") as well as to undertake Maintenance
Service for CIMS2, which are funded by the designated funding
from the Government. During the financial year ended 31 March
2021, HA recognised HK$132,680,000 (2020: HK$89,503,000) as
other income to match with the expenditure incurred in relation to
the project.

Hospitals and other institutions

At 31 March 2021, HA had under its management and control the
following hospitals, charitable trusts and institutions:

Hospitals:

Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital
Bradbury Hospice

Caritas Medical Centre

Castle Peak Hospital

Cheshire Home, Chung Hom Kok
Cheshire Home, Shatin

The Duchess of Kent Children’s Hospital at Sandy Bay
Grantham Hospital

Haven of Hope Hospital

Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital

Hong Kong Children’s Hospital

Hong Kong Eye Hospital

Kowloon Hospital

Kwai Chung Hospital

Kwong Wah Hospital

MacLehose Medical Rehabilitation Centre
North District Hospital

North Lantau Hospital

Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital

Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital
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(b)

(c)

Hospitals and other institutions (Continued)

Hospitals (Continued):

Pok Oi Hospital

Prince of Wales Hospital
Princess Margaret Hospital
Queen Elizabeth Hospital
Queen Mary Hospital
Ruttonjee Hospital

Shatin Hospital

Siu Lam Hospital

St. John Hospital

Tai Po Hospital

Tang Shiu Kin Hospital

Tin Shui Wai Hospital

Tsan Yuk Hospital

Tseung Kwan O Hospital
Tuen Mun Hospital

Tung Wah Eastern Hospital
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Fung Yiu King Hospital
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Wong Tai Sin Hospital
Tung Wah Hospital

United Christian Hospital
Wong Chuk Hang Hospital
Yan Chai Hospital

Charitable Trusts:

North District Hospital Charitable Foundation

Prince of Wales Hospital Charitable Foundation

The Hong Kong Children’s Hospital Charitable Foundation

The Hospital Authority Charitable Foundation

The Hospital Authority New Territories West Cluster Hospitals
Charitable Trust

The Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital Charitable Trust

The Princess Margaret Hospital Charitable Trust

The Queen Elizabeth Hospital Charitable Trust

Other Institutions:

eHR HK Limited

HACM Limited

Hong Kong Red Cross Blood Transfusion Service
Specialist Outpatient Clinics

General Outpatient Clinics

Other clinics and associated units

Principal office

The address of the principal office of HA is Hospital Authority
Building, 147B Argyle Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong.
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(a)

(b)

(c)

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs"] issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") as appropriate to Government subvented and not-for-
profit organisations. They have been prepared on a going concern
basis and under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of certain financial assets which are stated at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of
applying HA's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed
in note 4.

Basis of consolidation

The financial statements of the Group include the income and
expenditure of the Head Office, subsidiaries, all Hospitals,
Charitable Trusts, Specialist Outpatient Clinics, General Outpatient
Clinics and other institutions under its management and control
made up to 31 March 2021.

The financial statements reflect the recorded book values of those
assets owned and the liabilities assumed by the Group.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control.
The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct
the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date that control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions within the Group have been eliminated on
consolidation. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the assets
transferred. The accounting policies of the subsidiaries are
consistent with the accounting policies adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL 871 55 ¥ 2R Bfd 5
STATEMENTS

2. Principal accounting policies (Continued) 2. FLEFHHR@®
(c) Subsidiaries (Continued) (c) KYEEHERE ()
At 31 March 2021, the principal subsidiaries of HA comprise: E-Z-—4=A=+—H BERNEE
MBS -

Effective percentage

Place of directly held by
incorporation / the Group
Name Principal activities operation EEEEZEN
=z FTEXH MR/ EELE  BROE
HACM Limited To steer the development and Hong Kong 100
(limited by guarantee) delivery of Chinese medicine i
Bt e R EEEREGR AT services
(ERBEAR) HEIh BB R ER AR
eHR HK Limited To act as a custodian to hold, Hong Kong 100
(limited by guarantee) maintain and license the i
(ERARRA) intellectual property rights and

assets related to eHR programme

ERIREAN - 718 - RERSTEH
B RELHE ARSI A
ERNEE
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(d) Adoption of new / revised HKFRSs

(e)

The HKICPA has issued a number of new / revised HKFRSs,
including interpretations, amendments or improvements to the
existing standards, which become effective in the current period.
The following amendments to standards and framework which are
effective for the Group’s financial year beginning 1 April 2020 are
relevant to the Group:

The Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8, Definition of Material

The adoption of these amendments has no impact on the results
and financial position of the Group.

The HKICPA has also issued a number of new / revised HKFRSs
which are effective for accounting period beginning on or after
1 April 2021. The Group has not early adopted these new / revised
HKFRSs in the financial statements for the financial year ended
31 March 2021. The Group is in the process of making an
assessment but is not yet in a position to conclude the impact
of these new / revised HKFRSs on its results of operations and
financial position.

Recognition of income

Subventions for recurrent expenditure are recognised on an
accruals basis, except for those subventions for designated
programmes or capital items that are recognised when the related
expenditure is incurred as set out in note 2(r).

Inpatient hospital fees and charges, such as inpatient admission
and maintenance fees, itemised charges for private inpatients, are
recognised over time during hospitalisation. Other hospital / clinic
fees and charges such as outpatient attendance fees and drug
charges, sales of self-financed drugs and medical reports and
records, are recognised when services are provided.

Transfers from the designated donation fund and capital donations
are recognised as set out in note 2(f).

Transfers from the capital subventions, Minor Works Projects Fund
and Public-Private Partnership (“PPP”]) Fund are recognised as set
out in note 2(r).

Investment income from fixed income instruments is recognised as
set out in note 2(k).

Investment income from bank deposits is recognised on a time
proportion basis using the effective interest method.
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(f) Donations

(i)

(i)

Donated assets

Furniture, fixtures, equipment, motor vehicles and intangible
assets donated to the Group are capitalised initially at fair
value on receipt of assets according to the policy set out in
notes 2(g](ii) and 2(h) respectively. The amount of the donated
assets is accumulated in deferred income under capital
donations. Each year, an amount equal to the depreciation or
amortisation charge for these assets and the net book value
of assets disposed of is transferred from deferred income
to the statement of income and expenditure. Other donated
assets not fulfilling the capitalisation policy are recorded as
expenditure and income in the year of receipt of the assets.

Cash donations

Cash donations for specific use as prescribed by the donor
are accounted for in the designated donation fund. When the
fund is utilised and spent for expenditure not meeting the
capitalisation policy as set out in note 2(g](ii) or note 2(h), they
are accounted for as expenditure of the designated donation
fund. Cash donations that are spent on property, plant and
equipment or intangible assets as set out in notes 2(g](ii)
and 2(h) respectively are accumulated in deferred income
under capital donations, and the corresponding amounts are
capitalised as property, plant and equipment or intangible
assets respectively. Each year, an amount equal to the
depreciation or amortisation charge for these assets and
the net book value of assets disposed of is transferred from
deferred income to the statement of income and expenditure.

Non-designated donations for general operating purposes
are recorded as donations in the statement of income and
expenditure upon receipt of cash.

(g) Property, plant and equipment

(i)

(ii)

Completed building projects transferred from the Government
and individual governing bodies of ex-subvented hospitals are
recorded at nominal value and included in property, plant and
equipment.

Property, plant and equipment other than completed building
projects which give rise to economic benefits are capitalised
and the corresponding amounts are recognised as deferred
income - capital subventions and capital donations for
capital expenditure funded by the Government and donations
respectively.
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(9)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Property, plant and equipment other than completed building
projects are stated at cost less any accumulated depreciation
and impairment. Additions represent new or replacement of
specific components of an asset. An asset’s carrying value
is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if
the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

The cost of assets acquired and the fair value of donated assets

received by the Group are depreciated using the straight-line
method over the expected useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold improvements

HEWERE RIEHEZ FH
Buildings 20 - 50 years 4
EEY)

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 - 10 years &
KA - BIEEE MR

Motor vehicles 5-7years ==
e

Computer equipment 3-6years &F

BRI

The residual values and useful lives of assets are reviewed and
adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date.

The gain or loss arising from disposal or retirement of an
asset is determined as the difference between the proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the
statement of income and expenditure.

Capital expenditure in progress is not depreciated until the
asset is placed into commission.

Intangible assets

Computer software and systems including related development
costs, which give rise to economic benefits are capitalised as
intangible assets and the corresponding amounts are recognised
as deferred income - capital subventions and capital donations
for capital expenditure funded by the Government and donations
respectively. Intangible assets are stated at cost less any
accumulated amortisation and impairment and are amortised on
a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of one to three
years.
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(i)

Leases

A contract is, or contains, a lease if it conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. A contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset if the customer has both the right to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from using the identified
asset and the right to direct the use of the identified asset.

As a lessee, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability at the lease commencement date, except for leases with a
lease term of 12 months or less which are recognised as expenses
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(i) Right-of-use assets

At inception, the right-of-use asset comprises the initial lease
liability, initial direct costs and the obligation to restore the
asset, less any incentive granted by the lessor. The right-of-
use asset is depreciated over the lease term of the underlying
asset. The right-of-use asset is subject to impairment review
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

(ii) Lease liabilities

A lease liability is initially measured at the present value of
future lease payments with reference to an expected lease
term, which includes optional lease periods when the lessee
is reasonably certain to exercise the option to extend or not to
terminate the lease. Future lease payments are discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if this cannot be
readily determined, an incremental borrowing rate that the
lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to
obtain an asset. The lease liability is subsequently measured by
increasing its carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability (using the effective interest rate method) and by reducing
its carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made. The
lease liability is remeasured (with a corresponding adjustment
made to the related right-of-use asset) when there is a change
in future lease payments in case of renegotiation, changes of an
index or rate or in case of reassessment of options.
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(j)

(k)

(U

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The placements with the Exchange Fund are measured as “financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss”. HA determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition, and such
classification depends on HA's business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.
Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs are expensed
to the statement of income and expenditure. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows have expired
or have been transferred and HA has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership. Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value.

Fixed income instruments

Fixed income instruments are measured at amortised cost based
on HA's business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

Fixed income instruments are recognised on a trade-date basis
and stated at amortised cost, less any impairment loss recognised
to reflect irrecoverable amounts. The annual amortisation of
any discount or premium on the acquisition of fixed income
instruments is aggregated with other investment income receivable
over the term of the instrument using the effective interest method.

The Group assesses whether there is objective evidence that fixed
income instruments are impaired at each reporting date. The
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the fixed income instruments and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the fixed income
instruments is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in
the statement of income and expenditure.

Inventories

Inventories, which comprise drugs, other medical and general
consumable stores, are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
Where applicable, provision is made for obsolete and slow-moving
items. Inventories are stated net of such provision in the balance
sheet. Net realisable value is determined with reference to the
replacement cost.
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(m) Accounts receivable

(n)

(o)

Accounts receivable are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for expected credit losses. HA
applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9 - Financial
Instruments, which requires lifetime expected credit losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. The carrying
amount of the accounts receivable is reduced through the use of
an allowance for expected credit loss account, and the amount
of the expected credit losses is recognised as an expense in the
statement of income and expenditure. Decrease in the previously
recognised expected credit losses shall be reversed by adjusting
the allowance for expected credit loss account.

To measure the expected credit losses, accounts receivable have
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the
days past due. The expected credit loss rates are determined based
on the debtors’ profiles of accounts receivable over a period of 36
months rolling historical credit loss experienced. The historical
credit loss rates are adjusted for forward looking estimates that
may affect the ability of debtors to settle the receivables.

When an accounts receivable is uncollectible and eventually
written off, the respective uncollectible amount is offset against the
allowance for expected credit loss account for accounts receivable.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against the current year’s expenses in the statement of
income and expenditure. Accounts receivable are written off after
all possible debt recovery actions have been taken by HA and taking
into account prevailing economic conditions.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks, and bank deposits with original maturity within three
months.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to depreciation and amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use.
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(p)

(q)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and
a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. A contingent
liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group.

Employee benefits

(i) Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the Group’s defined contribution retirement
benefit plans are charged as expenses as they fall due.
Payments made to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are
dealt with as payments to defined contribution plans where
the Group’s obligations under the schemes are equivalent
to those arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit
plan. The retirement benefit costs charged in the statement of
income and expenditure represent the contributions payable in
respect of the current year to the Group’s defined contribution
retirement benefit plan and the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme.

(ii) Termination benefits costs

Termination benefits are payable whenever an employee’s
employment is terminated before the normal retirement age
or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises termination
benefits costs when there is an obligation to make such
payments without possibility of withdrawal.

(i) Death and disability benefits costs

The cost of the Group’s obligations in respect of death and
disability benefits provided to employees is recognised as
staff costs in the statement of income and expenditure with
reference to annual actuarial valuations performed by an
independent qualified actuary.
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(q)

(r)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Death and disability benefits costs (Continued)

The death benefits for eligible employees are accounted for as
post employment defined benefits. Remeasurement of death
liability arising from experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognised immediately in other
comprehensive income.

The disability benefits are accounted for as other long-term
employee benefits. Remeasurement of disability liability
arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised immediately in the statement of
income and expenditure.

Further details of the death and disability liabilities are set out
in note 20.

Other employee benefits costs

Other employee benefits such as annual leave and contract
gratuity are accounted for as they accrue.

Government subvention

Subvention grants approved for the year other than the following
are classified as recurrent subvention income.

(i)

(ii)

Government funding for building projects, together with
contributions from the individual governing bodies of ex-
subvented hospitals, are received by HA for undertaking the
capital works on their behalf. Accordingly, the amount incurred
on building projects and the funding received are reflected as
changes in current assets / current liabilities. Any outstanding
reimbursement of project costs incurred by HA is recognised
as current assets, while advance funding received by HA for
meeting the project costs in future periods are recognised as
current liabilities. Further details are set out in notes 13 and 18.

The one-off grant received from the Government for minor
works projects (under Subhead 8083MM) together with the
related investment income are recognised as deferred income
- Minor Works Projects Fund. Each year, the amount spent on
the minor works projects is transferred from deferred income
to the statement of income and expenditure or deferred
income - capital subventions as appropriate. Further details of
the deferred income - Minor Works Projects Fund are set out
in note 21(a).
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(r)

(s)

(t)

Government subvention (Continued)

liiil The Government allocated HK$10,000,000,000 to HA to
establish an endowment fund for PPP programmes. The
investment returns of the PPP Endowment Fund, together with
the remaining balance of the one-off designated funding for
HA's PPP programmes as at 31 March 2016 are recognised as
deferred income - PPP Fund. Each year, the amount spent on
the PPP programmes is transferred from deferred income to
the statement of income and expenditure or deferred income -
capital subventions as appropriate. Further details of the PPP
Fund are set out in note 21(b).

(iv] Government subventions that are spent on property, plant
and equipment or intangible assets as set out in notes 2(g](ii)
and 2(h) respectively are accumulated in deferred income
under capital subventions, and the corresponding amounts
are capitalised as property, plant and equipment or intangible
assets respectively. Each year, an amount equal to the
depreciation or amortisation charge for these assets and net
book value of assets disposed of is transferred from deferred
income to the statement of income and expenditure.

Translation of foreign currencies

Items included in the financial statements of the Group are
measured using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the Group operates (“the functional currency”). The
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar, which is
the Group’s functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the
reporting date. Exchange gains and losses are dealt with in the
statement of income and expenditure.

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related to the Group if the party has
the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the Group or exercise
significant influence over the Group in making financial and
operating decisions, or vice versa. Related parties also include key
management personnel having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group.

For the purpose of these financial statements, transactions
between the Group and Government departments, agencies or
Government controlled entities, other than those transactions that
arise in the normal dealings between the Government and the
Group, are considered to be related party transactions.
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(a)

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities of providing healthcare services to patients,
the administration of drugs, the employment of a sizeable workforce
and the investment activities are primary areas of financial risks
being mitigated by the Group’s financial risk management process.
The Group’s underlying principles of financial risk management
are to transfer the cost of financial risks of significant level
through insurance with a diversity of insurers, to self insure for
the operational risks and to comply with regulatory insurance
requirements as an employer and owner of a motor fleet.

With regard to investments, in accordance with the Group's
policies and guidelines, the primary objectives are to meet
liquidity requirements, protect capital and provide a reasonable
investment return. The investment portfolio [“Portfolio”) as at
31 March 2021 consisted of bank deposits, fixed income
instruments and placements with the Exchange Fund. Based on
the risk control measures as summarised below, the risk of default
by the counterparties is considered minimal and the Portfolio has
no significant concentration of credit risk. Besides, the Group has
no significant currency risk since its financial assets and liabilities
are substantially denominated in Hong Kong dollar, which is the
Group’s functional and presentation currency. The Group manages
its cash flow requirements and risks as disclosed in note 3(c).

(i) Creditrisk

The Group’s credit risk is the risk that counterparties may
default on its bank deposits, fixed income instruments and
placements with the Exchange Fund.

Bank deposits are placed with the Group’s approved banks
which are of investment grade as determined by Moody’s or
Standard and Poor’s. For bank deposits, banks must meet
the minimum credit rating not lower than Moody’s Baa3 or
equivalent. The impairment requirements of HKFRS 9 do
not have a material impact on the bank deposits. Credit risk
arising from the bank deposits is not significant to the Group.

All transactions in fixed income instruments are settled or
paid for upon delivery through approved banks and trading
agent as well as safe kept by the approved custodian with high
credit ranking. The credit risks of the issuers are assessed
based on the credit rating determined by Moody’s or Standard
and Poor’s. Investments in fixed income instruments (i.e.
certificates of deposits and bonds) are with issuers of credit
rating not lower than Moody's A3 or equivalent at the time of
investment. Where the maturity is over three years, the credit
rating is not lower than Moody’s Aa3 or equivalent.

The placements with the Exchange Fund are entered into
between HA and the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA”)
and it is expected that HKMA can fulfill its contractual
obligations to HA in respect of the placements.
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(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) MBREMREZE @

(i) Interest rate risk (i) =@

The Portfolio’s interest rate risk arises from interest bearing HE BV R E R Rk B T ER B RIIRITER
cash at bank, bank deposits and fixed income instruments. ® - RITERKEEALIA < R1738
Cash at bank, which earns interest at variable rates, gives rise BRI R A @ﬁ/u@jfiiﬂtﬂ
to cash flow interest rate risk. Fixed rate bank deposits and B T AREREE B R B IRITIF R &IIE
fixed income instruments expose the Portfolio to fair value ABIE - AIEARBENERR
interest rate risk. Sensitivity analyses have been performed BE—T-—F=H=+— El&'f’f‘l_fﬂ
by the Group with regard to interest rate risk as at 31 March BETRRE DT - B EA[E255
2021. If interest rates had been increased or decreased by F(ANERERRNSEAIRE 2 TR
25 basis points, which represent management's assessment ) MABEGBEHRREHIE
of a reasonably possible change in those rates, and all other EHEEYELERRESRETERE
variables were held constant, the effect on the Group’'s N

operating results and total funds is insignificant.

(iii) Price risk (iii) (R
Fixed income instruments are subject to the price risk caused RErTmaRmEaERR (3 (a)(i)
by the changes in the perceived credit risks of the issuers and R is % (a3 (a)(n)) BEE) - [E
market interest rates as disclosed in notes 3(a)(i) and 3(al(ii) EAELAZERERTE -

respectively.

(iv)] Currency risk (iv) B Rk
The Group’s financial assets and liabilities are substantially SEeRmEERBERE LAUBTR
denominated in Hong Kong dollar, the Group’s functional LAl Eﬂﬁlﬂ'ﬂj}ﬁ REHNEE B8
and presentation currency, and hence will not be exposed to BERNEERAMR

significant currency risk.

(b) Fair values estimation (b) AREEME
(i) Financial assets carried at fair values (i) BAREAEIIENSREE

The Group’'s financial instruments that are measured at SELAR ff@;:‘l‘iﬁ’]@mﬂiﬂhzbk—r

fair value are categorised by level of the following fair value ARBENGTEREETHE

measurement hierarchy:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for B — HREENBENERTS L
identical assets or liabilities. WE CRESHE) -

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 E_B-KRTE-EMEENREN
that are observable for the asset or liability, either S REBEEXBENATEER
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, wmEMBA - A AEE (BIE
derived from prices). %) S (BURBB%) °

Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based F=E - EEXBBEUTRBRIEABRE
on observable market data (that is, unobservable MZEENE A (BT B
inputs). A o
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(b)

Fair values estimation (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets carried at fair values (Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
is based on quoted market prices at the reporting date.
A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions
on an arm'’s length basis. These instruments are included in
level 1. None of the instruments of the Group is included in
level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives)
is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data where
it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level
2. None of the instruments of the Group is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial
instruments include:

- Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar
instruments.

- The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is
determined using forward exchange rates at the reporting
date, with the resulting value discounted back to present
value.

Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis,
are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial
instruments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

3. Financial risk management (Continued)

(b) Fair values estimation (Continued)

(i)  Financial assets carried at fair values (Continued)

The placements with the Exchange Fund are included in
level 3. The following table presents the changes in level 3
instruments for the financial years ended 31 March 2021 and
31 March 2020:

B 5 R 2 Bf 5E

3. HIEREIR @)

(b) DAEEME @

(i)

BARBEIENSREE (8)

NEESHERBRE=ZE - TR27
BE_ZT-_—=A=+—BI1Lt Kk
T EE-RA=+—HIFEFE=E
TAMEE :

The Groupand HA KB R BEH

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

HK$’000 HK$ 000

BZE20215F EHE2020F

3A31ALEE 3AMABILFE

ART BT

At the beginning of the year A 4] 29,904,039 25,590,326
Addition [note 16] #EANLHIEE 161 - 5,000,000
Withdrawal $2EX (7,300,000) -
Interest earned / accrued interest FrF| . / FEEHFI2 873,590 849,713
Interest withdrawn 32EUFI &, (907,371) (1,536,000)
At the end of the year [note 9] PG4 [F{3E 9] 22,570,258 29,904,039

(i) Financial assets not reported at fair values

The fair values of fixed income instruments (i.e. certificates of
deposits and bonds) at the reporting date are provided by the
approved custodian. These instruments are summarised below:

The Groupand HA RE R EER

(i) AR BEZIINEREE

B ABTA (BEHERES) ERE
AMAREEAZERE ARME B
FanT -

Carrying Value [Note 10] Fair Value
BRE{EE (MEE10] AREE
At 31 March 2021 At 31 March 2020  At31 March 2021 At 31 March 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$ 000
20213 H31H 202063 A31H 20213 H31H 20203 831H
BET T BT T BET T BT
Fixed income instruments 398,000 1,899,257 401,286 1,905,966

EEASTE

(i) The carrying values of other financial assets and liabilities
such as cash and bank balances, loans receivable, accounts
receivable and trade payables approximate their fair values
and accordingly, no disclosure of fair values for these items is
presented.
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(c)

Capital management

Under the Hospital Authority Ordinance, the resources of the Group
consist of the following:

(i) AWl money paid by the Government to HA and appropriated for
that purpose by the Legislative Council and otherwise provided
to HA by the Government; and

(i) AUl other money and property, including gifts, donations, fees,
rent, interest and accumulations of income received by HA.

In this regard, the capital of the Group comprises revenue reserve,
designated fund and deferred income as shown in the consolidated
balance sheet. At 31 March 2021, the capital of the Group was
HK$28,021,225,000 (2020: HK$28,091,837,000).

The Group’s objective for managing capital is to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern to ensure
sustainability of the public healthcare system. The Group has
always been prudent in financial management so as to ensure
proper and effective use of public resources. Through the annual
planning exercise, resource requirement of individual clusters is
identified and considered against the total amount of resources
available to the Group, targeting at maintaining existing levels of
services and providing pragmatic service growth in meeting the
pressing demand for public hospital services. Priority is given to
initiatives which aim to improve clinical effectiveness and align
with the strategic directions outlined in HA Strategic Plan, and
those which help address pressure areas, while taking into account
prevailing constraints in manpower and hospital facility situations
for capacity growth. To facilitate the delivery of value-for-money
services, the Group regularly monitors a set of performance
indicators covering performance in clinical service, human
resources management and financial management.
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(a)

(b)

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to
exercise significant judgments in the selection and application of
accounting policies, including making estimates and assumptions.
The following is a review of the more significant accounting
policies that are impacted by judgments and uncertainties and for
which different amounts may be reported under a different set of
conditions or using different assumptions.

Provision for medical malpractice claims

The Group co-insures and retains a designated sum for each
medical malpractice claim. For those professional liability claims
in excess of the retained sum, the claims will be borne by the
insurer. In view of the complex nature and long development
period of the claims, a Claims Review Panel consisting of the
participating medical malpractice insurers, the external panel law
firms appointed by the insurers and HA's in-house experts review
the status of potential and active claims semi-annually and assess
the provision required on each significant case. An independent
qualified actuary also assists the Group on the assessment of the
exposure of other reported cases based on historical development
trend of the claims settlement. With reference to the assessments
and the analysis by the Claims Review Panel and the external
actuarial consultant respectively, management reviews the claims
exposure and determines the provision required to cover the
Group’s exposure at each reporting date. Such provision is included
in accrued charges and other payables in note 18.

Death and disability liabilities

The Group engages an independent qualified actuary to assess
the present value of obligations for its death and disability scheme
at each reporting date. Major actuarial assumptions include the
discount rate and salary inflation rate which are set out in note
20. The present value of the Group’s obligations is discounted with
reference to market yields on Hong Kong Government Bonds,
which have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the
related obligations. The long-term salary inflation is generally
based on the market’s long-term expectation of price inflation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL 871 55 ¥ 2R Bfd 5
STATEMENTS

5. Property, plant and equipment 5. ME - iHBBNE
The Group and HA RE R BEF
Furniture,
fixtures and
equipment
Building and HK$’000 Motor Computer
improvements -SRI vehicles  equipment Total
HK$’000 BEEHE HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BEEYREE ST AE EERAE st
BETT BETT BETT B¥gTT ABY¥TR
Cost F&
At 1 April 202074202054 A1 H 1,106,450 13,239,779 338,634 692,698 15,377,561
Additions 30 482 1,829,929 49,024 81,724 1,961,159
Reclassifications E¥15 8 - (345) - 345 -
Disposals & - (557,235) (10,748) (16,987) (584,970)
At 31 March 20217202143 A 31 H 1,106,932 14,512,128 376,910 757,780 16,753,750
Accumulated depreciation & &
At 1 April 2020 % 202054 A1 H 501,657 7,536,274 247,040 492,397 8,777,368
Charge for the year NFE 2T & 31,484 1,076,762 36,037 76,643 1,220,926
Reclassifications E¥15 8 - (46) - 46 -
Disposals & - (540,525) (10,747) (16,647) (567,919)
At 31 March 20215420213 431 H 533,141 8,072,465 272,330 552,439 9,430,375
Net book value BREFE
At 31 March 20217202143 A31H 573,791 6,439,663 104,580 205,341 7,323,375
The Group and HA KRB R BE S
Furniture,
fixtures and
equipment
Building and HK$'000 Motor Computer
improvements SN vehicles  equipment Total
HK$'000 B3 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BEEYREE SE AE BHERE st
BT T BT T BT T B¥TT B¥TR
Cost A7
At 1 April 201972201944 A1 H 1,093,495 12,409,452 314,446 616,729 14,434,122
Additions 31N 19,694 1,328,720 42,405 91,893 1,482,712
Reclassifications E¥1 5 8 - (200) - - (200)
Disposals & (6,739) (498,193) (18,217) (15,924) (539,073)
At 31 March 20207220204 3 A 31 H 1,106,450 13,239,779 338,634 692,698 15,377,561
Accumulated depreciation 2EITE
At 1 April 2019742019564 A1 H 478,028 7,014,224 236,872 436,917 8,166,041
Charge for the year NFE 2T E 28,739 1,007,061 28,385 71,402 1,135,587
Disposals & (5,110) (485,011) (18,217) (15,922) (524,260)
At 31 March 202074202043 A 31 H 501,657 7,536,274 247,040 492,397 8,777,368
Net book value BREFE
At 31 March 2020720204 3 A 31 B 604,793 5,703,505 91,594 200,301 6,600,193
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6. Intangible assets 6. BILEE
The Group 58
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
BZE20214 HZ=2020F
3A31ALEE 3A3MBILFE
BET T BT T
Cost B A
At the beginning of the year A5 #) 1,761,363 1,581,537
Additions 31N 233,824 184,104
Reclassifications E# D48 - 200
Disposals & (964) (4,478)
Atthe end of the year P& 1994223 1,761,363
Accumulated amortisation RiE#EH
At the beginning of the year A5 4] 1,454,717 1,342,229
Charge for the year AN 7 # 194,107 116,966
Disposals & (964) (4,478)
Atthe end of the year OFAE 1,647,860 1,454,717
Net book value SREFE
At the end of the year 4% 346,363 306,646

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
BZE2021F EHE2020F
3HA31BLEE 3A3MALLFE
BT T BETT
Cost FX &<
At the beginning of the year A7) 1,749,596 1,575,614
Additions 320 226,799 178,260
Reclassifications EFT D48 - 200
Disposals & (964) (4,478)
At the end of the year REF#& 1,975,431 1,749,596
Accumulated amortisation RiE#EsH
At the beginning of the year FA4F 7] 1,448,411 1,336,306
Charge for the year AN & 2 # 188,741 116,583
Disposals & (964) (4,478)
At the end of the year 4% 1,636,188 1,448,411
Net book value JREFE
At the end of the year RF#X 339,243 301,185
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

&

PSRBT

7. Leases 7. THE&
The Group has leased buildings, mainly for offices, blood donation SEEANYETZERERLAE - Bd
centres, clinics, data centres, storerooms and community O~ B BERL - AERMEERER
treatment facility, and leased land for North Lantau Hospital BE - AR AR ey T = B AR 3L KU
Hong Kong Infection Control Centre (“HKICC”). Lease terms are Bl B ERREE L - HEFHTER
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of M EREEZETRERRGES - &
different terms and conditions. To maximise operational flexibility ENEENEESEE  FEESHBELT
for the Group’s operations, extension and termination options RYLIETHENEREZR UBAAGE
are provided for a number of leases and are only included in the MEEERBE(HAIGRIE) BTG A
lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not HEFH KT —F=A=+—H"
terminated). At 31 March 2021, the future cash outflows for lease MAAREEBEEREMNHERKE S
not yet commenced but committed by the Group amounted to T B 57,043,000 L(ZE T F ¢
HK$57,043,000 (2020: HK$17,027,000). 7k 17,027,0007T ) ©

(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet  (a) EREEESBRERNNRIE

(i) EREEE

(i) Right-of-use assets

The Group and HA KRB R BES

At 31 March 2021 At 31 March 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

202134318 202038 31H

BETT BE¥TFIT

Buildings #12 188,276 195,391
Land tit 81,837 -
270,113 195,391

REBE-_Z-—F=A=1t—HBItZ2HHF
E - FREAEREINAB®215,363,0007C
(ZZT T4 : #%86,653,0007T) °

Additions to the right-of-use assets for the financial year ended
31 March 2021 were HK$215,363,000 (2020: HK$86,653,000].

(i) Lease liabilities (i) AEAaE

Contractual maturities of lease liabilities are as follows: HEBENSOEIEERIT

The Group and HA REI R BE

Total

Between  Between contractual
Within 1and 2 2and5 Over cashflows Carrying
1year years years  5years HK$'000  amount
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 E#HRE HK$000
1R 126 2-5% 5ERE  REHAE REHEE
BETT B¥Tr BT BT BETx B%Tx
At 31 March 20217202143 A 31 H 156,375 112,155 27,703 - 296,233 294,267
Less: non-current portion 58 : JE/RENES S (139,268)
Current portion /i Eh & 154,999
At 31 March 202072 20204 3 A 31 H 100,516 60,426 41,695 - 202,637 199,104
Less: non-current portion 58 : 3E/RENE S (100,818
Current portion JEh &S 98,286
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7. Leases (Continued)

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement
of income and expenditure

The consolidated statement of income and expenditure shows the
following amounts relating to leases:

B 5 R 2 Bf 5E

b == -
THE (@)

(b) EREUXEERBEINRIEA

REMXEERE 2 HERBERENT

The Group and HA REI R BE R

For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

BZE2021F BE 20204

3ABTHIEFE  3A3MBLFE

BT T BETT

Depreciation 140,641 100,896

e

Expenses relating to short-term leases (included in other operating expenses) 549,417 14,737
REEERER X (REEEMEERA)

Finance costs 2,621 3,154

MisEM

Total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31 March 2021 was
HK$677,619,000 (2020: HK$110,524,000).

8. Loans receivable

Certain eligible employees under the Home Loan Interest Subsidy
Scheme were offered downpayment loans for the purchase of
their residential properties (“Downpayment Loan Scheme”). The
repayment period of the loans is the shorter of the mortgage
life and 20 years. Interest charged on the downpayment loans is
determined by the Group from time to time and is set at 1.106% as
at 31 March 2021 (2020: 1.106%). Downpayment Loan Scheme has
been suspended since April 2002.

At 31 March 2021, the downpayment loans advanced to eligible staff
which are fully secured by charges over the properties are as follows:

The Group and HA KRB R BEF

BE_Z_-F=-A=t—HLFE #HE
2R & mt#EEE A B 677,619,000 T
(ZZT T4 : % 110,524,000 7T) °

E U EFR

BERHEITHEBEERRS2MET
—HAEEEENESHBERUBERA
(TEHHERE]) - EHERNERRAEY
EIRIRFEE20F  UREEAE - BHE
FHERABERTRIE R —F
ZAZT—HEAE1106% (T = F:
1.106%) - BEHIERFEBE =TT _FWMA
HREEE -

E-_Z-—F=A=1t—H BEENKRA]
REENEMHERLBYEETREMNT:

At 31 March 2021

At 31 March 2020

HK$'000 HK$ 000

202143 A31H 20203 A31H

BT BT

Repayable within one year —FA{EE 104 237
Repayable beyond one year #8i8—F{Ei& 18 122
122 359
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The loans receivable is neither past due nor impaired. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
carrying value of the receivable mentioned above. According to
the terms and conditions of the scheme, the monthly principal
repayment and payment of interest in respect of the downpayment
loans are deducted from the employees’ wages and that any
benefits to which an employee will be entitled to receive under the
HA Provident Fund Scheme shall stand charged with repayment
of downpayment loan and interest thereon if such debt has not
been paid by the employee upon resignation or on an agreed date.
On this basis, the receivable balance is considered to be fully
recoverable.

The placements with the Exchange Fund are measured as
“financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”. The valuation
technique and significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value
measurements are the discounted cash flow and discount rate
respectively. The placements are denominated in Hong Kong dollar.
Their fair values are determined with reference to the estimated
rates of investment return for future years.

The interest on the placements is at a fixed rate determined
annually in January and payable annually in arrears on
31 December. Currently, the rate of return is calculated on the basis
of the average annual rate of return on certain investment portfolio
of the Exchange Fund over the past six years or the average annual
yield of three-year Government Bond in the previous year (subject
to a minimum of zero percent), whichever is the higher. This rate
of return has been fixed at 3.7% and 4.7% per annum for January
to December 2020 and January to December 2021, respectively.
The interest earned but not yet withdrawn by HA would continue to
accrue interest at the same rate payable for the principal amount.

As agreed with HKMA, HA has placed HK$5,000,000,000 for
the HLISS Fund with the Exchange Fund since 19 August 2019
for a period of six years, during which HA would be able to
request one single withdrawal of an amount equal to or not more
than HK$2,000,000,000 during the period from 1 April 2023 to
31 March 2024.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, HA withdrew the
principal of HK$7,300,000,000 together with the interest of
HK$485,371,000 upon the maturity on 14 April 2020 (2020: interest
of HK$1,300,000,000) from the placement with the Exchange Fund
to meet the costs of the minor works projects in future years. To
support the operation of the PPP programmes, HA also withdrew
the interest of HK$422,000,000 (2020: HK$236,000,000) from the
placement.

FEYE I BB SR E - FEHRE B &RAH
FERRRZ LAEROEREEE - RIEFE
T RGN BRERNE AR RAE
EREHERENF G - HRENERE
HEE B HAREEEEREREMSAE -
AEERE [BREBRABESE] AT
e EfHE R - & REFRIEL R - Bl -
FEMETRAEER R I PATT 2 YR

SMNEESTFFEMNR TRATEEIIRLER
mRBEZEMEE]FE  HAR(EENE
A AERTREXRATERRGA - 25l
BRI E R MR K - BEFIAETTS
B EAREBERBARFENGRE

B REE -

EETRMEREAE  EEF—ABT I
REBE+_A=+—A%f - B - @B=
RIRINEES B EMSBAENFNTHERE
EIfRE - k= FHRBNESFBE—FHFY
FREWSRFE (FEA%)  UBEEA
o B TF—AE+_ARZT=—

—AZ+ - ANESFEERES R A3.T7% R
4.7% - BE BATERRERINFESRA
S FEBREEETHE -

BREEERESERNHE BT R
REEREERMNE ZMFAEESBHAYE
5,000,000,000 T IEH =T — NLFNA
THABHERINERES - BHEI/NF - BifE
ERNAE_ZS_—FNA—HBE_ZT_JUF
A=+ —HAZR—RBRN—FHEEFNK
TN HBI@E A 2,000,000,000 JTHYFRIE ©

REE_Z-_—&E=A=1+—RALKNFE -
EERMIINERS TR RIMN_ZE_ZF
/Y A+ B 2| H3AY 78 # 7,300,000,000 T AR £
B[R B 485,371,000 tH B (ZBE=FF :
F B 8% 1,300,000,0007T) - FALAS f~f/)N Y
TREERARFEENFASZ - 1IN BER
TRE 7 20 P $R B 5 422,000,000 7T (= &
— T4 B 236,000,000 7T ) HIFE - 1E
BANERIETEIEEZA -
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9. Placements with the Exchange Fund (Continued) 9. JNEEEFFR (@)

The placements with the Exchange Fund are analysed as follows: INEE SRS :
The Group and HA KB R BEF
Custodian for PPP Fund and PPP
Samaritan Fund Minor Works Endowment Fund HLISS Fund
[Note 171 Projects Fund [Notes 21(b) and 23] [Note 16]
ERARBRTEES [Note 21(al] ATEREEER BEERFSEH
HREA NETREBEEES QAREHESEES TEES Total
[FteE 171 [FtaE21(a)] [KtaE21(b) R 231 [HteE161] st

At31March At31March At31March At31March At31March At31March At31March At31March At31March At31March
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HKE'000  HK$'000
20215 20204 2021 2020F 2021 2020 20215 20204 20215 2020%
3A31H 3A31B 3HA3E 3A3MB  3A3MA 3A3B 3A31H 3A31H 3A31H 3A31H
BT AMTrT BT ABTr  B%Tr B¥Tr  B%Tx  B%Tr  B¥Tr BT

Principal 6,000,000 6,000,000 - 7,300,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000 21,000,000 28,300,000
amount

e

Interest earned 446,010 216,017 - 404,370 625,063 657,428 240,614 53,630 1,311,687 1331445
but not

withdrawn at
the reporting
date
BERME
BRB RN
HFISIA
Accrued 74,703 57,184 - 70,876 123,134 98,043 60,734 46,491 258,571 272,594
interest

FEatAlE

6,520,713 6,273,201 - 7775246 10,748,197 10,755,471 5,301,348  57100,121 22,570,258 29,904,039

Less:

non-current (6,000,000 (¢,000,000) - - (10,000,000] {10,000,000) (5,000,000) (5,000,000 (21,000,000 (21,000,000]
portion

B FERE

il

Current 520,713 273,201 - 7775246 748,197 755,471 301,348 100,121 1,570,258 8,904,039
portion

mENES
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

10. Fixed income instruments

The fixed income instruments represent Hong Kong dollar
certificates of deposits and bonds with maturity periods within
five years from the date of purchase. The investment yields at the
reporting date were between 1.28% and 2.74% (2020: between
2.63% and 3.18%).

At 31 March 2021, the fixed income instruments held by the Group
and HA are as follows:

B 5 e 2 Bf 5F

10. BEARIR

BEEABTERERBEAHETAFAE
BB TERERES  EREBEHRER
N F1.28% £2.74% 2B (T T & ;
FE2.63% E£3.18% <) °

R=2-—£=A=+—0 SEREER
HAMEEARTANT ;

The Groupand HA S B R EBEH

At 31 March 2021

At 31 March 2020

HK$°000 HK$'000

20214 3H31H 20203 A31H

BT BT

Maturing within one year —SF R FI|H] 148,000 1,899,257
Maturing between one and five years —Z A G A} 250,000 -
398,000 1,899,257

The above financial assets are neither past due nor impaired. The
credit quality of these assets is disclosed in note 3(a) while the
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair
value of these assets as stated in note 3(b](ii). The Group does not
hold any collateral as security.

11. Inventories

The Group and HA RE R BEF

tliemEEY SBBAMINE BLE
ENERERRERHES(a) - ERER
RAMEERR RS (b)) AFIELE
ENAREE - KREYRSEEAERRE
B

At 31 March 2021

At 31 March 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

2021 %3 H31H 20203 A31H

BT T BT

Drugs &Y 1,483,920 1,409,632
Medical consumables BB m 1,010,265 285,583
General consumables —#%)E 47,810 19,527
2,541,995 1,714,742

The carrying value of inventories has been adjusted to its net
realisable value by HK$134,564,000 (2020: HK$2,820,000) during
the year ended 31 March 2021.

Independent Auditor’s Report and Audited Financial Statements B ZEEMRE R SEZXNTEHRR 95

REBE-_FT-_—F=A=1+—HLZHE-
15 15 1) R 2 {8 {299 B % ¥ 134,564,000 7T
(ZZT=T4 : 5%2,820,0007T) EL AR
BHME -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

12. Accounts receivable

The Group and HA KRB R BEF

B 5 R 2 Bf 5E

12. FEUREBRFR

At 31 March 2021 At 31 March 2020

HK$'000 HK$ 000

20213 A31R 20203 A31H

BET T BT

Bills receivable [note 12(a)] FEURER 2 [Ff5E 12 (a)] 380,710 378,900

Accrued income [note 12(b)] FEETIRA [F3E 12 (b)] 56,443 34,516

437,153 413,416

Less: Allowance for expected credit losses [notes 12(c) and 12(d)] (79,091) (68,700)
B TEEME ABABE K12 (c) R 12(d)]

358,062 344,716

(a)  Ageing analysis of bills receivable is set out below:

The Group and HA RSB R BEF

(a) RUSREREIMAOT

At 31 March 2021 At 31 March 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

20213 A31H 20203 A31H

BET T BT

Within 30 days 30 HA 223,796 202,431
Between 31 and 60 days 31 £60 H 63,598 90,305
Between 61 and 90 days 61 £ 90 H 16,988 26,047
Over 90 days #2890 B 76,328 60,117
380,710 378,900

The Group’s policy in respect of patient billing is as follows:

(i) Patients attending outpatient and accident and emergency
services are required to pay fees before services are performed.

(i) Private patients and non-eligible persons are required to pay
deposit on admission to hospital.

(iii) Interim bills are sent to patients during hospitalisation. Final
bills are sent if the outstanding amounts have not been settled
on discharge.

(iv] Administrative charge is imposed on late payments of medical
fees and charges for medical services provided on or after
1 July 2007. The administrative charge is imposed at 5% of
the outstanding fees past due for 60 days from issuance of the
bills, subject to a maximum charge of HK$1,000 for each bill.
An additional 10% of the outstanding fees are imposed if the
bills remain outstanding 90 days from issuance of the bills,
subject to a maximum additional charge of HK$10,000 for each
bill.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

12. Accounts receivable (Continued)

(b)

(v] Legal action will be instituted for outstanding bills where
appropriate. Patients who have financial difficulties may be
considered for waiver of fees charged.

An ageing analysis of bills receivables that are past due but not
impaired is as follows:

B 5 e 2 Bf 5F

12. MEURERFR (@)

(v) EEERBROBRFIZERBERRIOE
B8 - ARERBEORA - KEEE
BT ABRRR

90 50185 45 39 {8 0 78 40 B 6 10 B 0 0
o

The Groupand HA S B R EBEH

At 31 March 2021 At 31 March 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000
202143 A31H 20203 A31H
BET T BETT

Past due by #1585 :
Within 30 days 30 B A 180,933 166,717
Between 31 and 60 days 31 £ 60 H 43,771 73,234
Between 61 and 90 days 61 290 H 6,482 14,336
Over 90 days #8890 H 13,499 8,330
244,685 262,617

Bills receivables that are past due but not impaired include
outstanding debts to be settled by Government departments,
charitable organisations or other institutions for whom the credit
risk associated with these receivables is relatively low. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Accrued income for hospital fees and charges represent contract
assets, which are recognised when the Group has provided services
before the debtors pay consideration or before payment is due.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

12. Accounts receivable (Continued)

(c) At 31 March 2021, bills receivable of HK$136,025,000 (2020:
HK$116,283,000) were impaired by HK$79,091,000 (2020:
HK$68,700,000). The ageing analysis of these receivables is as
follows:

The Groupand HA S B R EEH

B 5 R 2 Bf 5E

12 r-_LIyB'F(T}\(mE

(c)

RZEZ—F=ZA=+—H &K
136,025,000 (= & = T &F: o3
116,283,000 7T ) E’JFEM&EEE@ j
#79,091,000C(= & = & F: %% e
68,700,000 L) ° = LLFEUN AR BB A

s

At 31 March 2021 At 31 March 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

20213 A318 202043 A31H

BT BT

Within 30 days 30 HA 42,863 35,714
Between 31 and 60 days 31 £60 H 19,827 17,071
Between 61 and 90 days 61 £ 90 H 10,506 11,711
Over 90 days #83890 H 62,829 51,787
136,025 116,283

Movements in the allowance for expected credit loss of bills
receivable are as follows:

The Group and HA RSB R BEF

FEM AR ETRHME IR BB EHM T

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

BZE2021%F HZE2020F

SA3MALFEE 3A3NALFE

BT BT

At the beginning of the year IR 4]) 68,700 80,089
Additional provision B3 N 56,489 50,213
Uncollectible amounts written off 5 $& &) AU B 508 (46,098) (61,602)
At the end of the year 4% 79,091 68,700

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
fair value of receivable mentioned above. The Group does not hold
any collateral as security.

98 Hospital Authority Annual Report E&Fx B2 FE 3R 2020-2021

EHRER  HAREERRE L ERERK
AT EE - SEWARFEA A ERRIE
-
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12. Accounts receivable (Continued) 12. MEURERFR (@)

(d) The Group applies the simplified approach to provide expected  (d) SEER (EBIBEIHRELRER) F IFFIREH

credit losses as prescribed by HKFRS 9, which requires lifetime ZYEHERABRET L - ERVERE
expected credit losses to be recognised from initial recognition of YRR R R AT B TRHE X - Ret
the receivables. To measure the expected credit losses, accounts =EHEREBL  BUEEREZRBERMNE
receivable have been grouped based on shared credit risk BREBEBMEHRES A o BUARE R
characteristics and the days past due. The gross and net carrying TH A AR EDFE R F A R a8 E A
amounts of the accounts receivable and the lifetime expected credit BERAFTAT :

losses analysis are as follows:

The Groupand HA S B R EBEH

Lifetime Expected Weighted Average
Credit Loss Lifetime Expected
Gross Carrying HK$°000 Net Carrying Credit Loss
Amount BEFE Amount Rate
HK$’000 BT HK$’000 hnREF13
IRE#AE FERBX SREFE BHER
BT BT T BT T ‘A=

At 31 March 2021 A 20213 A 31 H
Within 6 months 6 & A A 391,530 (44,186) 347,344 1%
Between 6 and 12 months 6 & 12 1 A 20,428 (9,791 10,637 48%
Over 12 months #B3# 12 {& A 25,195 (25,114) 81 100%

437,153 (79,091) 358,062

At 31 March 2020 R 202053 B 31 H
Within 6 months 6 & A A 383,546 (42,038) 341,508 1%
Between 6 and 12 months 6 = 12 1 A 9,747 (6,745) 3,002 69%
Over 12 months & 12 1§ A 20,123 (19,917) 206 99%

413,416 (68,700) 344,716
The lifetime expected credit loss balances disclosed above include P RN EEFERNEREAEAN
HK$51,234,000 (2020: HK$42,431,000) which were related to R B IEE® 512340000 (ZE -5 F ¢
receivables individually determined to be impaired. These mainly B 42,431,000 7T ) B2 {8 R R TE Rl B9 & U
related to non-eligible persons, the recoverability of which are RERR  F2PLETAERAL  #A
considered to be low after taking all possible debt recovery actions. EERERFT A AT AR AT B MM PTAE OR R - 1B K
R EIE K -
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13. Other receivables 13. EthEURERFR

The Group and HA KRB R BEF

At 31 March 2021 At 31 March 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
20213 A31H 20203 A31H
BT T BETFT
Donations receivable FEIBZK 52,691 72,167
Interest receivable F&WFI S 89,480 49,494
Receivable from the Government for reimbursement or refund of 297,849 355,629
expenditure incurred on capital projects [note 13(a)]
B &R EEATIZE B SR BRI 13 (a)]
Others E At 82,340 152,096
522,360 629,386
Other receivables do not contain impaired assets. The balances H RS EREESE  S#HEERRE
mainly represent outstanding debts to be settled by Government BATERFT - S E s At iiB R ERHR
departments, charitable organisations or other institutions for FoBERKERSERONEERRIEER
whom the credit risk associated with these receivables is relatively & ERERNEANGEERRE X E
low. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is JEWFIER R L BE - S EIWARIFH ERE
the fair value of each class of receivables mentioned above. The B -

Group does not hold any collateral as security.

(a)  Movements in the balance with the Government for funding the  (a) BAStEARTIZIE B AP 5 X 0B 54 £4
expenditure incurred on capital projects are as follows: g

The Group and HA KRB R BER

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

BZE20214% BE 2020 F

SA3TALFE 3ABMHIFE

BET T BT

At the beginning of the year A& #]) 355,629 (263,219)

Government funding received on capital projects (3,813,049) (2,829,079)
AR TAZIE B W B e BURT R

Amount incurred on capital projects £ZN T2 B FT 4 208 3,755,269 3,447,927

At the end of the year IR 4% 297,849 355,629
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STATEMENTS

14. Deposits and prepayments

The Group &

B 5 e 2 Bf 5F

14. BERIATFRIA

At 31 March 2021

At 31 March 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000
2021%3H31H 20203 A 31H
BT BT T
Utility and other deposits 45,573 30,449
AREEREMERE
Prepayments to Government departments 137,313 97,100
A AR PI TR 8O FIR
Maintenance contracts and other prepayments 430,371 199,596
REA K R EAM TN TR
613,257 327,145

At 31 March 2021

At 31 March 2020

HK$°000 HK$'000
20214 3H31H 20203 A31H
BT T BT
Utility and other deposits 45,449 30,337
NAEREREMZES
Prepayments to Government departments 137,313 97,100
A AR PI TR AN BO R
Maintenance contracts and other prepayments 430,366 199,596
REAH REMIENFA
613,128 327,033
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

15. Cash and bank balances

B 5 ¥ 2 Bfd 51

15. IRERIRTTE

mD IE‘?

The Group and HA KRB R BEF

At 31 March 2021

At 31 March 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000
202143 H31H 20203 H31H
BT T BETT
Cash at bank and in hand R{TFER R FHEE 834,916 782,386
Bank deposits with original maturity within three months 1,690,830 11,323,620
R EE A DB =1E B eV IRTTIF K
Cash and cash equivalents 3 & KIR & EE 2,525,746 12,106,006
Bank deposits with original maturity over three months 29,882,950 8,135,161
R R E B A =18 A R IR1TER
32,408,696 20,241,167
The cash and bank balances included bank deposits designated for fﬁ@&ﬁﬂﬁ EHREENETIRERBEEESRK
Minor Works Projects Fund and PPP Fund of HK$6,276,543,000 RILERERSMIEERITER P35

(2020: HK$159,255,000) and HK$186,443,000 (2020:
HK$125,097,000) respectively. The effective interest rate on short
term bank deposits is between 0.001% and 0.6% (2020: 0.001% and
3.4%). These deposits have an average maturity of 64 days (2020:
57 days).

At 31 March 2021, the Group and HA had undrawn banking facilities
of HK$5,450,000,000 (2020: HK$1,350,000,000).

16. Designated fund - Home Loan Interest
Subsidy Scheme

The Group offers eligible employees under the scheme an
interest subsidy to finance the purchase of a residence in Hong
Kong. Eligibility under the scheme is primarily determined by the
employee’s length of service. The amount of subsidy generally
represents half of the interest rate payable by the eligible employee
up to a maximum of 6% per annum. However, eligibility and the
maximum amount of subsidies granted are subject to a number of
restrictions as further defined in the scheme.

The scheme is funded by HA through the recurrent subvention
from the Government. A designated fund has been set aside
for the scheme. As agreed with HKMA, HK$5,000,000,000 has
been placed with the Exchange Fund since 19 August 2019 for
a period of six years during which HA would be able to request
one single withdrawal of an amount equal to or not more than
HK$2,000,000,000 during the period from 1 April 2023 to 31 March
2024. The remaining fund balance is maintained in designated bank
accounts which was included under cash and bank balances.
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16.

E#6,276,543,000 L (ZZE ZFF : B
159,255,000 7T ) K& 7 % 186,443,000 7T
(ZZ-T4F : &% 125,097,0007T) - L
BITFERMNERFEAE0.001% £0.6% 2
M(ZZ=Z4F:0001% £3.4% 2 @) -

BEUERRFHEEA ALK (ZE-TE:
57X) °

R-ZE-_—F=ZA=+—HB £EKEED
RENARIRTTIR (558 & 751 5,450,000,000
7T (ZZ T4 j#1,350,000,0007T) °

EERE — BEESMNIRIRM
st &l
BBULEHE - SEALERERRE—E

SRR - BOMMERNEBERR - B8
ITERERNRENRBFE - 5?—95%%5 i
REEREERNNBEN—F HSR/E
F6%° T ERIEMERS KE%E;J'J.#
BIH)—LLARTEPTIR B

ZATER BT BB BBUTREE /BT LA
55)] BB —SETES - AN
BERM B2 EHMNE BT - RIEEE
)%Eﬁiﬁ B BERB-_T—NF
J\ A+ LB ##7%8 # 5,000,000,000 7T B 7%
BERINERES  AHE/NF HEBEER
AIE—ZE-=—FMOA—HE-T-_WF=H
=+ —HERRBRR—FEESENRTE
@78 #2,000,000,000 TTHI TR IE - E 4 &5
BFRIEEIRITPON « S| AR RIBITEE
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STATEMENTS
RIS B ® S8R

17. Balance with Samaritan Fund 17.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2013, the Government
injected HK$10,000,000,000 to support the operation of the
Samaritan Fund, which was established in 1950 by resolution
of the Legislative Council for the purpose of providing financial
assistance to needy patients. As instructed by the Government,
HK$4,000,000,000 was vested immediately in the Samaritan Fund.
The balance of HK$6,000,000,000 not immediately required by
the Samaritan Fund was placed with the Exchange Fund since
8 November 2012 by way of a credit facility entered into between
HA and HKMA for a fixed period of six years. As agreed with HKMA,
HA renewed the principal amount of HK$6,000,000,000 for another
six years at its maturity on 8 November 2018, during which HA
would be able to request one single withdrawal of an amount equal
to or not more than HK$3,000,000,000 during the period from
1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023.

As HA is acting as a custodian for the Samaritan Fund, the
cumulative investment return up to 31 March 2021 was recorded
together with the principal amount as balance with Samaritan
Fund, which is unsecured, interest free and denominated in Hong
Kong dollar.

The balance with Samaritan Fund is analysed as follows:

RBE-_ZE—=6=F=+—81tz8
HEE  BARAHENTES TE B
10,000,000,0007C * AT HE S HEE -
BOSH A SR — N AT FEERREK
o BMRRARENRAREED - RIR
BRATHER + BB ¥ 4,000,000,000 7T H) X
HAR AR S - MR T ARBEEZREE
6,000,000,0007C * RIBFEE RESE BT
FIMEEREE =T —&+—F/\Bit
BFAINEES - FHETE ANE - IS
M BERTHRIENEELRS - BREBER
HEE R - 5%ZF 8% 6,000,000,0007T
WASER=Z—N\F+—ANBEHEET
RINEES - BE G HIRBERAAE
—E-__—_FWA—HBHE-_ZTE-_=F=A
=T —HERk—RBRER—ERESENRTHE
3B 3,000,000,000 TTHYFKIA ©

ANBEREEARIBNTESNREA
EeBE-_T-_—E=A=1+—HILFEEHN
ZERERRERANS - EFIEREEFIRE
SiERR  EEERLEBEREE  UWETA
B o

RS ESEROTAT

The Group and HA S B R EBEF

At 31 March 2021

At 31 March 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

20213 H31H 202063 A31H

BT T BT T

Principal amount A" & 6,000,000 6,000,000

Interest earned but not withdrawn at the reporting date 446,010 216,017
FERE AP ER BRI B A

Accrued interest JEFTFI B 74,703 57,184

6,520,713 6,273,201

Less: non-current portion J& : JERENFEL 5 (6,000,000) (6,000,000

Current portion &N & 520,713 273,201
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18. Creditors and accrued charges 18. BIEANEMNER
The Group &£ &
At 31 March 2021 At 31 March 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
20213 A31H 202063 HA31H
BT BT
Trade payables [note 18(a)] 1,372,693 1,042,960
FERTE SRR HIEE 18 (a)]
Accrued charges and other payables [note 18(b]] 8,658,763 8,209,241
FER B AR R E A BRI IFEE 18 (b)]
Contributions from the governing bodies of ex-subvented hospitals - 2

for capital projects [note 18(c]]
AT B ESBr B A S B E R TARTE B AR R IB (3£ 18 (¢)]
Current account with the Government [note 18(d]] 11,734,194 7,645,560
EARRAT 2 R SRAERR B [(MIFE18(d)]

21,765,650 16,897,763

At 31 March 2021 At 31 March 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
20213 A31H 2020 3 A 31H
BT T BT
Trade payables [note 18(al] 1,372,693 1,042,960
FERTE SR IMIEE 18 (a)]
Accrued charges and other payables [note 18(b]] 8,626,538 8,196,279
FERT B A R EABRRKIFEE 18 (b)]
Contributions from the governing bodies of ex-subvented hospitals - 2
for capital projects [note 18(c]]
A B BB B A M S Bt B R TAR 18 B AR FRIB [M7E 18 (¢)]
Current account with the Government [note 18(d]] 11,734,194 7,645,560
BT < PSR BR B [H3E 18 (d)]
Current account with a subsidiary 32,102 12,856
HI RS 2 BRI AR B
21,765,527 16,897,657
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18. Creditors and accrued charges (Continued) . BEARENER @
(al  Anageing analysis of trade payables is set out below: (a) ENESERFOFRESITMOT
The Groupand HA S B R EBEH
At 31 March 2021 At 31 March 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
2021 %3 H31H 20203 A31H
BT T BT
Within 30 days 30 H A 1,300,215 949,635
Between 31 and 60 days 31 £ 60 H 29,916 40,086
Between 61 and 90 days 61 £ 90 H 29,267 16,414
Over 90 days #3890 H 13,295 36,825
1,372,693 1,042,960
All trade payables as at 31 March 2021 are expected to be settled —EC—F=A=T—HANENESERNE
within one year. The Group has maintained adequate cash flows R—FRM - EEEERHARBEE KIR
and banking facilities for settlement of trade payables. TREFHNENE SRR -

(b)  Accrued charges and other payables of the Group and HA  (b) SEREBERNENERRAMEREE

included accrual for annual leave of HK$2,834,102,000 AW FE R B H B 2834,102,0007T
(2020: HK$2,405,096,000) and contract gratuity accrual of (ZZ2ZFF 71 2,405,096,00070) * LAK
HK$2,433,261,000 (2020: HK$2,130,083,000). & &t |/:|\ 4 B & B ¥ 2,433,261,000 7T

(ZZ—F4F : ##2,130,083,0007T) °

(c)  Movements in the contributions from the governing bodies of  (c) HIJ?@EJJ & B BB R E R TAR1E B AR
ex-subvented hospitals for capital projects are as follows: BEBINT -

The Group and HA RSB R BEF

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

BE2021%F BE2020F

3A31ALEE 3A3TBILFE

BT BT

At the beginning of the year IR 4] 2 -

Contributions received from the governing bodies of 67,112 20,218

ex-subvented hospitals on capital projects

PRI R B BB B B A e i it 7R A28 B AR IR

Amount incurred on capital projects EZR T 1218 B A4 50IA (67,114) (20,216)

At the end of the year IEF4% - 2
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18. Creditors and accrued charges (Continued) . BEAKRETER @
(d)  The balance mainly included Government funding that was already ~ (d) #&#EZEEEWIIRTARBIEREET SIS
received and set aside for designated programmes or specific FEIEE 2 BEBUTER - a0

items such as:

() the unspent balance of HK$2,282,000,000 (2020: () AESRFEEMRBESRE (20198 K
HK$1,927,000,000) for combatting the novel coronavirus RER]) BIEHERF ﬂiﬁﬁ &R
(“COVID-19") pandemic. Out of the various funding committed 2,282,000,000 (=T =T F : B
by the Government for enhancing support to the Group 1,927,000,0007T ) ° St BT 73 00 58 %
in combatting the COVID-19 (e.g. HK$4,700,000,000 from EEBYHHN2010TRFSHREBMm
the Anti-epidemic Fund and HK$3,044,000,000 additional AEERN S ERE R (ﬁﬂﬁﬁf?f%%%ém
subvention), HK$6,819,000,000 has been received by the 7B 4,700,000,000 JT N2 BB B TR B M
Group (2020: HK$2,350,000,000], and HK$4,114,000,000 3,044,000,0007) ' REBE=ZT=—%F
was utilised and charged to the statement of income and ZA=T—BIEZHBFE %@Eqﬁl
expenditure for the financial year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: EI|75%6,819,000,000 T (ZE T4 :
HK$423,000,000). 7 ¥ 2,350,000,0007T ) + I B & A

7 ¥ 4,114,000, 00077:&33]\@5&7
X HEEERRN(ZZE_ZF: B
423,000,0007T) °

(i) HK$1,280,000,000 designated for future use, e.g. continue (i) ¥ 5E1F B 1% (£ F #9%8 # 1,280,000,000
to support the anti-epidemic measures in particular the T IR EYUR M - LHE LRI
operation of HKICC, as well as medical and IT equipment 1L B8 BT B R R IR I R D Y E R - AR
maintenance and replacement. TEBRE R A MBI GRRBREFE R

19. Deposits received 19. BiiR®E
The Groupand HA B R EEH
At 31 March 2021 At 31 March 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
202143 A31H 20203 A31H
BET T BEFT
Patient deposits [note 19(a)] 5 Az % [ K71 19 (a)] 45,553 27,989
Other deposits [note 19(b)] EfthiZ® [FI5E 19 (b)] 415,083 365,727
460,636 393,716
(a)  Patient deposits represent contract liabilities and mainly consist of ~ (a) WAEESBRANEE  FBEEFALR
deposits received from private patients and non-eligible persons on RS A RIEFRF & é‘T%/\i)\l‘a?hFﬁSEﬁE’]

admission to hospital services. The amounts are recognised before Be  AEFEESREIRHRISAIHER - B%

the Group provides services. Except for the amounts overpaid TENOFEGRELRHRA J«A&Q%

which will be refunded to patients and deposits for privately BEHNRS  2EAERSREMTE2() E’J

purchased medical items, the full balance is recognised as income BRIEERN T A BRFEEERZAE RSP

in the statement of income and expenditure in the next financial HERREA -

year according to the accounting policy set out in note 2(e).

(b)  Other deposits mainly consist of deposits from contractors which ~ (b) HESF B EEANEZRS - (EAER

are held as securities for due performance of the contractors’
warranties, undertaking and obligations under contracts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL 871 5 ¥R 2R Bfd 5
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20. Death and disability liabilities 20. SiCKRIBERBNEE
Under their terms of employment, HA employees are entitled to RIBEBGNT  BERNEEFTZARTR
death and disability benefit cover. This is funded by HA through the BEEARE - ZaTEIREE REBBTH
recurrent subvention from the Government. KEMEETAER) -

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

The Groupand HA S B R EBEH

BEABRTAERNFELT

At 31 March 2021

At 31 March 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000
202143 A31H 20203 A31H
BT T BETFIT
Present value of funded obligations J¥ & & FMHIRE 294,818 321,885
Fair value of plan assets ST EIEEMN LA EME (4,708) (14,465)
290,110 307,420

The movement in the present value of funded obligations is as FAEEEZBREZEBNT

follows:

The Group and HA KRB R BE S

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

BZE 20215 BZE 2020F

3A31HLEE 3A31THILFE

BT T BT T

At the beginning of the year R ] 321,885 294,747
Current service cost BRITARTS B 50,490 43,533
Interest cost FBF 2,509 4,884
Benefits paid E4S&FI (5,060) (7,950)
Remeasurement of disability liability {3 B FEHHE (24,911) (4,629)
Remeasurement of death liability St T @A EEEFFTE (50,095) (8,700)
At the end of the year IREF42 294,818 321,885
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20. Death and disability liabilities (Continued)

The movement in the fair value of plan assets is as follows:

The Groupand HA B R EEH

B 5 R 2 Bf 5E

. AR BRBNET @

SHEIEEN AR BEZENT

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

HZE2021F BZE 20204

SA3TALEE 3A3TBILFE

BET T BETT

At the beginning of the year R ) 14,465 21,264

Adjustment on plan assets (excluding interest income) (14,895) (7,646)
FTEIBEEMNFE (TBERNEWMA)

Employer contributions &£ 5K 10,198 8,797

Benefits paid E4S4& I (5,060) (7,950)

At the end of the year A 4% 4,708 14,465

The death benefits are insured by a group life insurance policy and
the current insurance policy covers the period up to 31 July 2021.
The fair value of plan assets was taken as the present value of the
expected death benefits with respect to the obligations covered by
the policy.

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of income
and expenditure and consolidated statement of comprehensive
income have been calculated by reference to an actuarial valuation
and are as follows:

The Group and HA KRB R BER

BERZABBASRRARERMILTRE
FIRE  BITREBAZERPE_T——F
tA=1—R8 -SHBEENAIABERRR
sHElEFIECRAMEENRE -

THRBREBEREGESLALESARTLE
REGAEERERR T IAER A -

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

BZE2021F BZE20204F

SA3IBLEE 3R BILFE

BT T BT

Current service cost JRITIREHA S 50,490 43,533

Interest cost F8FI52 2,509 4,884

Remeasurement of disability liability 5@ B E B E (24,911) (4,629)

Total, included in staff costs [note 25] 28,088 43,788
HEH (BEEEIRAR) [MizE25]

Remeasurement of death liability SE T8 F| EEEFFT=E (50,095) (8,700)

Adjustment on plan assets (excluding interest income) 14,895 7,646

FEIBEMNFR (MBENESWEA)
Total, included in other comprehensive income (35,200) (1,054)

#Et (BRERMEA RER)
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20. Death and disability liabilities (Continued) 20. FiCKRIGEBNETE @
Principal actuarial assumptions used in the actuarial valuation are REGLERBNEZRBERROT
as follows:

The Groupand HA S B R EBEH

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

HZE20215F BZE 2020F

3A3MHLLEE 3A3MAILEFE

% %

Discount rate AR 1.70 0.80

Assumed rate of future salary increases R AR R F S ILIE 2.90 3.10

The analysis below shows how the present value of the funded TANDTRIBEAT EERERZARE

obligations as at 31 March 2021 would have increased / (decreased) FH_ZE_—F=A=T—HIEEIHRE
as a result of the following changes in the principal actuarial g/ Osd) -

assumptions:

The Group and HA KRB R BEF

Increase in Decrease in

50 basis points 50 basis points

HK$'000 HK$'000

FIZF 50 BF FZpE 50 B 7

BT T BT T

Discount rate BAZR % (16,714) 18,421
Assumed rate of future salary increases AR R F S ILIE 17,744 (15,785)
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21. Deferred income 21, BT

The Group and HA KRB R BEF

Minor Works
Designated Projects Fund PPP Fund
donation fund  [Note 21(a)] [Note 21(b]]

[Note 2(f)] HK$°000 HK$'000
HK$°000 IR TR ARE Total
EEBBES HEES WEES®  HK$'000
[HEE2(H]  [BfEE21(a)] [KaE21(b)] st
BT BT BT BT
At 1 April 2019 R 20194 A1 H 651,811 8,907,209 790,406 10,349,426
Additions during the year /3 il 290,589 - 9,563 300,152
Interest earned PR S - 255,519 330,622 586,141
Transfers to deferred income - capital subventions - (22,034) - (22,034)
and capital donations
EREREER R — EAMB RERBE
Transfers to consolidated statement of income and expenditure (202,263) (1,288,539) (286,750)  (1,777,552)
BHAGRA AR
At 31 March 2020 720204 3 A 31 H 740,137 7,852,155 843,841 9,436,133
Additions during the year F 3 il 313,445 - 9,595 323,040
Interest earned PRI - 117,308 416,482 533,790
Transfers to deferred income - capital subventions - (1,829) - (1,829)
and capital donations
EREREER RS — ERHB RERBE
Transfers to consolidated statement of income and expenditure (360,809) (1,495,069) (403,312)  (2,259,190)
HRATHEREZHEER
At 31 March 2021 720213 A 31 H 692,773 6,472,565 866,606 8,031,944
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(a)

(b)

Minor Works Projects Fund

During the financial year ended 31 March 2014, the Government
advanced HK$13,000,000,000 (under Subhead 8083MM] to HA for
minor works projects to improve the existing facilities in public
hospitals and clinics. The one-off grant has replaced the annual
block funding allocation under Capital Works Reserve Fund -
Improvement Works Block Vote (Subhead 8100MX) and covers
minor works projects under five planned programmes, with
costing not more than HK$75 million for each individual item. The
five programmes are facility rejuvenation programme, capacity
enhancement programme, safe engineering programme, universal
accessibility programme and regular maintenance / minor works
and preparatory works for major capital works projects.

As approved by the Government, HA has placed HK$7,300,000,000
with the Exchange Fund over a period of six years since 11 April
2014 while the remaining funds have been managed internally and
invested within the ambit of HA's prevailing investment guidelines.
The approved grant, together with the related investment income,
will be fully used to meet the costs of the minor works projects in
the coming 10 years or so starting from April 2014. For the use of
funds, HA will continue to seek prior approval from the Government
for each individual item of expenditure to be funded by the one-off
grant, as has been the practice for the use of funds under Subhead
8100MX.

PPP Fund

The Government allocated to HA a sum of HK$10,000,000,000
on 31 March 2016 as an endowment fund (note 23] to generate
investment returns for regularising and enhancing ongoing
clinical PPP programmes, as well as developing new clinical PPP
programmes in future. HA can make use of the investment returns
together with the remaining balance of the one-off designated
funding provided previously to support the ongoing operation of the
PPP programmes commencing in April 2016.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2021, the Government
provided recurrent subvention of HK$9,595,000 (2020:
HK$9,563,000) to HA for pay adjustment of staff deployed on PPP
programmes. The subvention was transferred to the PPP Fund
and was recognised in the deferred income - PPP Fund when the
subvention was received.
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(a)

(b)

PRTRERES

REBEE-Z—ME=A=+—HItWIHKE
FEM - B8 2% % 13,000,000,000 7T (5
B 8083MMIE ) TEE R « LAfEIT/\A
T#RBEE HERAUBRRZAHNRER
e BEE—RMBRRERETFER/ELRT
EHELZE — XS TENEEREZR(HE
8100MX) + Wiz A E#EE s EHETHE LR
ABEH 7,500 BILA)/ N AIERE TR - AR
BIPIERMEIEETE - RIEERAFE - &
SHEETE] - MERAAGEBITATE - AR
ERME (/N TRREBETIEENER
Tt

BT BERAE - R —FmA+—H
H#E#57,300,000,000 TTIEASNEE S - AH
NEF B EABER  WREBEBET
WICE R EHEITIVE - BB ZUERE @A
BUA - RSN BA - —NFEMAREER
ROTFHDATIRERARY - HRESH
/A BERENABAFERS B 8100MX
BETRESWOHE  RE—IBEREDNE
BRI 78 B S EEEF I -

DLEMEES

RZB—RFE=A=+—H BFAEREESR
5% 7% #10,000,000,000 7T 3% 3 BB R E &
(FifaE23) - MAPAEHRE QHAEEEEM
BB EETOERAR AL EBIETE - AR
ERRETHNE - BERAMNBKRED
R BERIBUTZ B4R T 8 — R4 E BRI
e FEEEN T RFEHRHETHR
BT o

REBEE_T-_—F=ZA=+—HILHHK
FE - BFMAEEREHER9,5950007T
(ZZ—Z 4 : B%9,563,0007T) & H MM
B) - FYEATLE R IERT S8 B BN ZE -
BRARBNREIRERT AL EBIERES
W ERAELTWEZ — ARERIEES -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

22. Deferred income - capital subventions and
capital donations

B 5 R 2 Bf 5E

22. W — SIRFHANRZ SN

=E]

nB8

The Group =&

Capital Capital
subventions donations
[Note 2(r]] [Note 2(f]]
HK$’000 HK$°000 Total
=N LY BB HK$°000
[FtaE2(r)]  [KtEE2(0)] st
BET T BET T BT T
At 1 April 2019 72201954 A1 5,263,364 1,244,025 6,507,389
Additions during the year AN 1,513,944 130,838 1,644,782
Transfers from Minor Works Projects Fund 58/ N Ti2IEE &£ & 22,034 - 22,034
Transfers to consolidated statement of income and expenditure (1,107,972 (159,394) (1,267,366)
HRTHEe R EER
At 31 March 2020 20203 531 H 5,691,370 1,215,469 6,906,839
Additions during the year 5 A3 il 2,072,805 120,349 2,193,154
Transfers from Minor Works Projects Fund ## B/ T12IEE E& 1,829 - 1,829
Transfers to consolidated statement of income and expenditure (1,266,063) (166,021) (1,432,084)
ERT GRS EE
At 31 March 2021 7202143 A 31 H 6,499,941 1,169,797 7,669,738

Capital Capital
subventions donations
[Note 2(r)]  [Note 2(f]]
HK$’000 HK$’000 Total
BB BEEH HK$°000
[BtaE2(r)]  [BtEF2(f)] st
BT BT T BT T
At 1 April 2019 72201954 A1 H 5,263,364 1,244,025 6,507,389
Additions during the year F 3 il 1,508,100 130,838 1,638,938
Transfers from Minor Works Projects Fund B3 8/ NI TRIBER E& 22,034 - 22,034
Transfers to consolidated statement of income and expenditure (1,107,589] (159,394)  (1,266,983]
ERAGE B EE
At 31 March 2020 720204 3 A 31 H 5,685,909 1,215,469 6,901,378
Additions during the year F R3& il 2,065,780 120,349 2,186,129
Transfers from Minor Works Projects Fund 8588/ N TI2IHE E& 1,829 - 1,829
Transfers to consolidated statement of income and expenditure (1,260,697) (166,021)  (1,426,718)
HRATHEREZEER
At 31 March 2021 7202143 A 31 H 6,492,821 1,169,797 7,662,618
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23.

24.

Public-Private Partnership Endowment Fund

As approved by the Government, the endowment fund of
HK$10,000,000,000 has been placed with the Exchange Fund for a
period of six years since 12 July 2016.

Hospital / clinic fees and charges

The charges for hospital services provided by the Group are levied
in accordance with those stipulated in the Gazette. Since the
Government has established a set of policies and procedures on
granting fee waivers to the needy patients, the hospital / clinic fees
and charges recognised as income in the consolidated statement
of income and expenditure are stated net of such waivers. The
amount of hospital / clinic fees and charges waived for the financial
year ended 31 March 2021 amounted to HK$992,836,000 (2020:
HK$1,032,265,000).

Hospital / clinic fees and charges (net of waivers) are derived over
time and at a point in time in the following categories:

B 5 e 2 Bf 5F

23.

24.

rTERFENE S

B EBERA _T—R"FLtA+T AR
1475 10,000,000,000 Tt BV B AR F RN
EES - REIREF -

&b / S BENE

EEMREENEERYS  ERES®RAT
KR ERMBERER - ARBFESIET
—ERTEREERERAZRRENBR
2R MEGEKRIEERTHERBK
AREERT / 2EME  ENRTELRR
HE -ERE_E-_—F=A=+—A8H1
ZHBFEERN  ERERER / 2BEIRE
A751992,836,000 L (ZE=ZF | Bk
1,032,265,000 7T) °

THIR B/ 2B E (EHBRRRE
B])E-BRBEAREX KRS

The Group 58

At a point

Over time intime Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
E-BREEA  EE-EH st
BET T BETT BET T

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &Z2021$3HA31 HLFE
Inpatient fees {E BTt & 618,628 - 618,628
Outpatient fees FI2INE - 1,180,883 1,180,883
Itemised charges D IEU & 56,132 2,879,842 2,935,974
Other medical fees E b B8 B UL 2 1,524 100,081 101,605
676,284 4,160,806 4,837,090

For the year ended 31 March 2020 B8ZE£ 20203 A 31 AL FE
Inpatient fees {E BT & 733,826 - 733,826
Outpatient fees FI2 UL E - 1,275,450 1,275,450
Itemised charges 7Y E 104,304 2,615,775 2,720,079
Other medical fees E fth B E U & 1,187 96,596 97,783
839,317 3,987,821 4,827,138
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25. Staff costs

The Group 58

(a)

B 5 ¥ 2 Bfd 51

25. 8T AR

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

HK$’000 HK$ 000
HE20214 HZE 20204
SANHLEE 3AMBLTFE
BT T BT
Basic salaries and other short term employee benefits 53,801,163 49,927,403
BRS¢ REMSEEESER
Post-employment benefits Bf Bt & F :
- Contribution to HA Provident Fund Scheme [note 25(al] 2,883,187 2,872,679
BRERRAESTEIMRIMFE25(a)]
- Contribution to Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme [note 25(b]] 952,484 856,220
RTESFT R MIEE 25 (b))
Death and disability benefits [note 20] 28,088 43,788
ST RAEEREF [HizE20]
57,664,922 53,700,090

HA Provident Fund Scheme (“HAPFS”)

The HAPFS is a defined contribution scheme. The current scheme
was established on 1 April 2003 and governed by its Trust Deed and
Rules dated 29 January 2003, and registered under section 18 of
the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (“ORSO").

Most employees who have opted for HA terms of employment
are eligible to join the HAPFS on a non-contributory basis. The
HAPFS is a defined contribution scheme as all benefits are
defined in relation to contributions except that a minimum death
benefit equating to twelve months’ salary applies on the death
of a member. However, when the member’s account balance is
less than his twelve months’ scheme salary, the difference will be
contributed by the Death and Disability Scheme of the Group.

The monthly normal contribution by the Group is currently set at
15% of each member’s monthly basic salary. The percentage of
benefit entitlement, receivable by the employee on resignation or
retirement, increases with the length of service.

At 31 March 2021, the total membership was 28,202 (2020:
28,358). The scheme’s net asset value as at 31 March 2021 was
HK$79,407,982,000 (2020: HK$62,507,776,000).
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(ZZT T4 : ##62,507,776,0007C) °



(b)

Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPFS”)

In accordance with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, the Group set up a MPFS by participating in master
trust schemes. HA permanent employees can choose between the
HAPFS and the MPFS while contract and temporary employees are
required to join the MPFS unless otherwise exempted.

The Group’s contributions to MPFS are determined according
to each member’s terms of employment. Members' mandatory
contributions are fixed at 5% of monthly salary up to a maximum of
HK$1,500 per month.

At 31 March 2021, the total membership was 71,897 (2020: 66,559).
During the financial year ended 31 March 2021, total members’
contributions were HK$821,004,000 (2020: HK$732,090,000). The
net asset value as at 31 March 2021, including assets transferred
from members’ previous employment, was HK$13,198,118,000
(2020: HK$9,581,924,000).

Other operating expenses comprise office supplies, hospital
supplies, non-capitalised project expenditure and other
administrative expenses. For the financial year ended 31 March
2021, other operating expenses included an accrual for auditor’s
remuneration of HK$2,114,000 (2020: HK$2,122,000).
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M BB R FR 4R RE A 821,004,000 7T
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL 871 75 ¥ = i 5E
STATEMENTS

27. Remuneration of Members of the Board and 27. ABENhERSHITHAS

Five Highest Paid Executives BodM =

(a)  No Board members are remunerated for the services provided in ~ (a) FIEHEAREXENALTIREENUKE S
the capacity as Board members. PIRELARTS M SEER BN & o

(b)  The remuneration of the five highest paid executives (including  (b) FAMEIXAEBEXNTUTLERS
the Chief Executive, Cluster Chief Executives, Directors and other FHITHAE (BREITHRAR - BERE - X
division heads of the Head Office, and Hospital Chief Executives), B A U R R H AL R I E B BT TR
which comprised basic salaries and other short term employee ME) WMe - EPEFAELRT € REAM
benefits and post-employment benefits, and is included in the staff RHESEF REERERER

costs for the year, is as follows:

For the year ended
31 March 2021

HK$’000
BZE2021 5
Name of Executives / Position 3BA31HILEE
THRABHSR /B BT T
Dr Tony KO Pat-sing =2 4
Chief Executive {TE 485, 6,165
Dr Albert LO Chi-yuen EiRE
Cluster Chief Executive (Kowloon Central] JLEE R B 4482 5,816
Dr LUK Che-chung FEGIBEE 4=
Cluster Chief Executive (Hong Kong East) & & R B 4348 85 5,816
Dr LO Su-vui ZBEE
Cluster Chief Executive (New Territories East) #7152 SR B 4848 85 5,546
Dr TOM Kam-tim & #5735
Cluster Chief Executive (Kowloon East) JLEE SR B A4 ES 5,497
28,840
Note: All executives do not receive any variable remuneration o FTAITEA B N EEL R IR B A A

related to performance. TIEFEHBN o
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%@Zé&ﬁ% SETEA
M (&

27. Remuneration of Members of the Boardand 27. X
Five Highest Paid Executives (Continued) =

For the year ended
31 March 2020

HK$’000
BZE 20204
Name of Executives / Position HK$°000 3A3MALEE
THRABMA BN BT T BT T
Dr Albert LO Chi-yuen EiR &
Cluster Chief Executive (Kowloon Central) JUBER B4 488 5,814
Dr LUK Che-chung FEFSEREE &
Cluster Chief Executive (Hong Kong East) 7 & R B #8485 5,814
Dr Tony KO Pat-sing kP& &=
Chief Executive TTIAREL * 4,108
Director (Cluster Services) B A8 AR T /8 85 * 1,637 5,745
Dr LO Su-vui #REE4
Cluster Chief Executive (New Territories East) 75 SR B 4848 25 5,441
Dr TOM Kam-tim =87 & £
Cluster Chief Executive (Kowloon East) J1AESRE A8 4225 5,434
28,248

Note: All executives do not receive any variable remuneration B PTAITEA B 3 N EEL 3R 3R B 8 1Y

related to performance. IEFRHN -

* During the year ended 31 March 2020, Dr LEUNG Pak-yin started CTRIE_ZE=ZA=+—HILZEE"
his terminal leave from 1 August 2019. Dr Tony KO Pat-sing was %ﬁﬁ AT -NFENA—BRBE
appointed as the Chief Executive with effect from 1 August 2019. HASTAE AT R MR o AU R AR TS 4R BE m R P2
Prior to this appointment, he served as the Director (Cluster BEER_ZT—NFNA—BEZERITH
Services). B -
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(a)

(b)

(c]

Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
include the following:

HA has a number of contracts with the Electrical and Mechanical
Services Department ("EMSD”) of the Government for providing
biomedical and general electronics engineering services, electrical,
mechanical, air-conditioning, building services and other services
(e.g. capital and improvement works) to the Group. The amounts
incurred for these services for the financial year ended 31 March
2021 amounted to HK$2,033,771,000 (2020: HK$2,013,303,000].

HA has entered into an agreement with the Government to provide
serving and retired civil servants, their eligible dependants and
other eligible persons with the services and facilities at all public
hospitals and clinics free of charge or at the prevailing rates as
prescribed in the Civil Service Regulations. For the financial year
ended 31 March 2021, revenue foregone in respect of medical
services provided to these persons amounted to HK$301,227,000
(2020: HK$437,480,000). The cost of such services has been taken
into account in the Government’s subvention to the Group.

During the year, HA has entered into short-term (within 12 months)
licence agreements with the AsiaWorld-Expo ("AWE") Management
Limited, which is jointly owned by the Government and the Airport
Authority Hong Kong, to permit HA on using certain areas in
AWE for establishing and operating the community treatment
facility to admit COVID-19 confirmed patients. Total licence fees
and related charges recognised in the statement of income and
expenditure for the financial year ended 31 March 2021 amounted
to HK$504,657,000.

Another licence agreement was entered with AWE Management
Limited to permit HA on using licenced area for the construction
and operation of HKICC. Since the licence period is over 12
months, additions to right-of-use (“ROU") assets amounted to
HK$107,876,000 and lease liabilities of HK$107,928,000 as at 31
March 2021 was recognised in the balance sheet. Depreciation
charge of ROU assets and finance cost of lease liabilities amounted
to HK$26,091,000 were charged to the statement of income and
expenditure during the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL 871 5 ¥ R i 5E
STATEMENTS

28. Related party transactions (Continued) 28. EARFHE A LRI 7 (@)
(d)  Remuneration of key management personnel (d) FEZEIEAEFHM
Key management personnel are those persons having authority FTEERABRHEARNREERE  ES
and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the REESEEBOAL  ERETHRAAR
activities of the Group. It comprises the Chief Executive, Cluster BAME  RAERENERAMBHLE
Chief Executives, Directors and other division heads of the Head & o
Office.
Total remuneration of the key management personnel is shown FETBAERFBAERENT
below:
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
HZE20215F BZE 20204
SA3TALEE A BILFE
BT T BETFIT
Basic salaries and other short term employee benefits 71,048 70,289
EXfre REMEHES =T
Post-employment benefits 6,756 6,855
BEER IR 1A
77,804 77,144

(e}  Other significant related party transactions with the Government  (e) HBTEEH A TETHEMEARSBEES

include annual recurrent grants, capital subventions (note 22] and FREEME - EAEE (WiE22) RIEE
designated funds (notes 16 and 21). Details of transactions relating Ao (MIFE16 % 21) BEEERKTEN
to the Group’s retirement schemes are included in note 25. RS FIBRPAIFE25 -

(ff  Outstanding balances with the Government as at 31 March 2020 () #HE-Z-_ZTFEK=-ZT-_—F=A=+—H

and 2021 are disclosed in notes 9, 13, 14, 17, 18 and 23. The current EBAEUT 2 R AREBRFPAMIFE9,13,14,17,18

account with a subsidiary, HACM Limited, is disclosed in note 18. K23 EE - EEEE [ EREERTE
BERBRAR] ZEHRERB RHTE18
BE -
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29. Notes to the consolidated statement of . fRBIREIMEN M KM 5
cash flows
(al  Net cash generated from operating activities (a) BEEBRERSFE
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
BZE 20215 #Hz= 20204
3HA31BLLFE 3R BILFE

BT T BT
Surplus for the year FFINZ R 535,478 3,764,515
Investment income 2 & W& (342,107) (612,865
Interest for Minor Works Projects Fund /N Ti21E B E&H| 8 567,287 1,321,200
Income transferred from Minor Works Projects Fund (1,495,069) (1,288,539)
ERE I TRER &S ZIRA
Interest for PPP Fund A& B IEE S FIS 423,970 240,480
Income transferred from PPP Fund E3 B AFLEHIEES 2 WA (403,312) (286,750
Capital subventions for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 2,074,634 1,535,978
M WERBRENBVEEZ EXHE
Capital donations for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 120,349 130,838
M WRERREREVEEZ ARBE
Income transferred from capital subventions and capital donations (1,432,084) (1,267,366)
ERBERHBRERBE 2 WA
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 17,051 14,813
HEWE  WERREREFEERE
Adjustment of inventories to net realisable value F & FE &= Al #I8%H 134,564 2,820
Depreciation and amortisation 78 & # 5 1,555,674 1,353,449
Finance costs #7152 A 2,621 3,154
Increase in death and disability liabilities 56T R ZFRBF B EIE N 17,890 34,991
Decrease in deferred income JEFEU &R (39,598) (24,265)
Increase in inventories 77 &3 N (961,817) (340,245)
Decrease in loans receivable FEUREFUR L 237 568
Increase in accounts receivable FERERFIE N (13,346) (48,465)
Decrease / (increase) in other receivables H b U ARFUR A / (381N0) 147,012 (394,306)
Increase in deposits and prepayments &% & FE1 5 IEIE hN (286,703) (32,620
Increase in creditors and accrued charges &7 A K& FE & ARG AN 4,666,660 4,084,217
Increase in deposits received EYzEIEMN 66,920 2,193
Net cash generated from operating activities & @ /& B FT15IR &5 58 5,356,311 8,193,795
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL 871 5 ¥R 2R Bfd 5
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29. Notes to the consolidated statement of 29. IRBIIREMENIREME (@)
cash flows (Continued)

(b)  Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities (b) BEEDEENBEEHER

The Group &

Lease Liabilities

HK$’000
HESE
BT T
At 1 April 201978201944 A1 H 213,589
Cash flow changes Fi& 2 & H)
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities X EBEASE S (100,948)
Non-cash changes FFIR&1E B #3)
Additions of leases THEZ AN 86,463
At 31 March 2020 74202043 A 31 H 199,104
Cash flow changes Ji & i 2 & &)
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities XN HE B EAR S HH (119,609)
Non-cash changes 3FIR ©IH B &
Additions of leases THE &N 214,772
At 31 March 2021 720213 A31H 294,267
30. Funds held in trust 30. E5EEE
At 31 March 2021, Health Care and Promotion Scheme of RZZE-_—F=ZA=+—H  £ELET
HK$2,910,000 (2020: HK$6,909,000) was held in trust for the 22X BBFTE R A ¥2910,000 T
Government but not included in the financial statements. ZTZTF - #%6,909,0007T ) K fE R &

EREEAE - BEREARIAMBIRERA
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31. Donations from the Hong Kong Jockey Club  31. lREESBEBREXEGTESE

o 2 fad
Charities Trust BY1RES
During the financial year ended 31 March 2021, the Hong HE-ZT-_—F=A=+t—HINUKFE
Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust made donations totalling N BEEESSREERESHRTIHE
HK$30,073,000 (2020: HK$71,459,000) to the following B A 30,073,000 C (ZEZFF | B
institutions: 71,459,0007T) :
HK$’000
BT
MacLehose Medical Rehabilitation Centre ZX32518 T 15,121
Jockey Club Inpatient Facilities Modernisation Scheme (Various hospitals) 14,750
EEgTRERE (TRER)
Kowloon Hospital /132 EFx 202
30,073
The donations were accounted for in the designated donation fund BB EE2 (1) (i) PRE BV S 5T - 18HE5
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(f)ii). ANEERBESR -
32. Net proceeds from fund raising activities 32. B ERNBRBLHRER
. . . “ " = 29% 34 £ s chpy =R
under Public Subscription Permits (“PSP”) of QlsE IETERIBENFRSIF
granted by the Social Welfare Department A
The net proceeds from fund raising activities under PSP granted BRIt @R ME R A RERFrELE
by the Social Welfare Department of the Government during the EHRETEFRS S FRALT
stated period are set out below:
Gross Gross
Income Expenditure Net
PSP No. Raised Incurred Proceeds
NE E Period HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Institution AR Purpose Covered Wy AgisE BIZME  FWA
A w5 =L RERE BT B¥TT B¥Tx
Alice Ho Miu Ling 2020/041/1  To raise funds for improvement of the quality of 1/4/2020 - 81 0 81
Nethersole Hospital patient care services 31/3/2021
EER TR RRR ENRENERARBER
Caritas Medical Centre  2019/076/1  To raise funds for patient services of Caritas 1/5/2019 - 48 3 45
HERE Medical Centre 30/4/2020
ENAERE BB ARY
Cheshire Home, Shatin -~ 2019/118/1  To raise funds for healthcare services 1/7/2019 - 90 0 90
YRR ERR ERRIERERSE 30/6/2020
Grantham Hospital 2020/011/1  To raise funds for improving patient services of 1/2/2020 - 10 0 10
EEHER Grantham Hospital 31/1/201
SRRENES 2 HER AR RS
Haven of Hope Hospital ~ 2020/031/1  To raise funds for services by the Haven of Hope 1/4/2020 - 25 2 2
TR Hospital 31/3/2021

EFRIFRERRAORE
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32. Net proceeds from fund raising activities 32. B ERNBRHL L HER
under Public Subscription Permits (“PSP”) oT QIR ETERISENFRISIP
LONED

granted by the Social Welfare Department
(Continued)

Gross Gross
Income Expenditure Net
PSP No. Raised Incurred Proceeds
Nk EA Period HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Institution B Purpose Covered Uy Az BAIXAE FRA
Heig #m 5% =Ly RERE BY¥TT B¥TT B¥TR
Hong Kong Buddhist 2020/014/1  To raise funds for the purchase of medical 1/2/2020 - 42 2 40
Hospital instruments / equipment and office equipment, ~ 31/1/2021
EHHBHER improvement of hospital premises and
supporting patient related activities
FERRERRNAERE  SHEREREERBA
EBEE
North District Hospital 2019/235/1  To raise funds for North District Hospital Charitable  1/1/2020 - 45 0 45
Charitable Foundation Foundation so as to support North District 31/12/2020
ItEBREZETES Hospital in improving the physical and mental
health of the public in the community and to
promote health education, medical education
and research
ERAELERERESETAS | USHItEER
BEHBANTALHOS RGBS - LRE
REHE  BEHEAWR
Our Lady of Maryknoll 2020/037/1  To raise funds for improvement of patient services 6/4/2020 - 36 4 32
Hospital SRR AR 31/3/2021
EHER
Prince of Wales Hospital ~ 2019/161/1  To raise funds for healthcare services of 1/9/2019 - 299 17 282
Charitable Foundation  2019/229/1 Prince of Wales Hospital 31/8/2020
BRER IR EEER EFRERRTRIBRERERSG 16/12/2019 - 4 15 30
o 31/8/2020
Queen Mary Hospital 2020/032/1  To raise funds for hospital service enhancement 1/4/2020 - 84 0 84
EBEK EHFIERARRRE 31/3/2021
Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu Kin  2020/043/1  To raise funds for volunteer services, patient 1/4/2020 - 69 7 62
Hospitals related activities and improvement of hospital 31/3/2021
BRARHNERER service
ERRERIRG - mARD RE B RE
Shatin Hospital 2019/221/1  To raise funds for developing patient service 1/12/2019 - 5 0 5
D HER EFRERRR AR 30/11/2020
Tai Po Hospital 2020/030/1  To raise funds for improvement of the quality of 1/4/2020 - 15 0 15
K IR patient care services 31/3/2021
EFRERER ARBER
The Hospital Authority 2020/034/1  To raise funds for the Hospital Authority Charitable ~ 1/4/2020 - 490 0 490
Charitable Foundation Foundation in supporting its work to promote 31/3/2021
B EmBEEE S healthy living, subsidise the medical expenses

of the needy patients, support activities of
patient groups, promote health education and
develop volunteer services
ENREHRRERRAEASNIE A1
RERELE  EHERRAXNEEER
i%%%mﬁmﬁﬁ‘ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁu&%ﬁ
TH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

32. Net proceeds from fund raising activities
under Public Subscription Permits (“PSP”)

B 5 R 2 Bf 5E

32. B ES1ehERE L FHAER
st OISR ETERISEPEF

granted by the Social Welfare Department WA (i)
(Continued])
Gross Gross
Income EXxpenditure Net
PSP No. Raised Incurred Proceeds
NEGE N Period HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Institution EXE: Purpose Covered Iy A4z BIX#EE A PN
Hig w3 B# REHE BT BT B¥Trx
The Pamela Youde 2019/170/1  To raise funds for enhancing the services of Pamela  1/9/2019 - 241 3 238
Nethersole Eastern Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital or any other  31/8/2020
Hospital Charitable nan-profit making hospitals / medical facilities
Trust in Hong Kong
RELERANITZER EFRERITRBRLERABITZERABELML
REETED FENER  BERBORBER
The Princess Margaret ~ 2019/208/1  To raise funds for Princess Margaret Hospital for ~ 26/11/2019 - 21 1 20
Hospital Charitable enhancement of patient services quality 25/11/2020
Trust ERAERARENBRRARBER
BRNEREEES
The Queen Elizabeth 2020/039/1  To raise funds for supporting research into the 1/4/2020 - 55 1 54
Hospital Charitable improvement and development of medicine at 31/3/2021
Trust Queen Elizabeth Hospital
FRYRBREEETES EXAERERBRFTID AR BERT IR
Tseung Kwan O Hospital ~ 2019/181/1  To raise funds for patients benefit and 25/9/2019 - 10 0 10
¥ ERE enhancement of hospital services 24/9/2020
EXAERARTIREBERS
Tuen Mun Hospital 2019/103/1  To raise funds for: 1/6/2019 - 21 0 21
Rk (I Patient benefits / services uses; 31/5/2020
(] Health and diseases education:
(I Community Services Centre;
(V) Medical research and development
projects for the betterment of the
community
£
(1) FRAIEH /AR -
() BERERYE
() HERBFL
(V) BERR R BRI S EL R
United Christian Hospital  2020/035/1  To raise funds for patient’s benefit and 1/4/2020 - 138 A 134
EEHEAER enhancement of hospital services of United 31/3/2021
Christian Hospital
EFRERARTHI R AEEH S BRNER
R
Yan Chai Hospital 2020/009/1  To raise funds for the services and facilities of Yan 1/2/2020 - 447 3 bbb
e Chai Hospital 31/1/2021

FABECRE R R

The net proceeds received from fund raising activities under PSP
were accounted for in the designated donation fund in accordance
with the accounting policy set out in note 2(f){ii).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

33.

34.

B

36.

37.

Capital commitments

At 31 March 2021, the Group and HA had the following capital
commitments:

The Groupand HA B R EEF

B 5 e 2 Bf 5F

At 31 March 2021

33. &EINAIE

R-E-_—F=ZA=+—08 £BEKREER

BATHEAHRSE :

At 31 March 2020

HK$’000 HK$ 000

2021% 38318 202043 A31H

BT T BT

Authorised but not contracted for BB #(B R ETRL 23,177,363 13,911,988
Contracted for but not provided B 5] 22418 R &8 22,715,138 16,228,323
45,892,501 30,140,311

The capital commitments disclosed above include (i) costs to be
capitalised under property, plant and equipment or intangible
assets; (i) expenditure not meeting the capitalisation policy and are
to be charged to the statement of income and expenditure; and (iii)
amounts to be incurred by HA for undertaking the building works
projects on behalf of the Government and governing bodies of
ex-subvented hospitals as set out in the accounting policy note 2(r](i.

Taxation

No taxation is provided as HA is exempt from taxation under the
Hospital Authority Ordinance.

Contingent liabilities

Adequate provisions have been made in the financial statements
after reviewing the status of outstanding claims and taking into
account legal advice received.

Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to
the current year's presentation.

Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved by members of HA on
23 September 2021.
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Appendix 1
P 5% 1

MEMBERSHIP OF THE HOSPITAL AUTHORITY

srERRMNE

No. of plenary meetings
attended in 2020-21

Name 2020-21 & Committee participation in 2020-21*

o] HEZEBAERE 202021 FESHENEEE

Mr Henry FAN Hung-ling, SBS, JP 15/15 Chairman of plenary meetings, EC and EEC

Chairman, HA 2RBAE  THRZEShESEEREZECTE

Bl EEBEE

Mr Thomas CHAN Chung-ching, JP 13/13 Member of EEC, FC, HRC, MSDC and SSDC (all from 5.6.2020)

Permanent Secretary for Food and REEHFRELTES  UKEEE  ANWEREZES  BE

Health (Health) BEBREZECRIERBEREZEGME (24202046 A

[from 5.6.2020) 5H#E)

BRAAT o4

RYREGERBEAWER (FE)

(12020 6 A5H#E)

Dr Constance CHAN Hon-yee, JP 15/15 Member of MSDC

Director of Health BEEREERZEIKE

PRERERE

FEEER

Prof Francis CHAN Ka-leung, 12/15 Member of HRC, MSDC and MTB; HGC Member of Prince of

SBS, JP Wales Hospital

PRER So 2% ANEBERZES  BERFERZESNRPRRIEZE MK
8 BRI TEREAEZEEKE

Prof CHAN Wai-yee 13/15 Member of HRC, MSDC and MTB; HGC Chairman of North

[RIE(EZTS District Hospital
ANBREZES BERBERZESRIREVEZESK
8 tREBRERAZESER

Ms Margaret CHENG Wai-ching, JP 10/15 Member of HRC, MTB and SAC (all from 7.4.2020)

BEH A+ ANBREZEEE® hABRELZESERBE LHFEZEENE
(2H 20204 A7 HitE)

Mr Duncan CHIU 15/15 Member of FC, ITGC and MTB; HGC Member of Queen

ERERR S A Elizabeth Hospital
WKEEE  BMBERBECZEGRTFRRELZEGK
8 FReEREREEEKE

Mr David FONG Man-hung, BBS, JP 12/15 Vice-Chairman of SSDC; Member of ITGC and MTB; Chairman

T XS A of KRAC
XERGBRZEGRTR  BEAMBREEAZEERTR
KIELZEGKE  NERHZEAZESER

Mr Ambrose HO, SBS, JP 11/15 Member of ARC, MTB and SAC; HGC Chairman of Hong Kong

] SE A

Red Cross Blood Transfusion Service
Bt kEREREZE®  PAREZEERBE LHFEZEEEK
8 BB TTFERHMRETOERZESER
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No. of plenary meetings
attended in 2020-21

Name 2020-21 & Committee participation in 2020-21*

®E HEZEBRERE 2020-21 FESHENEES

Ms Mary HUEN Wai-yi 13/15 Member of FC and MTB (both from 8.4.2020)

BREZL MBEEGRPRIFEZEGKE (194 2020F 4 5 8 HEE)
Dr Tony KO Pat-sing 15/15 Chairman of ITGC; Member of EC, EEC, FC, HRC, MSDC,
Chief Executive, HA MTB, SSDC, all RACs and HGCs

=ik A BMBEREERLZEGER  THEER  BSEERES
Bl BT AR BEg MBZEE ANEBARZEE® BERBEERZED -

TREFREE ERBERZES  SEEHFERZEER

RBREEZEEKE

Mrs Ann KUNG YEUNG Yun-chi, JP 11/15 Chairman of HRC; Member of EC and EEC; HGC Member of
EgREEr L Hong Kong Children's Hospital
ANBRZECEFE (THRESRESEERELZEENE

EREREBRERZEENKE

Mr Daniel LAM Chun, SBS, JP 15/15 Chairman of SSDC; Member of ARC, EC and EEC; HGC

B g A Chairman of Hong Kong Eye Hospital & Kowloon Hospital
XEBRBEERZEETR Bt REAREEZE®  TRZE
BRESEERELEENKE  BERNMEBR R NERBRER

ZEEXR
Mr Quinton LAM Chun-ki 15/15 Member of HRC, MSDC and MTB; HGC Member of MacLehose
MEH A Medical Rehabilitation Centre

ANBERZE® BERBERZBEGRPRAREZESK

8 B ERRBRELREEEKE

Mr Franklin LAM Fan-keung, BBS 15/15 Member of FC, HRC, MSDC, MTB and SSDC; HGC Member of
ER A Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital
HBLEE  ANERZEE  BERBERZES  FR
KRELZEe kI ERBERZEGKE  RELERAINITR

BlRERZEEKE

Prof LAU Chak-sing, JP 13/15 Member of ITGC, MSDC and MTB; HGC Member of Grantham
2= EHIR Hospital
BMBRBERZER  BRRBERZE G RFRRIR

&
=
ZEBgKE  BENBREAZEGKE

Mr Raistlin LAU Chun, JP 15/15 Member of FC and MSDC

Deputy Secretary for Financial R EEe R EERERELZESKE

Services and the Treasury

BEkAE

B ES R ER BN E R

Ms Lisa LAU Man-man, 15/15 Vice-Chairman of HRC; Member of MTB and PCC; HGC

BBS, MH, JP Chairman of Tseung Kwan O Hospital

B33+ ANBERLZEGRIERE  FREBEZESRARKRFLZES
KB BERBREREERERE

Prof Gabriel Matthew LEUNG, 14/15 Member of MSDC and MTB; HGC Member of Hong Kong

GBS, JP Children's Hospital, Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital and

B (BHFT Queen Mary Hospital & Tsan Yuk Hospital

BERBERZBELTRAREZEENE  BERERERR

EORE  BEERLEEERTAZARKE
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Appendix 1
B 8% 1

No. of plenary meetings
attended in 2020-21

Name 2020-21 & Committee participation in 2020-21*

®H HEZERERE 202021 FESHENEES

Ir Dr Hon LO Wai-kwok, GBS, MH, JP 10/10 Member of MTB and SSDC (both up to 30.11.2020); HGC

[up to 30.11.2020) Member of Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital

EEEEL FREZELZEGRIERBERZESKE (HE RZ2020F

(BiZ20204 11 H30H) 11 H308) : HBRAIYERBITEZREREREZEGKE

Prof David SHUM Ho-keung 14/15 Member of ARC, HRC, MSDC and MTB; Chairman of HRAC;

e e e HGC Member of Hong Kong Eye Hospital & Kowloon Hospital
FkERREREZE® ANBRZE®  BERBERZES
ERPRIZEEEKE  BESERFGFAZTESER  HAR
MERRNEEREREZEGNE

Mr Ivan SZE Wing-hang, BBS, JP 14/15 Chairman of MTB and PCC; Member of EC, EEC, FC and HRC;

MesRIE oA HGC Chairman of Tuen Mun Hospital
FREZRZEGRARRFEEEER  THEEE  B2E
BREEEE  WBZESERANEREZEEGKE  HMBLK
BEEEREF

Prof Agnes TIWARI Fung-yee 11/15 Member of MSDC, MTB and SSDC; HGC Member of Hong

BB =T Kong Red Cross Blood Transfusion Service
BEERBEREZES  PARELZEGRIERBEREZESY
RE BB TTFEHNRERLERZEENE

Mr Philip TSAI Wing-chung, 15/15 Chairman of FC; Member of ARC, EC, EEC and SSDC; HGC

BBS, JP Member of Queen Mary Hospital & Tsan Yuk Hospital

ZOKBEE VHEESER B kAKREEZES  THEZES BE
EEREZES  IERBEBEREESKE  BEBRLES
BRERLZEGKE

Dr Thomas TSANG Ho-fai 5/5 Member of ARC (from 24.2.2021), MSDC (from 1.12.2020] and

(from 1.12.2020) MTB (from 15.12.2020)

WEIRE A REREEEZE S (H2021F2H24H#) - BERYS

(202012 81 H#E) BRZES(H2020F 12A18#8) RPRIFZEZEGKE
(F120204F 12 A 15 H#E)

Ms Elizabeth TSE Man-yee, GBS, JP 2/2 Member of EEC, FC, HRC, MSDC and SSDC (all up to 4.6.2020]

Permanent Secretary for Food and BEEERELET  PKEEG ANBRZES BEE

Health (Health) BEERZECRIEREUEZECNE (RHE20204

[up to 4.6.2020) 6H4H)

sefst

BRYIREGERBEIWER (F£)

(BZ2020F6 A4H)

Ms Priscilla WONG Pui-sze, SBS, JP 15/15 Chairman of MSDC; Member of ARC, EC, EEC, FC and HRC;

B B

HGC Chairman of Prince of Wales Hospital
BERGERZBEER Bt MEAREEZE® TRERE
CESEEREZE e UWKBZREEMANBERZEGK
R EEREAZEE IR

0 18

\
A
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No. of plenary meetings
attended in 2020-21

Name 2020-21 & Committee participation in 2020-21*

BE HEZBASRH 202021 FESHNESS

Ir Billy WONG Wing-hoo, BBS, JP 14/15 Member of MTB and SSDC; HGC Member of Kwai Chung

KRR A Hospital & Princess Margaret Hospital
PREEZE SR ERBERZEGHKE  HRBRNIER
B ERTEGKE

Mr Jason YEUNG Chi-wai 15/15 Chairman of ARC; Member of EC, EEC and FC; HGC

HEEEE Chairman of Kwai Chung Hospital & Princess Margaret
Hospital
EREARERZEGER  (TRZEE  RREEREZRE
eriBEEEKE  BRBEMERINBRELAZEGER

Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong 14/15 Member of HRC, ITGC, MSDC, MTB, PCC, SAC and SSDC;

BkERE

Chairman of NRAC; HGC Member of Tuen Mun Hospital
ANERZE S  EAMERBELZES  BFERBERZ
g PARELREE ARKFLET BELFEZEEN
XERGERZEGNE  MABEHEAZESIE  BMAR
BRERZBEEKE

* Note:

*‘EE‘:

Board Members are not separately remunerated. They discharge the =~ K&K ETEFINNE - KGKEBBEDEER
role of governance of the Authority through formulating policies and ~ EHIFTEER /B8 - BEREEER TIERR - AR
directions and overseeing executive performance at Board meetings, #HEEERFEZEENITIE - —RAZ2EHBEERN

as well as taking part in steering the work of various committees of the

Authority including:

LN
B/ °

ARC - Audit and Risk Committee

EC - Executive Committee

EEC - Emergency Executive Committee

FC - Finance Committee

HGC - Hospital Governing Committee

HRAC - Hong Kong Regional Advisory Committee
HRC - Human Resources Committee

ITGC - Information Technology Services Governing Committee
KRAC - Kowloon Regional Advisory Committee

MSDC - Medical Services Development Committee
MTB - Main Tender Board

NRAC - New Territories Regional Advisory Committee
PCC - Public Complaints Committee

SAC - Staff Appeals Committee

SSDC - Supporting Services Development Committee
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Appendix 2(a)
Fifé% 2 (a)

HOSPITAL AUTHORITY COMMITTEE STRUCTURE
SrERRELTEERIE

Hospital Authority Board
BREERAS
v v \
Reglonal,.Adwsory Hospital G.overnlng Audit an.d Risk Main Tender Board
Committees Committees Committee AR EEES
BHMNERR BREAZEER FHRARETEEES FEEE
Executive Committee Medical Serwces_
FRESR Development Committee
=S BARBREEES
Emergency Executive Public Complaints
Committee Committee
RSB RERES DNRRFEES
Finance Committee Staff Appeals Committee
MHBEES BELSFZEES
Human Resources Supporting Services
Committee Development Committee
ANEREES ZERERRESR

Information Technology
Services Governing
Committee

ERNBBRBELRZEES

Note: Membership lists of various committees are listed in i REEEREREHNMERS 4 K5
Appendices 3, 4 and 5.
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Appendix 2(b)
Bisk 2 (b)

HOSPITAL AUTHORITY EXECUTIVE STRUCTURE

srERET

EX7RIE

Dr Tony KO Pat-sing Chief Executive

BREgE THAEH

v

v

Clusters B4

Dr LUK Che-chung, JP
Cluster Chief Executive

BRI
ApmE

Hong Kong East
Cluster

BERBREA

Hong Kong West
Cluster

BEEBRBA

Dr Theresa LI Tak-lai
Cluster Chief Executive

TREELE

-
B

Kowloon Central
Cluster

NEFERBA

Dr Albert LO Chi-yuen
Cluster Chief Executive
EEEEE

T

,,,,, o

Kowloon East
Cluster

NERERBA

Dr TOM Kam-tim
Cluster Chief Executive

BeE

Kowloon West
Cluster

hEEBRHA

Dr Doris TSE Man-wah
Cluster Chief Executive (up to 31.7.2020] No¢
W ERE
B ATREs (B2 202047 H31 )7

Dr Nelson WAT Ming-sun
Deputising Cluster Chief Executive
(from 21.5.2020 to 31.7.2020)

(from 21.11.2020 to 30.11.2020]
[ESR B E
I A
(20204 5 A 21 HE2020%F7 A31H)
(H120204F 11 21 AZE 20204 11 A30 A)

Dr Desmond NGUYEN Gia-hung
Deputising Cluster Chief Executive
[from 1.12.2020 to 3.1.2021]
T
I AE
(1202012 A1 HZ 2021461 H3H)

Dr Alexander LAW Chun-bon
Deputising Cluster Chief Executive
(from 1.8.2020 to 20.11.2020)
Cluster Chief Executive (from 4.1.2021]
EiREE
AR A% (20209F8 A 102202011 5208)
HAEABES (202161 A4 %)

New Territories
East Cluster

R RERBR

Dr LO Su-vui
Cluster Chief Executive
BEREEL
B A 2

Dr Beatrice CHENG
Deputising Cluster Chief Executive
(from 1.3.2021 to 31.3.2021)

Bz R EE
R A
(F202143 A 1HZ20214¢3H31H)

Note 2

Head Office &R ER

Dr Deacons YEUNG Tai-kong
Director (Cluster Services)

B ELE
BRI AR A

Dr CHUNG Kin-lai
Director [Quality & Safety)
ERRELE
BERLTPBE

Dr Libby LEE Ha-yun
Director (Strategy & Planning)

TEEEL
RIS RARES

Ms Anita CHAN Shuk-yu
Director [Finance)

BRmz +
Loprvd

Ms Margaret CHEUNG Sau-Lling
Head of Corporate Services
RERLT
BEEKTE

Head of Human Resources [up to 3.11.2020) Net¢3

Dr PANG Fei-chau

ERABE
ADBREE (BZE20204F 11 A3 H) 3

Ms Katherine SHIU Ka-wan
Deputising Head of Human Resources
(from 21.8.2020 to 30.11.2020]
mEELL
REANBRFEE
(F120204F 8 A21 HZE 2020 11 A30A)

Mr David MAK Chi-wai
Head of Human Resources (from 1.12.2020)
BEEEE
ANEREE (B2020F 12 A1 HAE)

New Territories
West Cluster

R BB

Dr Simon TANG Yiu-hang

Cluster Chief Executive

HEagt

BAgsaE:
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Dr CHEUNG Ngai-tseung
Head of Information Technology and
Health Informatics "¢
REAEE
BHRBRBEELTE T

Note 1:
BT
Note 2:
2
Note 3:
FE3:

Note 4:

T4

Dr Doris TSE Man-wah’s last day of duty was
20.5.2020. Her last day of service was 31.7.2020.
HINERERRETIEER 202065 A 20 B - HfE
HiR8 2020 4F 7 A 31 BT ©

Dr LO Su-vui's last day of duty was 28.2.2021.
His last day of service was 30.4.2021.
ERREBENREIERRZ 20212 A28 - AfE
HIRS 2021 45 4 B 30 B 5S4 ©

Dr PANG Fei-chau’s last day of duty was 20.8.2020.
His last day of service was 3.11.2020.
ERABENKEIIERR 202058 A 20 B - HiE
HAR 2020 4F 11 A 3 B5TAE ©

Dr CHEUNG Ngai-tseung was appointed as Head of
Information Technology and Health Informatics with
effect from 2.7.2020.

SRIXAEEAEH 2020 F 7 A 2 BRREZEREMBHEL
MrEERESIE -
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MEMBERSHIP AND TERMS OF REFERENCE OF FUNCTIONAL

COMMITTEES
SETE5EZNENEIESE

Audit and Risk Committee
BT REREEZEES

Membership List

RERE

Chairman Mr Jason YEUNG Chi-wai

= BR

Members Mr Ambrose HO, SBS, JP

| hE T
Mr Daniel LAM Chun, SBS, JP
WEEE
Prof David SHUM Ho-keung
LIERHIK
Mr Philip TSAI Wing-chung, BBS, JP
BOKBELE
Dr Thomas TSANG Ho-fai (from 24.2.2021)
LEIEEE (2021 F2 A24 A7)
Ms Priscilla WONG Pui-sze, SBS, JP
ESliES e
Ms Wendy YUNG Wen-yee
BB

In Attendance Dr Tony KO Pat-sing, Chief Executive

Bl BRHEE TREH

Ms Elizabeth TSE Man-yee, GBS, JP (up to 4.6.2020)
Mr Thomas CHAN Chung-ching, JP (from 5.6.2020)
Permanent Secretary for Food and Health (Health]
etait (BE2020F6 A4H)

BRIAE 5e 4 (F12020F 6 A 5 HRE)
RYRFERBFENER (BE)
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Terms of Reference

1.

Exercise an active oversight of the internal audit function to ensure

that its:

(a] mandate, resources and organisational status are appropriate;

(b) plans and activities are adequate to provide systematic
coverage of the internal control and risk management
systems put in place by the Management; and

(c) findings are actioned appropriately and timely;

Recommend the appointment of the external auditor and the audit
fee to the Board, endorse any non-audit services to be provided by
the external auditor, and consider any questions of resignation or
dismissal;

Consult with the External Auditor on all relevant matters including the:
(a) nature and scope of the audit;

(b) audited financial statements and the audit opinion;

(c)] management letter and management’s response; and

(d) matters of which the External Auditor may wish to draw
attention;

Gain reasonable assurance on the completeness, accuracy, and
fairness of audited financial statements, including appropriateness
of accounting policies and standards, adequacy of disclosures and
significant audit adjustments (in collaboration with the Finance
Committee];

Oversee the effectiveness of systems for risk management and

internal control, including to:

(a) monitor the implementation and effectiveness of Hospital
Authority’s Organisation-wide Risk Management (ORM) policy
and strategy;

(b) review and approve changes to the components of the ORM
framework;

(c) review reports on the organisation-wide risk profile and
significant risk issues reported to it by the Chief Executive; and

(d) monitor Hospital Authority’s financial and administrative
control processes, including those designed to ensure the
safeguarding of resources and operational efficiency, through
the results of internal and external audit;

Oversee the processes implemented by the Management for

monitoring:

(a) compliance with pertinent statutes and regulations;

(b) compliance with Hospital Authority’s Code of Conduct;

(c] effectiveness of controls against conflicts of interest and
fraud; and

(d) effectiveness of Hospital Authority’s whistleblowing
mechanism.

Note: Although the functions of the Audit and Risk Committee cover
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a wide area, matters that are of a pure clinical nature (such as
medical ethics) are not within its purview.

EEFFIR 2020-2021

s

1.

TEIRE R B E R N BPEATIRAE - DARELR
(a) EBE®HE  BRNABNTEIIRNE:
(b) EFAZIREBRUAE RFHRERT P

FIHARRE RRREESE © &

|,

(c) BEMBRPISAERREVES RENTTE):
ROMNERBEMNZERBAER
REeEHER - H/ERIMNEXIE R M
SEERT RS - W EHE AL A B Bt SRS
£H:

’-'—JEQﬁ

FLETE ARSI NS B - 81 ¢

(a) FEFHZHIEEMEE

(b) REFFNEFHMBRREEAFER

(c) BREBEHERENRHMRERENDE:
)4

(d) SMESIZBEMEE A AT RIR -

(BMRMBEZEE) MEEANEFHHER
= BRESHERREERNENE - WE
ERMTENEE  URBREAHABRETH
RSAIEEE  BRTE - BREQF

ERABREIE AR E IR - B

(a) EERET RERELREEBUR KR
ITRIRR K

(b) WsHERLEREERNZ(ERHIE
HEE 2B

(c) TERHER RS KITHEEER
MERBERER &

(d) FBEAFRINROETFZER - B
BERNMERITHRERRF - BI6HE
RERIEERENBBIEST

EREERANEIZEA TN EEMAI R
(a) HBEBEGIRBHIFER
(b) HEERTATRIRESE
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Focus of Work in 2020-21

The Committee exercised active oversight of internal audit function of
HA, considered matters related to the audit of HA's financial statements,
and oversaw the effectiveness of risk management and internal controls
at HA. In 2020-21, the Committee conducted four regular meetings. Due
to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Committee transacted business planned
for a meeting scheduled for July 2020 by circulation.

In regard to HA's internal audit function, the Committee received from
Chief Internal Auditor quarterly progress reports on audit results on
HA's operational areas, as well as an annual report on audit analytics of
clinical systems. The discussions focused on audit conclusions, major
audit observations and corresponding follow-up action plans. Key
internal audits considered by the Committee in 2020-21 covered different
hospital operation and corporate management areas, including bed
management, Public-Private Partnership (PPP] service, management
of data privacy breach, Special Honorarium Scheme and Integrated
Chinese-Western Medicine Pilot Programme. In planning ahead for
2021-22, the Committee took part in prioritising areas for internal audits
and approved the focus areas for internal audits in 2021-22.

Jointly with the Finance Committee, the Committee reviewed and
endorsed HA's draft audited financial statements for 2019-20. The
Committee considered reports from the external auditor on the 2019-
20 internal control matters and the results of the external auditor’s
risk assessment of HA. The Committee also reviewed and endorsed
the strategies for appointment of external auditor of HA. On non-audit
service involving the external auditor, the Committee endorsed the
consultancy service to be provided by the external auditor on HA's critical
clinical systems, as well as enhancements to strengthen the handling of
non-audit services provided by the external auditor.

For risk management, the Committee oversaw implementation of HA's
organisation-wide risk management systems across HA. Specifically,
the Committee examined the Key Organisation-wide Risk Report
2021, focusing on the planned mitigation actions for the 10 key risks
consolidated from functional risk reports reviewed by the concerned
functional committees. During the year, the Committee deliberated on
risk management reports on specific areas, including service capacity,
manpower shortage, data privacy breach, cybersecurity, capital works,
medication, diagnostic risks of missed radiology imaging findings and
the Electronic Health Record Programme. The Committee also received
a report on compliance with HA related ordinances.

On internal control matters, the Committee received an implementation
progress update on the recommendations of the Corruption Prevention
Department of the Independent Commission Against Corruption
(ICAC) on HA's collection and waiver of hospital fees. The Committee
also deliberated on HA's data protection enhancements and received
implementation progress updates on the recommendations of a Special
Task Group on review of HA's patient information security at Accident &
Emergency Departments.
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Executive Committee

THZEES

Membership List

KRERE

Chairman Mr Henry FAN Hung-ling, SBS, JP
e SRR T A

Members Dr Tony KO Pat-sing, Chief Executive
K& DI TTEARE,

Mrs Ann KUNG YEUNG Yun-chi, JP
EBigREL L

Mr Daniel LAM Chun, SBS, JP

Mr Ivan SZE Wing-hang, BBS, JP
MeSRIE S

Mr Philip TSAlI Wing-chung, BBS, JP
ZOKBITE

Ms Priscilla WONG Pui-sze, SBS, JP
EDifS3en

Mr Jason YEUNG Chi-wai
BEREE
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Terms of Reference

1.

Consider key matters and overall policies and directions on
long-term strategy and planning, risk management, corporate
governance, performance management and succession planning,
and facilitate the Board in discharging its responsibilities in this
regard.

Advise on Board meeting agenda items proposed by the
Management including an annual forward looking agenda and key
matters raised by Functional Committee Chairmen.

Serve as a forum for the HA Chairman, Functional Committee
Chairmen and the HA Chief Executive to consider major matters
relating to the leadership and oversight of the HA.

Advise on changes to Board and Functional Committee structure
and processes including the respective terms of reference;
oversee their annual self-assessments; and advise the Board
on the appointment of chairmen, vice-chairmen and co-opted
members of the Functional Committees.

Advise the Board on the organisation structure and functions of
the HA Head Office and its Divisions.

Exercise powers delegated by the Board on the following staff

matters:

(a) advise the Board on the appointment, remuneration changes,
contract variation of the Chief Executive;

(b) advise the Board on the appointment of Cluster Chief
Executives and Directors of Divisions;

(c) approve contract renewal, remuneration changes and
contract variation as well as lateral transfer / job rotation of
Cluster Chief Executives and Directors of Divisions;

(d) approve the appointment, contract renewal, remuneration
changes and contract variation as well as lateral transfer / job
rotation of Hospital Chief Executives and Heads of Divisions;
and

(e) review the performance of Chief Executive, Directors, Heads
of Division and Cluster Chief Executives.

Convene as the Emergency Executive Committee (EEC) in
accordance with HA's Emergency Contingency Plan (supplemented
by a senior Food and Health Bureau official when meeting as
EEC).
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Focus of Work in 2020-21

In 2020-21, the Committee met 12 times to discuss and consider various
matters of strategic importance and overall policies and directions of
HA. As approved by the HA Board in December 2019, a Task Group on
Sustainability (TG) was set up under the Executive Committee to lead and
steer discussions of HA sustainability issues. To facilitate its work, the TG
had set up a few Sub-groups (SGs) to facilitate discussions in parallel for
diving into individual focus areas such as staff retention, hardware and
software development, smart hospital development, etc. The directions
set by the TG and SGs formed useful basis for the new HA Strategic Plan
2022-27, which was under preparation and would strategically position
HA over the next five years to enable the organisation to address current
and emerging public healthcare service needs and challenges, as well
as move towards achieving HA's vision and mission in a sustainable
manner. Other strategic matters considered by the Committee included
the formulation of HA Budget and Annual Plan for 2021-22, mid-term
review on the First Ten-year Hospital Development Plans, and healthcare
manpower situation.

The Committee also reviewed the implementation of the Code on Access
to Information in HA on a voluntary basis. It also endorsed the revised
version of the Code of Corporate Governance Practices of the HA Board,
which set out a range of principles and best practices for the HA Board in
relation to its authority, accountability, stewardship, leadership, direction
and control exercised in HA.

The Committee determined a wide range of matters concerning HA's
talent management, which included the appointment and remuneration
matters of senior executives at HA Head Office and clusters, career
posting and succession of senior executives, reports on staff complaints
against senior executives, etc.

Internally for the Board, the Executive Committee regularly reviewed
succession planning for the Board’s Committees, and other membership
matters relating to Hospital Governing Committees (HGCs) and Regional
Advisory Committees. It received annual summary report on activities
and feedbacks of HGCs.

The Committee regularly advised on agendas of Board meetings as
proposed by the management.
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Emergency Executive Committee
BEoESREEES

Membership List

KMERE

Chairman Mr Henry FAN Hung-ling, SBS, JP

£ SEIRER ST
(In his absence, the Emergency Executive Committee chairmanship should be
elected among its standing members)
(EETER B REZ B e TR FEKSHEL)

Members Dr Tony KO Pat-sing, Chief Executive

K& SINP L TTEAEE

(In his absence, the Deputising CE)
(TTBAEF R - BB TIAREL )

Mrs Ann KUNG YEUNG Yun-chi, JP
BgREZ L

Mr Daniel LAM Chun, SBS, JP
WEEE

Mr Ilvan SZE Wing-hang, BBS, JP
MBS A

Mr Philip TSAl Wing-chung, BBS, JP
BOKBERE

Ms Elizabeth TSE Man-yee, GBS, JP [up to 4.6.2020)
Mr Thomas CHAN Chung-ching, JP (from 5.6.2020)
Permanent Secretary for Food and Health [Health]
MR L (BZ= 20206 A4 H)

BRALE 4 (12020 6 5 5 A E)
RYREERBEEWER (FE)

[or her / his nominated representative]

(A ZEAK)

Ms Priscilla WONG Pui-sze, SBS, JP

ik

Mr Jason YEUNG Chi-wai

i vt

Note: The Emergency Executive Committee (EEC) will automatically be 7 @ EEABTKREW U EBEHERAS
called into action when the HA activates the Tier-three Strategic EREHEH - Pl IRRIR B R E AR
Response to a major incident, which is defined as an incident with (S2) B2 RAES  BERBMIEZE
prolonged and territory-wide implications, such as the Serious KIEES  BoRERELZESARMAEE -

Level (S2) or Emergency Level Response to influenza pandemic.

Appendices fff&% 139



Appendix 3
By é% 3

Terms of Reference

1.

To act for the Hospital Authority Board and exercise its powers and

functions, including:

(a) altering, amending or overriding existing Hospital Authority
policies, standards, guidelines and procedures; and

(b) establishment of sub-committees or task forces to tackle
particular matters at hand;

To identify the objectives and assess the risks facing Hospital
Authority in emergency situation;

To approve the strategies and policies for managing the
emergency formulated by the Hospital Authority Central
Command Committee, and monitor implementation progress in
all HA hospitals and institutions;

To coordinate activities of the other Hospital Authority committees
including Hospital Governing Committees;

To ensure effective communication of clear and concise messages
to key stakeholders, including staff, patients, Government and the
public; and

To be accountable to the Authority Board and the making of
regular reports to Hospital Authority Members as soon as
practicable.
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Focus of Work in 2020-21

In response to the outbreak of COVID-19 in January 2020, the Committee
was activated on 6 January 2020 in accordance with the HA Response
Plan for Major Incident after HA activated the Tier-three Strategic
Response (“Serious Response Level’) on 4 January 2020. Against its
terms of reference, EEC acted for the Board and exercised its powers and
functions including, inter alia, altering, amending and overriding existing
HA policies, standards, guidelines and procedures in order to deal with
emergencies. Given the rapid and continuous development of COVID-19,
both globally and locally, the Committee remained in force in 2020-21
and met nine times during the year.

During the year, EEC received regular situation updates of COVID-19
from the management, and the corresponding implementation of
service adjustment plans in HA to dovetail with the pandemic situation.
The Committee considered and endorsed/approved HA policies and
actions, and extended contingency plans to deal with the emergencies.
It also received regular updates on the planning and commissioning
of community isolation and treatment facilities, and temporary
hospital, which aimed at providing extra containment capacities to HA
for managing COVID-19. The Committee also kept a close eye on the
utilisation of resources allocated by the Government for managing
COVID-19 in HA.

The Committee also considered and endorsed a number of initiatives
taken by HA to support the Government'’s effort in combating COVID-19,
for example, the Government’s Community Testing Scheme and
COVID-19 Vaccination Programme; HA's Information Technology agency
service to various Government COVID-19 related programmes; HKSAR
Government Special Support Scheme for Hospital Authority Chronic
Disease Patients Living in the Guangdong Province to Sustain Their
Medical Consultation under Coronavirus Disease-2019, etc.

As at 31 March 2021, Emergency Response Level remained in force. The
Committee would continue to provide the necessary steering and oversee
the actions taken or to be taken by HA.
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Finance Committee

MBEES

Membership List

KRERE

Chairman Mr Philip TSAI Wing-chung, BBS, JP

£ BoRBEE

Members Mr Howard CHAN Wai-kee, JP (up to 14.12.2020]

Mr Kevin CHOI, JP (from 15.12.2020)

[representing the Permanent Secretary for Food and Health (Health]]
BREESCAE (BE2020F 12514 8)

BHLEEEE (B 20204F 12 A 15 A#E)

[(RRBYREFEBFEEINER (FE)]

Mr Duncan CHIU

ERER B4

Ms Mary HUEN Wai-yi (from 8.4.2020)
BEERL (F2020F4A8H#E)

Dr Tony KO Pat-sing, Chief Executive
SIHERE TTHARE

Mr Franklin LAM Fan-keung, BBS
WEREL

Mr Raistlin LAU Chun, JP /

Ms Candy NIP Kai-yan (up to 21.7.2020)

Ms Jessica LEE Wing-tung (from 22.7.2020)

[representing the Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury]
S

BB (BE2020667H21H)

Y&t (20209 7 A 22 A#E)

[(RRIEEB R ERB/ER]

Mr Ivan SZE Wing-hang, BBS, JP
MesRIE A

Ms Priscilla WONG Pui-sze, SBS, JP
EDiifSacen

Mr Jason YEUNG Chi-wai
T EBSE A
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Terms of Reference

1. Advise and make recommendations on the financial aspects of the
Hospital Authority Corporate Plan and Annual Plan;

2. Advise and make recommendations on the financial planning,
control, performance, monitoring and reporting aspect of the
Hospital Authority;

&, Advise on policy guidelines for all financial matters, including

investment, business and insurance;

4. Advise and make recommendations on the resource allocation
policies;
5. Advise and recommend to the Hospital Authority on the financial

statements (audited and unaudited) of the Hospital Authority;

6. Liaise with the Trustees of the Hospital Authority Provident Fund
Scheme on financial and control related matters and make
recommendations to the Hospital Authority where appropriate;

7. Monitor the financial position of the Hospital Authority; and

8. Consider periodically matters relating to risk, risk management
and risk mitigation relevant to finance operations and other
relevant areas contributing to the financial risk profile of the
Hospital Authority.

Focus of Work in 2020-21

The Committee assisted the Board in ensuring proper stewardship and
effective use of public funds through making recommendations to the
Board on various finance related matters for the Authority. In 2020-21,
the Committee conducted four regular meetings. Due to the COVID-19
pandemic, the Committee transacted business planned for scheduled
meetings in May and July 2020 by circulation.

In support of the corporate strategy and services development of HA,
the Committee noted that the Government’'s committment to funding
arrangement for HA for the second triennium funding cycle (2021/22 to
2023/24). For HA's annual service and resource planning, the Committee
examined the proposed 2021-22 HA budget, resource allocation and
future financial arrangement. With due attention to the increased funding
for anti-epidemic measures, the Committee examined utilisation of the
$4.7 billion allocation from the Anti-Epidemic Fund and the $3.044 billion
additional subvention to HA for combating the next wave of the COVID-19
epidemic, as well as related control measures and reporting mechanism.
The Committee also received a report on reduction of licensing fees
for using HA premises in light of the economic downturn impacted by
the COVID-19 pandemic and with reference to the rental concession
measures introduced by the Government and other public bodies. On
service modernisation and mitigation of infection risks, the Committee
noted the progress on various initiatives in promoting cashless payment
for medical fees, including electronic kiosks, mobile payment application
and new electronic payment means.
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On accountability reporting, the Committee, jointly with the Audit and
Risk Committee, reviewed and endorsed HA's draft audited financial
statements for 2019-20. The Committee also considered the 2019-20
audited financial statements / accounts for a number of designated
programmes undertaken by HA, including the Samaritan Fund, the
Community Care Fund Medical Assistance Programmes, The HA
Charitable Foundation, the HA Public-Private Partnership Fund,
the minor works funded under the Capital Works Reserve Fund,
the development of Clinical Services Improvement Projects for the
Department of Health and the territory-wide Electronic Health Record
Programme. The 2019-20 Operation Report of the HA Provident Fund
Scheme was received by the Committee at a joint meeting with the
Human Resources Committee.

On monitoring of HA's financial position and financial performance, the
Committee received regular financial reports and conducted a mid-year
financial review together with the unaudited financial statements for the
six months ended 30 September 2020. The Committee also considered
matters relating to key financial performance indicators, waivers and
write-offs of hospital fees and charges, and debt management. With
the assistance of its Treasury Panel (TP), the Committee considered
matters related to HA's treasury management and operations, as well
as investment performance and related initiatives via regular progress
reports. The Committee reviewed relevant market analyses and as
recommended by the TP, approved a refined Renminbi investment
approach for portfolio diversification and yield enhancement, as well as
the strategies for payment bank arrangement to cope with the evolving
business model and payment service needs of HA. For financial risk
management, the Committee reviewed and endorsed the insurance
renewal approach and direction for HA in 2021-22. In accordance with
the HA organisation-wide risk management framework, the Committee
reviewed the effectiveness of risk mitigation actions taken in the past
year on finance matters, and proactively assessed key financial risks
anticipated for 2021 and considered corresponding action plans.

The Committee also reviewed the annual work plan of the Finance
Division to guide the effective and efficient functioning of various finance
related matters of HA.

144 Hospital Authority Annual Report Bfx &1 F 3R 2020-2021

EEEREFA ZESEBRE RERKRERE
ZEgWEE L FHKBBEER2019-20FE
KEZNMBREREL ZESNBEZHEER
HITHE TIEE T8/ 2019-20 FF E A& B AZ B 75
Hw /RE  BERMSAHEES  BEEASEEER
Bitd BEREEES BERALERHEER
b EATREREEESHBRN/NETRE  AE4
ERITHRKRRGRAEE UREBHENE T
R RS - ZEENMEEANERZESH
BAagmt  KEABERAEEEI2019-20F
EBERE o

EEREERMNVBKARIBRRIE £ES
W B BRI 5y - W ABIE 202059 A30H
LE7N{E A RSB AR B B 3R R & R B B AT o
REENEFREHBERTBUBRIFEE - Ak
MiFEBRWEBEAREREESER - 8L H
EERS/NERRBI T - WiEBATIR R AT Bt RS R
HEHEERESTENEIE  URIEEREFIE
HEE - KEGBEEMSES T - TESRER/IME
MEHRIZEELARBEIEESN - UHEIRER
ARIEINER - ZE S IMEAZ T FIRITLHED
RS DA BE RN EBEEE R RS
TT o AHMERAREEIT ZESRENABR
2021-22 FE B E RRRFTEIMERT ATt o
BEBRERNEERREIERE T8GR
E—F R R E R AR R I E &R
2021 FHTEFT = BRI KRR RTS8

ZEENENMBHNEFE IS RBER
ERMBAAREE R REA BUDEE -



Human Resources Committee

ADERZEE
Membership List
RERE

Chairman

*E

Vice Chairman

EES:

Members

&

Mrs Ann KUNG YEUNG Yun-chi, JP
BEgREL+

Ms Lisa LAU Man-man, BBS, MH, JP
B34

Prof Francis CHAN Ka-leung, SBS, JP
PR o2

Prof CHAN Wai-yee
PRIZEHUX

Ms Margaret CHENG Wai-ching, JP (from 7.4.2020)
BEE R (H2020F4 A7 HiEE)

Dr Tony KO Pat-sing, Chief Executive
SRR E TR,

Mr Quinton LAM Chun-ki
MEESEAE

Mr Franklin LAM Fan-keung, BBS
MERELE

Miss Trista LIM Mei-yee

[representing the Permanent Secretary for Food and Health (Health]]
MEBLL

[(RRRYREFEBEFRER (FE)]

Prof David SHUM Ho-keung

LIERHIK

Mr Ivan SZE Wing-hang, BBS, JP
MEERTE S

Ms Priscilla WONG Pui-sze, SBS, JP
EDiif 3 en

Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong
BEokEEE
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Terms of Reference

1. Advise on manpower planning;
2. Advise on staff training and development matters;
3. Advise, review and make recommendations on human resources

policies and related issues;

4. Advise, review and make recommendations to the Hospital
Authority on the terms and conditions of employment for staff;

5. Advise, review and make recommendations to the Hospital
Authority on staff pay awards and overall staffing structure;

6. Advise, review and make recommendations to the Hospital
Authority on any other staff related matters;

7. Consider periodically matters relating to risk, risk management
and risk mitigation relevant to human resources management;

8. Monitor the performance of the Hospital Authority Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes and make recommendations to the
Hospital Authority as and when necessary; and

9. Liaise with the Trustees of the Hospital Authority Provident
Fund Scheme on member and communication related matters
and make recommendations to the Hospital Authority where
appropriate.

Focus of Work in 2020-21

In 2020-21, the Committee met six times to discuss and consider various
human resource (HR) matters of HA.

The Committee considered and advised on a wide range of HR
management initiatives for boosting staff morale and retaining talents.
These included endorsement of a number of HR measures, covering
conversion from contract to permanent terms for non-Directorate grade
staff, extension of statutory maternity leave under the Employment
(Amendment) Ordinance 2020, and enhancement of the current locum
doctor package and extension of the scope of locum recruitment to
supporting staff. The manpower requirement and strategies for nurses,
as well as allied health and pharmacy professionals were discussed. The
Committee also received an update on the work of the Task Group on
Sustainability and its Sub-group on Human Capital, which had drawn up a
number of key strategic directions for staff retention and transformation
of human capital. In addition, the Committee received annual progress
report on the recruitment of non-locally trained doctors under the
Limited Registration Scheme. The Committee considered and supported
following the Government's pay freeze for civil servants in the 2020-21
annual pay adjustment for HA employees for approval by the HA Board.
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Staff training and development was one of the key HR strategies. Apart
from quarterly reviews on HR Key Performance Indicators (KPIs), the
Committee discussed and endorsed the proposed adoption of Training
KPIs and related implementation arrangement. The Committee also
received an update on the latest position of the collaboration project for
upgrading HA Higher Diploma in Nursing Programme from Qualification
Level 4 to Level 5, as well as regular progress reports from the Central
Training & Development Committee. As for staffing structure, the
Committee considered and endorsed the proposed career structure for
staff under the statistics and data science function, and was informed
of the development of the new Occupational Safety Hygienist grade and
the results of the consultancy study on Human Resources Organisation
Review.

On corporate governance, the Committee considered and endorsed the
proposed revised Delegation of Authority Manual on HR functions and
recommendations regarding the Authorise and Direct arrangement.
During the year, the Committee was also briefed on the Annual Report
on HA Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme. It also received annual reports
on a wide range of HR-related matters, including 2019-20 Operation
Report of the HA Provident Fund Scheme in a joint meeting with the
Finance Committee, Annual Report on Occupational Safety and Health
and Workplace Violence 2019-20, as well as Report on Staff Complaints
Received in Year 2019. The Committee also discussed the initiatives to
promote workplace harmony in HA.

In accordance with the HA organisation-wide risk management
framework, the Committee considered the People Resources Risk
Assessment by reviewing the effectiveness of risk mitigation actions
taken on HR front in the past year, and proactively assessed HR risks
anticipated for 2021 and considered the corresponding action plans.
It also received the 2019 Whistleblowing Report which summarised
the handling of five whistleblowing cases received by HA in 2019, and
noted two incidents in the grant of special allowance / honorarium to HA
employees and the corresponding measures to mitigate similar risks in
the future. The Committee was also kept informed of follow-up actions
on the incident of absence from duty of some staff during 3-7 February
2020.
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Information Technology Services Governing Committee
EANEEREERZES

Membership List

KRERE
Chairman Dr Tony KO Pat-sing, Chief Executive
TE SRR E TR,
Members Mr Duncan CHIU
K& ERER R AE
Mr David FONG Man-hung, BBS, JP
T XS
Mr Daniel LAI, BBS, JP
FESHER ST A

Mr Victor LAM, JP

Government Chief Information Officer
MEBEE

BATEA R A8 E:

Prof LAU Chak-sing, JP

222 HE

Hon Charles Peter MOK, JP
EREE

Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong

BEokERAE

Miss Amy YUEN Wai-yin, JP

Deputy Secretary for Food and Health (Health)2

mEEXTL
RYRFLEBEINER (FE)2
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Terms of Reference

1. Approve corporate policies and standards for Information
Technology / Information Systems;

2. Approve and monitor the overall progress of the implementation of
the Information Technology / Information Systems Strategic Plan;

& Approve and monitor the execution of the Information Technology /
Information Systems Annual Business Plan;

4. Receive recommendations on the priorities for Information
Technology systems development and implementation;

5. Receive advice from the Information Technology Technical
Advisory Subcommittee;

6. Receive performance and status reports;

7. Provide periodic progress report to the Hospital Authority Board;

and

8. Consider matters relating to risk, risk management and risk
mitigation relevant to Information Technology across Hospital
Authority.

Focus of Work in 2020-21

In 2020-21, the Committee conducted four meetings, with some other
businesses transacted by circulation. In the year, the Committee
discussed and advised on strategies and implementation initiatives,
in support of the five-year IT Strategy 2017-2022 (IT Strategy), which
laid out key directions to support digital transformation of HA's service
provision and uplift service capability. These included the next generation
IT infrastructure of HA for supporting the development of smart hospitals
and digital workplace; the development of full network connectivity,
advanced technologies, and sustainability in hospital projects; the report
on the Cluster IT Baseline Manpower Consultancy Study; management
of risks in the Clinical Information Management System Stage |l
(CIMS2) project being undertaken by HA as the technical agency of the
Department of Health (DHJ); and measures for enriching IT staff skills
to cope with new IT service demands for supporting HA's service plans.
The Committee also discussed progress of work on the key IT strategies,
viz. Cybersecurity Enhancement Programme under the Cybersecurity
Strategy; Smart Sourcing Strategy for procuring offsite development
centre services; Artificial Intelligence (Al] Strategy and the development
of the Al and Data Analytics Platform; Smart Hospital Strategy and
implementation approach and roadmap; and Digital Workplace Strategy.
It also discussed the progress of work on HA Data Collaboration Lab.
The Committee was briefed on HA's network incident in August 2020
with the remedial actions including the plan for external consultancy for
reviewing the network architecture. The Committee was also briefed on
the major IT-enabled initiatives that HA had implemented in the combat
against the outbreak of COVID-19 and the security assessment on web-
conferencing tool frequently used in HA.
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On plans to meet the growing demand for IT systems to support the
operation of the organisation, the Committee considered and endorsed
the IT Block Vote Submission for 2021-22. The Committee also
considered and approved the Annual Work Plan 2021-22 of the IT and
Health Informatics Division (IT&HID) for responding to challenges in
continuing existing service delivery and delivering the major strategic
IT-enabled projects and related transformational initiatives.

To fulfil its overseeing functions, the Committee monitored the
implementation of the IT&HID Annual Work Plan by considering,
amongst others, the performance and status reports of respective IT
functions. Progress update on various IT projects, including Clinical
Management System |V, business supporting IT systems, Electronic
Health Record (eHR) projects and CIMS2 project, was among the
standing agenda items of the Committee’s meetings. The Committee
also monitored the ongoing efforts of IT&HID in the development and
implementation of the Government’s eHR Programme for which HA was
the technical agent and participated as a major user of eHR Sharing
System, and endorsed the draft audited financial statements related to
eHR Programme undertaken by HA. The audited accounts of the Clinical
Services Improvement Projects undertaken by HA as technical agent,
i.e. the CIMS2 project, for DH was endorsed by the Committee. In
addition, the Committee reviewed the effectiveness of risk mitigation
actions taken in the past year, and assessed IT risks anticipated for 2021
and considered corresponding action plans.

The Committee reviewed regular progress reports from the Information
Technology Technical Advisory Subcommittee, a subcommittee formed
under the Committee to advise on major IT initiatives and IT technical
matters proposed for implementation in HA.
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Main Tender Board

HREBEEES

Membership List
KMERE
Chairman

R

Vice-Chairmen

BEE
Ex-officio members

ERRE

Members

o4

Mr Ivan SZE Wing-hang, BBS, JP
S v

Mr Gregory LEUNG Wing-lup, SBS
Mr Lincoln TSO Lai
BREL

Dr Tony KO Pat-sing, Chief Executive
SRR E TTRAEE,
(or his nominated representative)

(TTRAER A AT EAR)

Ms Anita CHAN Shuk-yu, Director [Finance)
[or her nominated representative)

BRI A+ A1 AREE
(MBHAEHEAZEAR)

Two of the following members on rotation:
UTEPWARERS :

Prof Edwin CHAN Hon-wan

BROZEEHIX

Mr CHAN How-chi, MH

BRERSEE

Prof Francis CHAN Ka-leung, SBS, JP
BRR e hi%

Dr Andrew CHAN Ping-chiu, BBS
BRNEIE L

Prof CHAN Wai-yee
BRIE BHR

Ms Margaret CHENG Wai-ching, JP (from 7.4.2020]

B E 2w+ (20204 A7 H#E)

Mr Stanley CHEUNG Tak-kwai
RIEESEE

Mr Duncan CHIU
ERER A

Prof Joanne CHUNG Wai-yee
BREEHUX

Mr David FONG Man-hung, BBS, JP
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Mr Ambrose HO, SBS, JP
(BN &t

Ms Mary HUEN Wai-yi [from 8.4.2020)
BEEZL (H2020F4 A8 HE)

Dr KAM Pok-man, BBS
HigxigL

Prof Joseph KWAN Kai-cho
RAREIEHUX

Mr Quinton LAM Chun-ki
MIEE ST AE

Mr Franklin LAM Fan-keung, BBS
WERELE

Prof LAU Chak-sing, JP
REHE

Dr James LAU Chi-wang, BBS, JP
REREL

Ms Lisa LAU Man-man, BBS, MH, JP
Ehee e

Dr Peter LEE Kwok-wah

TEEF LT

Prof Gabriel Matthew LEUNG, GBS, JP
R BB

Mr William LEUNG Shu-yin
2B LE

Ir Dr Hon LO Wai-kwok, GBS, MH, JP (up to 30.11.2020)
EEEET (HE2020F 11 A30H)

Mr Wilson MOK Yu-sang
Ra st

Prof David SHUM Ho-keung
SIERHUX

Prof Agnes TIWARI Fung-yee
RREHER

Mr Vincent TONG Wing-shing, BBS
IR ST A

Dr Thomas TSANG Ho-fai (from 15.12.2020)
S SABER L (f 20204 12 8 15 HAE)

Ir Billy WONG Wing-hoo, BBS, JP

Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong
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Terms of Reference

1.

Note:

To consider and approve tenders and contract variations in the

Hospital Authority in accordance with the delegation of authority

limits approved by the Board, including:

(a) To review and assess the recommendations made by the
assessment panel;

(b) To review the procedures and criteria adopted by the
assessment panel in the course of its selection; and

(c) To approve the selection made by the assessment panel after
satisfying itself that (a) and (b] are in order and such approval
should be final.

To receive management reporting of acceptance of offer approved
in the Head Office by a Director in exercising Special Authority for
Urgent Direct Purchase.

Under the prevailing Hospital Authority Procurement and
Materials Management Manual approved by the Board, the
schedule of authority limits in respect of the Main Tender Board
includes approval of tender exceeding $1.5 million centrally
coordinated by Hospital Authority Head Office, or exceeding
$4.5 million for those arranged by the clusters / hospitals.
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Focus of Work in 2020-21

The Main Tender Board (MTB] is organised into two Tender Boards,
each meeting once a month, with MTB(1) mainly focusing on tenders
for pharmaceutical products and medical consumables; and MTB(2) on
tenders of other subjects (e.g. medical equipment, contract services,
consultancies etc.). In 2020-21, MTB considered over 830 papers on
procurement of various supplies and services that were individually at
value of over $1.5 million for HA Head Office; and above $4.5 million
for clusters and hospitals. Tenders for procurement of supplies mainly
covered purchases of pharmaceutical products, medical and laboratory
equipment and their consumables, whereas service tenders were mainly
related to hospital supporting services, maintenance of medical and
laboratory equipment, and information technology systems. Capital
works tenders were mainly on hospital redevelopment projects and
minor works improvements for maintenance of hospital premises. In
connection with HA's measures in combating the COVID-19 outbreak,
MTB also received 48 management reports on urgent direct purchases
on personal protective equipment, drugs, laboratory reagents and
consumables, other items (e.g. hand rub) and services (e.g. clinical
services in the private sector and support services and licence
agreement for temporary treatment facilities) etc. that were made in
2020-21 exceeding the authority limits of the concerned personnel or the
special delegation of procurement authority to meet urgent operational
needs under the Emergency Response Level.

An “Annual Summary on the Work of MTB 2019-20" was circulated
for Members’ information. It provided an update on the special
procurement arrangement as endorsed by the HA Board for increasing
the procurement efficiency and capacity and ensuring timely supply
of goods / services during the Emergency / Serious Response Levels
under the pandemic situation. Other subjects covered in the annual
summary paper included the adoption of different procurement channels
in HA, analysis on single tenders and risk mitigation measures, drugs
expenditures and pricing trend, as well as the major updates on the
corporate procurement policies and practices etc.
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Medical Services Development Committee
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Members Dr Constance CHAN Hon-yee, JP, Director of Health
RE PROERELE FLEEER
Prof Francis CHAN Ka-leung, SBS, JP
PR e HUX
Prof CHAN Wai-yee
BRIZEHIX

Dr Tony KO Pat-sing, Chief Executive
SRR E TTRAAE,

Mr Quinton LAM Chun-ki
AL

Mr Franklin LAM Fan-keung, BBS
WERIELE

Prof LAU CHAK-sing, JP
BEEHE

Mr Raistlin LAU Chun, JP /

Ms Candy NIP Kai-yan [up to 21.7.2020)

Ms Jessica LEE Wing-tung (from 22.7.2020)

[representing the Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury]
BBk /

BER L (BE2020F7A21H)

k&t (F20209F 7 A 22 HiE)

(RERIEERRER/BRBR)

Prof Gabriel Matthew LEUNG, GBS, JP
R (BRI

Prof David SHUM Ho-keung
SIEBRHIR

Prof Agnes TIWARI Fung-yee
ZERIEHIR

Dr Thomas TSANG Ho-fai (from 1.12.2020)
S SAEER A (F 20204F 12 B 1 HAE)

Ms Elizabeth TSE Man-yee, GBS, JP [up to 4.6.2020)
Mr Thomas CHAN Chung-ching, JP (from 5.6.2020)
Permanent Secretary for Food and Health [Health]
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Terms of Reference

1.

Examine, review and make recommendations on the changing
needs of the community in respect of clinical services provided by
public hospitals and institutions;

Advise and make recommendations on the overall policies,
directions and strategies relating to the provision, planning and
development of the public hospitals and related services, having
regard to the availability of technology, staff and other resources
and the need to provide a patient-centred, outcome-focused
quality healthcare service by a knowledge-based organisation;

Consider and make recommendations on the overall priorities for
the planning and development of the public hospitals and related
services in order to ensure an optimal utilisation of available
resources;

Consider, review and make recommendations on any other
matters related to the planning and development of the public
hospitals and related services;

Consider periodically matters relating to risk, risk management
and risk mitigation relevant to medical services development; and

Exercise powers delegated by the Board on the following matters:

(a) approve the scope of coverage of the Samaritan Fund, on
the recommendation of the Management Committee of the
Samaritan Fund;

(b) approve the scope of coverage of the Hospital Authority
Public-Private Partnership Fund, on the recommendation
of the Management Committee for the Hospital Authority
Public-Private Partnership (PPP) Fund and Clinical PPP
Programmes; and

(c) approve clinical service plans on specialty services and
redevelopment projects, except those involving decisions on
financial provisions.
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Focus of Work in 2020-21

In 2020-21, the Committee met four times to discuss and consider
matters relating to the planning, development and management
of clinical services. Due to the COVID-19 outbreak, the Committee
transacted business planned for meetings scheduled for April and
August 2020 by circulation.

Along the corporate strategy and planned future service directions of HA,
the Committee considered and approved the Clinical Services Plan for
the Hong Kong East Cluster, which set out the future service directions
and development in the cluster for the next 10-15 years. For clinical
services development, the Committee discussed the development of
telehealth in HA, preliminary evaluation of drug refill services in HA
and the future plans, development of Integrated Chinese-Western
Medicine Programme, progress of the master implementation plan of
HA Strategic Service Framework for Genetic and Genomic Services,
introduction of Chimeric Antigen Receptor T Cell Therapy service for
treatment of certain types of cancers, strategy for improving Positron
Emission Tomography service in HA, as well as alignment of the dental
services funded by HA and the provision of additional dental care by non-
HA dental units in public hospitals. Relating to community services, the
Committee was briefed on the enhanced service model for Community
Geriatric Assessment Team and Visiting Medical Officer services. The
Committee also considered various clinical Public-Private Partnership
(PPP) Programmes, which aimed to share out demand and enhance
patient choices.

The Committee considered and commented on a wide range of clinical
management issues, including approval of new drugs / indications,
medical and rehabilitation items to be covered by the Samaritan Fund in
2020-21; revamp of HA research ethics governance and progress update
on management of advanced technology under Government funding
and arrangement for 2021-22. In regard to the HA organisation-wide
risk management framework, the Committee monitored clinical risk
management through considering the report on patient service and care,
which assessed the effectiveness of mitigation actions taken in the past
year, as well as the risks anticipated for 2021 and the planned actions.
Regarding the impact of COVID-19 pandemic, the Committee considered
the plan for service resumption in response to the COVID-19 pandemic,
the report on winter surge preparation under COVID-19 and the newly
developed PPP Programmes under COVID-19. On quality improvement,
the Committee was also briefed on the 2019-20 HA Patient Experience
Survey on inpatient services and progress update on Integrated Model of
Specialist Outpatient Service through Nurse Clinics. The Committee also
considered proposals / regular reports on other matters, including the
Controlling Officer’'s Report in 2020-21 and development / monitoring /
review of clinical service key performance indicators.
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Public Complaints Committee

ABRBFEER

Membership List

RERE

Chairman Mr Ilvan SZE Wing-hang, BBS, JP

EE MESRIE S

Vice-Chairman Mr WONG Kwai-huen, BBS, JP*

BlEfE FrEEAA

Members Ms Rebecca CHAN Chui-mi (from 1.12.2020)
RE BREE &+ (B 20204F 12 A1 B#E)

Dr Jane CHAN Chun-kwong* (up to 30.11.2020)
BRELEEA * (BtE2020F 11 H30A)

Mr Raymond CHAN Kwan-tak
BRE®BEE

Ms Christine Barbara CHAN So-han, BBS (up to 30.11.2020]
BRE=MI L (BE 2020611 A30H)

Mr CHAN Wing-kai
BRoK L

Mr Vincent CHAN Wing-shing, MH
BRAGRSEE

Ms Peggy CHING Pui-ki (up to 30.11.2020]
FRMEL AL+ (B = 20204 11 A 30 8)

Rev Dr Andrew CHOI Chung-ho
ZERRREM

Dr CHUNG Chin-hung*
BRBEL

Prof Sylvia FUNG Yuk-kuen, BBS (from 1.12.2020]
BERIBHIR (B 20204F 12 B 1 HAE)

Mr HO Sau-him
fAISFFRSEAE

Mr Herman HUI Chung-shing, SBS, MH, JP
PR A

Mr Samuel HUI Kwok-ting

FFRELLE

Mr Joe KWOK Jing-keung, SBS, FSDSM
SPERR A

Mr KWOK Leung-ming, SBS, CSDSM
AR A

Mr Alex LAM Chi-yau
MER T E

Ms Lisa LAU Man-man, BBS, MH, JP*
B3t
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Dr Agnes LAW Koon-chui, JP
EEREL

Mr Peter LEE Shung-tak, BBS, JP
FRERE

Ms Maggie LEUNG Yee-mei (up to 30.11.2020)
RGEL L (#1Z 202011 F30H)

Prof LI Chi-kong, JP* (from 1.12.2020]
ENHIE * (B 2020F 12 A1 HAE)

Ms Manbo MAN Bo-lin, MH

MIRE L+

Mr Simon MOK Sai-man, MH

BHRE4E

Mr Frederick TONG Kin-sang (from 1.12.2020]
BEEALE (F2020F 12 5 1 HAE)

Mr TSE Man-shing, BBS, JP (up to 20.4.2020)
EME A (B2 2020F4 A20H)

Dr WONG Chun-por, JP*
FHERBE

Mr Paul WU Wai-keung
HRER L

Ms Agnes Garman YEH
S S

Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong
BEXERE

* Panel Chairman /NMAEfE

Terms of Reference

1.

The Public Complaints Committee (PCC]) is the final complaint
redress and appeal body of the Hospital Authority (“HA”);

The PCC shall independently:

(a) consider and decide upon complaints from members of the
public who are dissatisfied with the response of the HA /
hospital to which they have initially directed their complaints;

(b) monitor HA's handling of complaints;

Pursuant to Para 2 above, the PCC shall independently advise
and monitor the HA on the PCC’s recommendations and their
implementation;

In handling complaint cases, the PCC shall follow the PCC
Complaint Handling Guidelines (Annex) which may be amended
from time to time; and

The PCC shall from time to time and at least once a year, make
reports to the HA Board and public, including statistics or raising
important issues where applicable.
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Annex

Guidelines on the handling of complaint cases in the Public Complaints
Committee (“the PCC")

1. The PCC is an appeal body within the Hospital Authority (“the HA”)
to consider appeals made by the public relating to its services.
Based on its Terms of Reference, the following are guidelines set
by the PCC to facilitate the handling of complaints.

2. The PCC shall not normally handle a complaint:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)
(e)

(f)

(g)

(h)

(i)
(j)

(k)

if the complaint relates to services provided by the HA
more than 2 years before the date of the lodging of the
complaint, unless the PCC is satisfied that in the particular
circumstances it is proper to conduct an investigation into
such complaint not made within that period;

if the complaint is made anonymously and / or the complainant
cannot be identified or traced;

if the complainant has failed to obtain the proper consent
of the patient, to whom the services were provided, in the
lodging of the complaint (this restriction will not be applicable
if the patient has died or is for any reason unable to act for
himself or herself);

if the subject matter of the complaint has been referred to or
is being considered by the coroner;

if the complaint relates to a matter for which a specific
statutory complaint procedure exists;

if the complainant or the patient concerned has instituted
legal proceedings, or has indicated that he / she will institute
legal proceedings, against the HA, the hospital or any persons
who provided the services (in any event, the Committee shall
not entertain any request for compensation);

if the complaint relates to dispute over the established
policies of HA, for example fees charging policy of the HA in
respect of its services;

if the complaint relates to an assessment made by a medical
staff pursuant to any statutory scheme whereas such
scheme provides for a channel of appeal, for example, the
granting of sick leave under the provisions of the Employees’
Compensation Ordinance, Cap. 282;

if the complaint relates to personnel matters or contractual
matters and commercial matters;

if the PCC considers that the complaint is frivolous or
vexatious or is not made in good faith; or

if the complaint, or a complaint of a substantially similar
nature, has previously been the subject matter of a complaint
which had been decided upon by the PCC.
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3 Taking into account the following:

(a) the disclosure of legal privileged documents in an open
hearing;

(b) the disclosure of personal data in an open hearing;

(c) the PCCis not a judicial or quasi-judicial body;

(d) anaggrieved party has other channels to seek redress; and

(e) the PCC should not duplicate the functions of other institutions
such as the courts or the Medical Council;

the PCC considers that its meetings shall not be open to the
public.

4. In considering the merits of a complaint, the PCC may from time
to time obtain expert opinion by medical professionals or other
experts relating to the subject matter of the complaint. If the PCC
considers appropriate, it may also invite the complainant, the
patient, the medical staffs or any other relevant persons to attend
an interview.

(The above Guidelines on the handling of complaint cases may be
amended from time to time as appropriate.)

Focus of work in 2020-21

In 2020-21, the Public Complaints Committee held 15 meetings
and handled a total of 239 cases relating to medical services, staff
attitude and administrative procedure etc. In addition to the handling
of appeal cases, the Committee also advised on complaint handling
policies to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the Authority’s
complaints system, and make recommendations for system change
and improvement of healthcare services. Regular internal and
external communication programmes were conducted to enhance the
transparency and credibility of the Authority’s complaints system and
the Committee as the final appeal body. Through its Secretariat, the
Committee also shared important lessons learned for risk management
and organised regular complaint management training for enhancing the
skills of hospital's Patient Relations Officers (PROs) in conflict resolution.
To strengthen collaboration between hospitals and the Committee, a
partnership programme was launched to engage PROs and clinical
leaders to attend PCC meetings.

As a good corporate governance practice, the Committee conducted
self-assessment exercise to review its activities in the past year, having
regard to its Terms of Reference, for continuous improvement.

Appendix 3
Bt &% 3

3. ZEgLEETIREZE REESETRE
MARAH :
(a) AHERSWELBREAE

b) AHREHSREFBEALNEAER
c) ZEGWIRDESIBRURDERSE

d) BEITFA—TTHARMBFRE : &
e) ZESIETEMEMEE (WEERX

EZER) 58 -

(
(
(
(

4. MNERKFHRIFHER  ZESARKR
MEBAT  BABEREXIEMARINE
ZER - ZEEMARIBE - AL RIRH
A BA - BEAERHEMBRAL -

(ZEEABETERTRER] LAURREEIEES] © )

2020-21 FE TEHER

£ 2020-21FE - AREFEZESHL[HAIRE
HERRE 29T REERY BTAE - /TR
FENEZR - TESHEIE FFEZR - TR
BRIEERIRHEER « IRABE RIRFREES A
MR R - Witk E B X KRS IR 2% -
ZEeTHETHAREINGS - REBERRF
RIBGIFERENMAET - TEARRAHBEESY
DEERBRAZREFNRE LFEE - ZESN
BRMERD ZRERMELER  RERRERE -
B % B T R PR R R IR 5 S - 1—TT 2B SE
NE A& FAERRADEHIEEN © BIN  ZE G INEGE
BT AR S EMBEREMSMEE SR - DI
e o

RERRIEBEL  ZESETTARN R
RIFERESERBE—FHTIE - TEHE -

Appendices Kf$& 161



Appendix 3
B 8% 3

Staff Appeals Committee

BELRZEESE
Membership List
KRERE
Chairman Mr Lawrence LEE Kam-hung, BBS, JP
Members Ms Margaret CHENG Wai-ching, JP (from 7.4.2020]
RE BEE LT (H2020F4 A7 HEE)
Mr Ambrose HO, SBS, JP
(Gt
Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong
BORERAE
Mr Paul YU Shiu-tin, BBS, JP
RRATEE
Terms of Reference
1. To consider and decide upon appeals from staff members who

have raised a grievance through the normal internal complaint
channels and who wish to appeal against the decision made.

2. The Committee shall:

(a) consider whether the appeal cases need further investigation
by the management;

(b) direct the appeal cases to be investigated;

(c) have access to all the relevant information required from the
management for making a decision;

(d) ensure that appropriate action is taken; and

(e) reply to the appellant.

g8 The Committee’s decision shall represent the Hospital Authority’s
decision and shall be final.

4. The Committee shall make annual reports to the Hospital
Authority Board.
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Focus of Work in 2020-21

The Committee serves to consider and decide on appeals from staff
members who have raised a grievance and appeal through the normal
internal complaint channels established in HA and who wish to make
further appeal against the decision made. The Committee’s decision
shall represent HA's decision and shall be final.

In 2020-21, the Committee received no new appeal case, and concluded
one appeal case. On the latter, after reviewing all the relevant
information, Members decided that the Committee should not proceed
with the case as the appellant had initiated claim for damages against HA
for personal injuries arising from the concerned incident along with the
appeal filed with the Committee. That said, in the process of reviewing
the case, the Committee identified room for improvement in addressing
specific issues of concern raised by the appellant. The observations
and recommendations were conveyed to the management team for
follow-up.
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Supporting Services Development Committee

XERBEREES

Membership List

KRERE

Chairman Mr Daniel LAM Chun, SBS, JP

EE WERE

Vice-Chairman Mr David FONG Man-hung, BBS, JP

BIERE TR

Members Prof Edwin CHAN Hon-wan

KE REEHIX
Dr Andrew CHAN Ping-chiu, BBS
FRIAEITE L

Dr Tony KO Pat-sing, Chief Executive
SIEE L TTHAEE

Mr Franklin LAM Fan-keung, BBS
WERELE

Dr James LAU Chi-wang, BBS, JP
BIEREL

Dr Peter LEE Kwok-wah

FRIEFL

Mr Gregory LEUNG Wing-lup, SBS
RIKLRHE

Miss Trista LIM Mei-yee
[representing the Permanent Secretary for Food and Health (Health]]
MERLL
[(RRBYREFEBFEEIWER (FE)]
Ir Dr Hon LO Wai-kwok, GBS, MH, JP (up to 30.11.2020)
EERIELT (8= 2020F 11 HA30H)
Prof Agnes TIWARI Fung-yee

R EHIX

Mr Vincent TONG Wing-shing, BBS
rND e

Mr Philip TSAI Wing-chung, BBS, JP
BOKBEE

Mr Lincoln TSO Lai

LS

Ir Billy WONG Wing-hoo, BBS, JP
EAOREE

Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong
EokERE
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Terms of Reference

1. Advise on the directions and policies related to the development of
Business Support Services and Environmental Protection to best
support clinical services delivery in the Hospital Authority;

2. Review and monitor the annual capital expenditure plan approved
by the Hospital Authority Board;

& Review and advise on the implementation and monitoring of
Capital Works Projects in the Hospital Authority;

4. Review and advise on the new initiatives in Business Support
Services such as improvements in supply chain management,
equipment management, strategic outsourcing and public-
private-partnership of non-core functions, and the development of
supporting services for revenue generation;

5. Advise on the adoption of better practices and industry innovations
related to the planning and delivery of Business Support Services
and implementation of Capital Works Projects in the Hospital
Authority; and

6. Consider periodically matters relating to risk, risk management
and risk mitigation relevant to business support services and
capital expenditure projects and other areas under the purview of
the Committee.

Focus of Work in 2020-21

In 2020-21, the Committee met three times to advise on directions and
policies related to the development of business support services and
capital planning to support clinical service delivery in HA. Due to the
COVID-19 outbreak, the Committee transacted business planned for a
meeting scheduled for September 2020 by circulation.

On business support services, the Committee considered and endorsed
the service framework of Family Overnight Rooms in Hong Kong
Children’s Hospital for carers or family members of the hospitalised
children. The Committee received updates on the implementation of
new weighting on marking schemes for non-works related tenders and
enhancement measures for the protection of non-skilled workers in
supporting services contracts in HA, and the progress of the development
of the new HA Supporting Services Centre. The Committee also received
annual reports respectively on hospital security, and contracts with price
adjustment approved by the respective HA management via “Authorise
and Direct” as delegated by the Main Tender Board. Besides, the
Committee discussed the progress for replacement of aged equipment
and new purchases in 2020-21 and supported the high level forward
procurement plan up to 2023-24.
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With respect to capital planning, the Committee received annual situation
update on progress of projects under the First Ten-year Hospital
Development Plan; noted the recommendations of the consultancy
study on noise control of electrical, mechanical, air-conditioning and
building services (EMABS) installations for HA's capital works projects;
and endorsed the procurement strategy of operation and maintenance
services for EMABS systems. The Committee also received annual
report of review on hospital engineering related incidents and mitigation
measures; as well as accident statistics of HA capital works projects
in 2019. The recommendations of the review on suitability of adopting
the New Engineering Contract form of contract were examined by the
Committee. For minor works projects, the Committee received reports
on implementation progress of various projects and the financial position,
and endorsed the annual audited accounts for one-off grant for minor
works projects. The Committee also reviewed and endorsed the annual
capital expenditure plan for 2020-21. The Committee noted the progress
of a consultancy study on the organisation structure of management
of works projects and offered advice on formulation of execution plans
to further enhance the skills of Facility Managers and to adopt new
technology in daily practice.

Development milestones of Community Treatment Facility at AsiaWorld-
Expo and the North Lantau Hospital Hong Kong Infection Control
Centre, which provided extra containment capacities to HA for managing
COVID-19 patients, were reported to the Committee for information. To
improve the cash flow of consultants and contractors of capital works
projects amid the COVID-19 pandemic, the Committee was informed that
HA had followed the direction of the Development Bureau and arranged
a one-off “special advance payment” to ease their difficult economic
situation.

In accordance with the HA organisation-wide risk management
framework, the Committee assessed the risks relating to business
support services, pharmaceutical supplies and capital planning, including
the effectiveness of risk mitigation measures taken in the past year, risks
anticipated for 2021 and the planned actions.

For monitoring, the Committee received regular reports from the
management on the implementation progress of major capital works and
minor works. It also reviewed regular progress reports from the Capital
Works Subcommittee, a subcommittee formed under the Committee to
advise on mainly the planning, implementation, as well as progress and
financial monitoring of major capital works projects.
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MEMBERSHIP OF HOSPITAL GOVERNING COMMITTEES

=rECZTEBHE
Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital
B KA AT = &b

Chairman

EE

Ex-officio members
ERRE

Members

&

Mr John LI Kwok-heem, MH
RS

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

Bl e R BT RS E K
Hospital Chief Executive
Bl TEEEs

Mr Derek CHAN Man-foon
PR E SR

Bishop Rev Ben CHANG Chun-wa
RIRIEEEE

Ms Michelle CHOW Yan-wai
BREZ+

Mr CHU King-yuen, SBS, MH, JP
RTEE

Mr Richard FUNG Lap-chung
vl vt

Dr Simon FUNG Siu-hung
A

Rev Canon Peter Douglas KOON Ho-ming, BBS

B NS A BUHD

Prof Simon KWAN Shui-man

A SR

Mr Roger LEE Chee-wah
FEELE

Rev Augusta LEUNG Lai-Ngor
ZEBIRED

Dr Pamela LEUNG Ming-kuen, BBS, JP
REABEERLE

Mr Gregory LEUNG Wing-lup, SBS
RIKIL SR

Ir Dr Hon LO Wai-kwok, GBS, MH, JP
EREREL

Mr Wilson MOK Yu-sang
RERE

Mr TAl Wing-ting

BoKERE

Mr Eric TAM Wing-fun, MH

e b

Mr Herman TSOI Hak-chiu
LS

Rev WONG Ka-fai
FKIEED
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Bradbury Hospice

AEEEEF O

Chairman Dr Joseph LEE Man-ho

£ EURBE

Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

ERANE BREREBITHAHSIHRE
Hospital Chief Executive
BRI ARES

Members Ms Rebecca HUNG Tzu-wei

RE RRFELZ L
Mr Paul MAK Chun-nam
EHEMSEE
Dr Joey TANG Chung-yee
B EIE L
Dr Vincent TSE Kin-chuen
TR

Mr Jimmy TSUI Chi-wah (up to 10.1.2021)
BEESRL (BE202141H108)

Prof Thomas WONG Kwok-shing, JP
BB HUIR

Ms Nora YAU Ho-chun, MH, JP
ESAI ¥ 4+
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Caritas Medical Centre

BB R

Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

Hospital Chief Executive

Chairman Prof David CHEUNG Lik-ching

FE R ) IEU%

ERRE Bl E R BITRAEES R K
Bl TE RS

Members Mr CHAN Wai-ming, BBS, MH, JP

K& PRIZEASE A

Dr Denis CHANG Khen-lee, JP

REEAIEL

Dr Louis CHOY Chung-wai

+ 2
AR

Dr Daniel FANG Tak-sang

TiEA A

Prof Frederick HO Wing-huen, SBS

X EHIR

Mr Joseph LEE King-chi, BBS

UL

Dr Vincent LEUNG Tze-ching

RTEE

Dr Vitus LEUNG Wing-hang, BBS, JP

ZRoxEE LT

Mr Willie LUI Pok-shek, JP

RERELELE

Mr Anthony WONG Luen-kin, JP

BEREL

Mr Ronald YAM Tak-fai

(ERGHCHeS

Rev Joseph YIM Tak-lung

BTmREFR AR
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Castle Peak Hospital & Siu Lam Hospital

FLUBR R/ NMEER

Chairman Dr Peter LEE Kwok-wah
EE TREFL

Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERANE BREREBITHAHSIHRE

Hospital Chief Executive

BRI ARES

Members Mr Nicholas CHAN Hiu-fung, MH, JP
K& PREEIS oA

Mr CHAN How-chi, MH

PREZTAE

Mr Stephen LEE Hoi-yin
FHRESE

Mr Jason Joseph LEE Kwong-yee
FHEIGEE

Dr Raymond MA Siu-wing, MH
HlkgEL:

Mr Edward PONG Chong, BBS, JP
EERI% A

Mr TSANG Hin-hong
BEREELE

Ms Deborah WAN Lai-yau, BBS, JP
BERLL

Dr Jimmy WONG Chi-ho, SBS, JP
FTHRESE

Mr Paul WU Wai-keung

tAfESR A
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Cheshire Home, Chung Hom Kok

EWAZKESRR

Chairman

&

Ex-officio members

ERKE

Members

&

Dr Albert WONG Chi-chiu
TEEE

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

Bl EERITRARRERK
Hospital Chief Executive
BT

Mr CHAN Bing-woon, SBS, JP
PRIRIA S A&

Mr Raymond CHAN Kwan-tak
BREEEAE

Mrs Shelley M CHOW
E%/@\ﬁi

Ms Betty KO Lan-fun

51 B e

Ms Janice MORTON
B2t

Dr TONG Hon-kuan, JP
EEEELE

Dr WONG Chun-por, JP
FHEEE

Dr Paul YOUNG Tze-kong, JP
BT RliEL
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Cheshire Home, Shatin
DHZKEERR

Chairman Prof Leonard LI Sheung-wai
£ FERBHIX
Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EARKE Bl B RITRARSERK
Hospital Chief Executive
BRI ARES
Members Mrs Shelley M CHOW
KE AER &t
Mr FONG Cheung-fat, JP
FRE g
Ms Janet LAl Keng-chok
Rt
Dr Edward LEUNG Man-fuk
REREL
Dr Pamela LEUNG Ming-kuen, BBS, JP
ZEAIRER
Ms Janice MORTON
e+
Mr NG Hang-sau, MH
mEBEE

Prof Marco PANG Yiu-chung
TRRHIR

Mr Alfred POON Sun-biu
EETIEALAE
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Grantham Hospital

EEAEKR

Chairman Mr Steve LAN Yee-fong, MH

Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERKE Bl B RITHAR AR K

Hospital Chief Executive

EPriTIRARES

Members Dr Eliza C H CHAN, SBS, JP

KE PROBEE T
Mr William CHAN Fu-keung, BBS
BREREE
Prof Stephen CHENG Wing-keung
EBoX SR HUR
Mr Raymond CHOW Wai-kam, JP
AR EE
Mr Ricky FUNG Choi-cheung, SBS, JP
ISER e
Mr Edward HO Man-tat
Al EE A
Prof Peggy LAM, GBS, JP
MEEZHR

Prof LAU Chak-sing, JP
2EEHIT

Dr Carl LEUNG Ka-kui
RREVEA

Mr William LEUNG Shu-yin
REIE S E

Dr Vitus LEUNG Wing-hang, BBS, JP
ZoxEBE LT

Mr MA Ching-nam, BBS, JP
BSEmtE

Mrs Purviz Rusy SHROFF, MH

Prof Sydney TANG Chi-wai
R EHIX
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Haven of Hope Hospital

= =5 ER

=B E=U

Chairman Prof Joseph KWAN Kai-cho
EE RAAEARZUX

Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERKE Bl B RITRARSERK

Hospital Chief Executive

BRI ARES

Members Mr Jonathan CHAN Pok-chi, JP
K& BRIGE 5o
Mr CHAU Kwok-woon
BRI EE
Mr Francis CHAU Yin-ming, BBS, MH
ABREE
Mr Stuart CHEN Seng-tek
BRIHGEE
Mr Charles CHIU Chung-yee
Ms Clara CHONG Ming-wah
ARt
Dr Hon LAM Ching-choi, SBS, JP
MIERT B8 &
Dr Ares LEUNG Kwok-ling
RHEE
Dr Andrew LUK Leung
Beso i+
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Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital

BB HHER
Chairman

£33

Ex-officio members

ERKE

Members

&

Mr Keith LAM Hon-keung, JP [passed away in January 2021]
WERE T (32021 4F 1 AFHYE)

Mr HO Tak-sum, MH (from 26.2.2021)

&0 E T (202142 A 26 A#E)

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
Bl E R BITHRAEES K

Hospital Chief Executive

Bl e s

Mr Andie CHAN Wai-kwan, MH
PRIEIRSE A

Mr HO Tak-sum, MH (up to 25.2.2021)
@O EL (BE20212H25H)
Dr Johnny HON Sei-hoe, MH
BEHREE A

Mr LAl Sze-nuen, SBS, JP
RsEREL

Mr Anthony LAM Chi-tat
MEEELT

Ms May LAM Shih-yan (from 26.2.2021)
MEFTRE T (F120214F 2 F 26 A#E)
Mr Stephen LAM Wai-hung
MERTE

Ms May LAU Mei-mui

ElESiskoen

Mr LEE Ka-cheung

FREEL

Dr POON Tak-lun, JP

EEAREE

Mr SHUM Man-to

X FREE

Ven SIK Hin-hung

BEOTZER

Ven SIK Hong-ming

FERBRERD

Ven SIK Ku-tay

BREAR

Ven SIK Kuan-yun

BEEEM

Ven SIK Miu-chi

T 2EARD

Ven SIK To-ping

TEE T ARD

Ven SIK Yin-chi

TEERARD

Ms WAN Yee-ling

REREL
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Hong Kong Children’s Hospital
BEEREBKR

Chairman Mr John LEE Luen-wai, BBS, JP
FE THHES A

Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERKE Bl B RITRARSERK

Hospital Chief Executive

BRI ARES

Members Ms Dana CHAN Dan-nar
K& PR S 22 4=
Ms CHAU Hei-man
BRRE L+
Prof FOK Tai-fai, SBS, JP
EREHR

Mrs Ann KUNG YEUNG Yun-chi, JP
BERELL

Mrs Nina LAM LEE Yuen-bing, MH
MEmIK L+

Prof Gabriel Matthew LEUNG, GBS, JP
REFHF
Mr Patrick MA Ching-hang, BBS, JP

Prof Grace TANG Wai-king, SBS, JP
BB

Prof Frances WONG Kam-yuet
=R A

Mr Richard YUEN Ming-fai, GBS, JP
REFPETL
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Hong Kong Eye Hospital & Kowloon Hospital
BEBRMNER K NEER

Chairman Mr Daniel LAM Chun, SBS, JP
& WaLLE

Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERRE Bl B RITHAR AR K

Hospital Chief Executive

BEP TR RS

Members Dr Connie CHAN CHENG Yuk-yee, MH
K& PREPE e+

Mrs Sheilah CHENG CHATJAVAL
BREDIKIR L

Dr Charles CHEUNG Wai-bun, JP
REMWIEL

Dr KWONG Po-yin
BEREE

Ms Mavis LEE Ming-pui
FHMZ LT

Dr LEUNG Kin-ping
RfEFiEL

Prof David SHUM Ho-keung
SIERHUX

Prof Julia TAO LAl Po-wah
PRERE X

Dr WONG Yee-him
EIARE -

Mr Harry YU Kwok-kuen
REIRESEE
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Hong Kong Red Cross Blood Transfusion Service
BRA T FEH RSO

Chairman Mr Ambrose HO, SBS, JP
EE (N ot
Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERKE Bl B RITRARSERK
Hospital Chief Executive
EPriTIRARES
Members Mr Jeffrey CHUNG Chi-man
K& B SEAE
Prof LI Chi-kong, JP
Dr LI Siu-hung
FIRATE+
Dr William LO Wing-yan, JP
BT
Ms Clara SHEK Ka-lai
ARBEXT
Mr Donny SIU Koon-ming
mERLE
Ms Bonnie SO Yuen-han
BTN £
Prof Agnes TIWARI Fung-yee
R B
Mr Jimmy YUEN Hon-wing
RRSELE
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Kwai Chung Hospital & Princess Margaret Hospital

XREBREREE

Chairman

&

Ex-officio members

ERKE

Members

&

EZ
E'SJ'D

Mr Jason YEUNG Chi-wai
BREBTE

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
Bl EERITRARRERK

Hospital Chief Executive

BT

Prof Chetwyn CHAN Che-hin
PR S HUX

Mr Stanley CHEUNG Tak-kwai
REELAE

Ms Janet HUI Lai-wah

SR L

Prof Joseph KWAN Kai-cho

ok AR e

Mrs Nina LAM LEE Yuen-bing, MH
MEBKZ L

Mr Stephen LIU Wing-ting, JP
BEFELE

Dr Peter TSOI Ting-kwok, JP
EEEREAE

Mr William WONG Kuen-wai, BBS, MH
=R

Ir Billy WONG Wing-hoo, BBS, JP

Mr WONG Yiu-chung, MH
=R A
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Kwong Wah Hospital & Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Wong Tai Sin Hospital
EEERERE=FTE LB

Chairman Ms Ginny MAN, BBS
EE Xsatamt

Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERANE BREREBITHAHSIHRE

Hospital Chief Executive

BRI ARES

Members Mr CHAN Siu-tong, MH, JP
24=1 FRAESE A
Ms Kathy CHEUNG Ka-yi
REERZLT
Dr CHU Chor-lup
RIS EE
Ms Maisy HO, BBS
kB Z
Mr Orlando HO Yau-kai
fATERRRSEAE

Dr LEE Yuk-lun, BBS, JP
TEBET

Ms Imma LING Kit-sum
ERANIZ T

Mrs Katherine MA, BBS
SRR E

Mr Philip MA Ching-yeung
BEHrEE

Mr Albert SU Yau-on, MH, JP
BRthe st

Mr Kazaf TAM Chun-kwok
R

Ms Mandy TANG Ming-wai
BEAZ Lt

Ms Wendy TSANG Wan-man
LREELL

Dr Ken TSOI Wing-sing, BBS
BEREL

Mr Herman WAI Ho-man
BB SRS

Mr Vinci WONG, BBS
FEHEE

Mr YU See-ho
RHETIFSE A
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MacLehose Medical Rehabilitation Centre

HIFEERER

Chairman

£33

Ex-officio members

ERKE

Members

&

Prof Cecilia CHAN Lai-wan, JP
PREEEHUR

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

Bl EERITRARRERK
Hospital Chief Executive
BT

Prof Henry CHAN Hin-lee
BROTEHIX

Mr Jeffrey CHAU Sze-ngai
AR&EE

Mr CHENG Yan-kee, BBS, JP
BRAELE

Prof Kenneth CHEUNG Man-chee
SRCEHIX

Mr Benny CHEUNG Wai-leung, BBS
REREE

Dr Eric CHIEN Ping

Ms Josephine HO Yuen-Lling
falgEEe &+

Mr Quinton LAM Chun-ki
MAEESEAE

Dr Pamela LEUNG Pui-yu

2 antE+

Dr MAK Kin-cheung

BEEE

Dr Edith MOK KWAN Ngan-hing, MH
KAEEE L

Mr Benjamin WONG Kam-ming
EHRAALLE
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North District Hospital
Tt EER

Chairman Prof CHAN Wai-yee
EE BRIZ(EHIX

Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERKE Bl B RITRARSERK

Hospital Chief Executive

BRI ARES

Members Mr CHAN Wai-tat
K& fREES A

Mr DENG Kai-rong, BBS, MH, JP

Mr Clement FUNG Cheuk-nang, MH
TR A

Ms Stella FUNG Siu-wan

HOEZ L

Mr HO Wing-yin

k&L

Mr KO Yiu-cheung

S B

Mr Billy LAM Chek-yau, BBS, MH, JP
MRBRE

Mr LI Kwok-yiu

Mr LIU Sui-biu
Bt

Mr Thomas YIU Kei-chung
Hadh s
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North Lantau Hospital

b AR 1Ly B& B

Chairman

£33

Ex-officio members

ERKE

Members

&

Prof Raymond LIANG Hin-suen, SBS, JP
RERH

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
Bl EERITRARRERK

Hospital Chief Executive

BT

Mr CHAN How-chi, MH
PRERE A

Ms CHAU Chuen-heung, SBS, MH, JP
BEE L+

Mr Tony CHOI Yuk-kwan, MH
BERHSEAE

Mr Dennis CHOW Chi-in
AEBLAE

Mr CHOW Yick-hay, BBS, JP
BEFEE

Dr Robert LAW Chi-lim

Ms Elizabeth LAW Kar-shui, MH
X Yo

Ms Deborah WAN Lai-yau, BBS, JP
BERZ T

Mr Randy YU Hon-kwan, MH, JP
TR A
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Appendix 4

Bt 6% 4
Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital
R
Chairman Mr Lester Garson HUANG, SBS, JP
Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERRE Bl B RITRARSERK
Hospital Chief Executive
BRI ARES
Members Mr CHAN Wing-kai
RE BRoKfESTAE
Ms Maria CHIANG Lai-ling
BERELL
Dr Gabriel CHOI Kin
ZEREE A

Mr John J CLANCEY

Dr Nancy FOK Lai-ling

Mr Joseph HUI Kong-yue

R EE

Dr Lawrence LAl Fook-ming, BBS, JP
FErERAEE A

Mrs Marigold LAU, SBS
ZIrEkEm Lt

Prof Gabriel Matthew LEUNG, GBS, JP
PACKEE e

Sister Marilu LIMGENCO

MEIRIE L

Ms June LO Hing-yu
BB T

Ms Brenda LO Yin-cheung
AL

Dr Louis SHIH Tai-cho, JP
F&aizh

Mrs Elizabeth WONG YEUNG Po-wo
BEHEMLL

Mr Stephen YUEN Kwok-keung, MH
RERSELE
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Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital
RELBRAIRITEER

Chairman Mr Andrew FUNG Hau-chung, BBS, JP
FfE BE R LA

Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERKE Bl B RITHAR AR K

Hospital Chief Executive

BEP TR RS

Members Mr Derek CHAN Man-foon
24=1 PR B A
Mr David CHAU Shing-yim
AR TAE
Dr Eric CHENG Kam-chung, BBS, MH, JP
B IR EEIE T
Mr Roland CHOW Kun-chee
A A
Mr Mico CHOW Man-cheung
BEREE

Ms Michelle CHOW Yan-wai
BABRRLZ T

Mr Franklin LAM Fan-keung, BBS
MERILAE

Ms Ka-shi LAU, BBS
ElE S

Mr John LI Kwok-heem, MH
TG

Mr Wilson MOK Yu-sang

Rt Rev Dr Thomas SO0 Yee-po, JP
AR EH

Mr Dominic WONG Chi-chung
FEERE

Mr YEUNG Po-kwan, JP
oyl
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Pok Oi Hospital

BEER

Chairman Mrs Josephine KAN CHAN Kit-har, MH
EE Bl e

Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERKE Bl B RITRARSERK

Hospital Chief Executive

BRI ARES

Members Mr Michael CHAN Kee-huen

K& FRECIE A
Dr CHAN Kwok-chiu, BBS, MH, JP
PR B R 1 £

Dr CHAN Shou-ming
PRE#ELT

Ms LAM Kwan
MEf Lz

Dr Jim LEE
FaKEL

Dr Charles LO Dgok-sing

Mr NG Kam-ching, MH
RIREHE

Mr Henry TONG Sau-chai, MH, JP
SETE

Mr WONG Fan-foung, BBS, MH
EUER

Ms WONG Wai-ling
BERLL

Mr YUEN Siu-lam
=AOMEA
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Prince of Wales Hospital

BRI S % £ BB

Chairman

£33

Ex-officio members

ERKE

Members

&

Ms Priscilla WONG Pui-sze, SBS, JP
EDiisycen

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
Bl EERITRARRERK

Hospital Chief Executive

BT

Prof Francis CHAN Ka-leung, SBS, JP
BRI Se X

Ms Wendy FUNG Ching-suet

HRS Lt

Mr Larry KWOK Lam-kwong, SBS, JP
FBIESEE

Ms Jacqueline LEUNG, JP

REL+

Ir Peter MOK Kwok-woo

REMEE

Ms Maggie NG Miu-man

(i e

Dr WONG Kwai-lam

EEMEL

Mr Michael YUNG Ming-chau

RER LS
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Queen Elizabeth Hospital
FRADRERR

Chairman Dr KAM Pok-man, BBS
EE HEXXE L

Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERANE BREREBITHAHSIHRE

Hospital Chief Executive

BRI ARES

Members Prof Gladys CHEING Lai-ying
24=1 S5 R

Mr Duncan CHIU

EREAR A

Ms Maisy HO, BBS

kB A+

Dr James HWANG Shu-tak, BBS

B

Mr KU Moon-lun
mBT A

Ms KWAN Sau-ling, MH
FESsscen

Dr Peter LEE Kwok-wah
FRIEHL

Dr David NG Ka-sing
RREEL

Mr James YIP Shiu-kwong
Bk

Dr YU Yuk-ling
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Queen Mary Hospital & Tsan Yuk Hospital

REBRNRESERR

Chairman

£33

Ex-officio members

ERKE

Members

&

Dr PANG Yiu-kai, GBS, JP
PHEEL

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
Bl EERITRARRERK

Hospital Chief Executive

BT

Mr Wilson KWONG Wing-tsuen
Bbox@is

Prof John LEE Chi-kin, JP

T EHIR

Prof Gabriel Matthew LEUNG, GBS, JP
PACKEE 6

Mr Steve LO Chit-ki (from 27.11.2020)
TS L (B 20204 11 A 27 B #E)
Mr Joseph LO Kin-ching

Mr Philip TSAI Wing-chung, BBS, JP
BOoRABLEE

Mr Lincoln TSO Lai

Bk L

Prof Richard WONG Yue-chim, SBS, JP (up to 26.11.2020]
T FH#% (B E2020F 11 26 H)

Mr Paul YU Shiu-tin, BBS, JP
RRRELE
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Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu Kin Hospitals
FIAN HER B

Chairman Dr Vitus LEUNG Wing-hang, BBS, JP
£ KRB

Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERKE Bl B RITRARSERK

Hospital Chief Executive

BRI ARES

Members Dr Henry KONG Wing-ming
KE 7oK BAER
Mr Steve LAN Yee-fong, MH
ERTRE
Ms Susi LAW Wai-shan
#EEML L

Prof Joseph LEE Kok-long, SBS, JP
2 B AR

Mr Edwin LEUNG Chung-ching
Z2HESLAE

Dr Carl LEUNG Ka-kui

AR

Mr Norman LO Kam-wah, MH, JP
EIRESE

Mr Terry NG Sze-yuen

RETTsieak

Mrs Gloria NG WONG Yee-man, BBS, JP
RFEMKER+

Mr Burji S SHROFF

Mr Neville S SHROFF, JP

Mr Noshir N SHROFF
Mrs Purviz Rusy SHROFF, MH

Mr Robert SHUM Kai-kee
BRIESLE

Mr Richard TANG Yat-sun, SBS, JP
B H 45 A
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Shatin Hospital
W H e
Chairman

&

Ex-officio members

ERKE

Members

&

Prof Maurice YAP Keng-hung, JP
RfREHER

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

Bl EERITRARRERK
Hospital Chief Executive
BT

Ms Anita CHENG Wai-ching
HBEELL

Mr Jeckle CHIU

ST L iote s

Mr CHIU Man-leong

B kL

Dr Andy CHIU Tin-yan
BRMEE

Mr Francis CHU Chan-pui, BBS
RIEIBTE

Prof Joanne CHUNG Wai-yee
BEERX

Dr David KAN Kam-fai
SR B e

Mr LAU Kim-hung

IR A

Mr Derek LEE Ho-yin
AR

Mrs Linda WONG LEUNG Kit-wah
IRRELL
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Tai Po Hospital
KIi e

Chairman

£S5

Ex-officio members

ERKE

Members

&

Mr John LI Kwok-heem, MH
TR E

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
Bl E R BITRAE RS R K

Hospital Chief Executive
BT

Mr Ali FUNG Wai-cheong
EEELE

Ms Nancy KIT Kwong-chi, JP
BBt

Dr Benny KWONG Kai-sing
PSR 1 £

Mr Roger LEE Chee-wah

Mr Gregory LEUNG Wing-lup, SBS
RN RE

Mr Patrick TANG Ming-tai
WepF st

Dr YIP Ka-chee [up to 26.2.2021)
B (BE2021F2H26H)
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The Duchess of Kent Children’s Hospital at Sandy Bay

ROBRBRBELABRAREER

Chairman

&

Ex-officio members

ERKE

Members

&

Mr CHEUNG Tat-tong, JP
RIERLAE

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

Bl EERITRARRERK
Hospital Chief Executive
BT

Mr Boris BONG Ding-yue
BEEFRAE

Prof Godfrey CHAN Chi-fung

RS BHIR

Ms Ophelia CHAN Chiu-ling, BBS
BRE&RZL

Prof Kenneth CHEUNG Man-chee
SRCEHIX

Mr Renny LIE Ken-jie
FEIRKE

Mr Gordon Gilbert LOCH Han-van
B g S A

Dr POON Tak-lun, JP
EIEARER A

Mr Douglas SO Cheung-tak, BBS, JP

BEfE A

Dr Barbara TAM Sau-man
EE

Mr John WAN Chung-on
abh=pristast
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Tin Shui Wai Hospital
RIKE &R

Chairman Mr WONG Kwai-huen, BBS, JP
EE THEERA

Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERANE BREREBITHAHSIHRE

Hospital Chief Executive

BRI ARES

Members Ms CHAN Sze-nga
K& BREFAE 2T
Dr FOK Mei-ling
EERIEL

Dr HO Wing-tim, MH
BENE SN

Dr LAU Chau-ming
FksaiE L

Mr Robert LUl Chi-wang
RERTE

Mr Philip MA Ching-yeung
SEHEE

Mr Anthony TSANG Hin-fun
BESELE

Mr Thomas WAN Yiu-ming
FIRE A

Dr YUEN Yin-fun

— -4+ Eg
BTS2
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Tseung Kwan O Hospital

R

Chairman

£33

Ex-officio members

ERKE

Members

&

Ms Lisa LAU Man-man, BBS, MH, JP

B3zt

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

Bl EERITRARRERK
Hospital Chief Executive
BT

Mr Tony CHOW Kar-ming
AZRREE

Mr KAN Shun-ming
RS 5t &

Prof Diana LEE Tze-fan, JP
FFHHI

Mr Philip LI Ka-leung
FRRELE

Mr Stephen LIU Wing-ting, JP
BRFERE

Dr Hayles WAl Heung-wah
BRERE

Mr Alan WONG Chi-kong, SBS
BEENEE

Mr WONG Kwai-huen, BBS, JP
ERES<ta

Dr WONG Kwing-keung
=RREL

Dr Frederick YIP
ZEEEE T
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Tuen Mun Hospital
B &R
Chairman Mr Ivan SZE Wing-hang, BBS, JP
EE MEERIE S A4
Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERRE Bl E R BITRAE RS R K
Hospital Chief Executive
BRI ARES
Members Dr Charles CHAN Kam-kwong
KE BRiE LT
Dr Shirley IP Pui-seung
EImIEEE
Mr Lothar LEE Hung-sham, BBS, MH
Ms Yvette Therese MA
eSO
Dr Sam WONG Chun-sing, MH
FIREIEL
Dr WONG Kwing-keung
=fRE L
Ms Lina YAN Hau-yee, MH, JP
RRI9R &t
Mr Boris YEUNG Sau-ming
HFHASE
Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong
Bok=ERaE
Prof Richard YUEN Man-fung
R lEHIX
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Tung Wah Hospital & Tung Wah Eastern Hospital & Tung Wah Group of

Hospitals Fung Yiu King Hospital
REBERRERRERRE=TFEZRER

Chairman

E3:

Ex-officio members

ERRE

Members

o4 =]

Ms Ginny MAN, BBS
MXRRlGRE

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

Bl EIRRITRAR SR EARE
Hospital Chief Executive
BEhiTE AR

Mr Raymond CHOW Wai-kam, JP
BfE ks

Ms Maisy HO, BBS
kAL +

Mr Orlando HO Yau-kai

A BRER S A

Mr KWOK Leung-ming, SBS
SPEERASE A

Mr Henry LAl Hin-wing

PR St

Dr LEE Yuk-lun, BBS, JP
TEBEL

Mrs Katherine MA, BBS
BRRE L

Mr Philip MA Ching-yeung
BEmEE

Ms Bonnie NG Hoi-yan
R+

Ms Winnie NG, JP
(EElisyeqnn

Mr Albert SU Yau-on, MH, JP
B S

Mr Kazaf TAM Chun-kwok
FRIARY LA

Ms Mandy TANG Ming-wai
S S

Mr Lincoln TSO Lai
Bl

Dr Ken TSOI Wing-sing, BBS
BB

Mr Herman WAI Ho-man
BV

Mr Vinci WONG, BBS
FELE
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United Christian Hospital

BESH AR

Chairman Mr Derek CHAN Man-foon
FE PR E S E

Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EARKE BEREREBITHAHSHERE

Hospital Chief Executive

BEbr T AR ES

Members Ms Margot CHOW Yan-tse
5a=] AR
Ms Esther CHOW Yin-yung
EEE e
Ms Constance CHOY Hok-man
BT+
Mr Paul FAN Chor-ho, SBS, JP
Sefes kRt
Rev Paul KAN Kei-piu
SRV
Rt Rev Dr Timothy KWOK Chi-pei
HELEH
Dr LAM Kin-wah, BBS, MH
MEEF L
Mr LAU Chun-chuen
B RzE
Mr Marthy LI Chak-kwan
EELE
Mr John LI Kwok-heem, MH
PRI EE
Mr Michael LI Man-toa
FRERE
Dr Danny MA Ping-kwan
S IminEe &
Hon Wilson OR Chong-shing, MH
HRIER S
Rev PO Kam-cheong
betI=La Gl
Ms Nancy TSANG Lan-see, JP
BTt
Mr Herbert TSOI Hak-kong, BBS, JP
2l s
Mr David WONG Tat-kee
HEH .
Ms Grace WONG Yuen-ling
| L
Rev Jackson YEUNG Yau-chi
158 4D

Rev YU Yan-ming
R EAAED

Rev YUNG Chuen-hung
SIEEHED
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Yan Chai Hospital
ZBER
Chairman

&

Ex-officio members
EAKE

Members

&

Mr Sam CHAU Chung-tung, MH
AR A

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
Bl EERITRARRERK

Hospital Chief Executive
BT

Dr Marcella CHEUNG Man-ka
RN EEEL

Mr Gary CHU Tak-wing
RIBE B

Dr Paul IP Kung-ching
BEREFL

Ms Wendy LAW Wing-yee
‘R

Mr Jason LEUNG Wai-kwong
2RI RAE

Mr Peter LO Siu-kit, MH
EAEEE

Mrs Mary SUEN CHOI To-may
BREM R+

Ms WONG Chor-kei
BERHELLT

Mr Charles YANG Chuen-liang, BBS, JP
BEREE

Mr YAU Kam-ping, BBS, MH
ERERF e 4

Dr Anthony YEUNG Chun-wai
BEEBL
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Appendix 5
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MEMBERSHIP OF REGIONAL ADVISORY COMMITTEES

ERiFEAHALZESNE

Hong Kong Regional Advisory Committee

BEBHAHAEZRES

Chairman Prof David SHUM Ho-keung
FE LIERHUX
Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERKE B g2 RITRAERS R K
Director of Health or his / her representative
REFBRIHREK
Members Mr Boris BONG Ding-yue
54 =] REETIEE
Prof Cecilia CHAN Lai-wan, JP
PREEEHIX

Ms CHAN Yuk-lam
BREEH L

Dr Peter CHEE Pay-yun

A B4

Dr Eric CHENG Kam-chung, BBS, MH, JP
EPERIEIH L+

Ms LAM Yuk-chun, BBS, MH
MEB L

Mr Steve LAN Yee-fong, MH
EXxH%E

Dr Vitus LEUNG Wing-hang, BBS, JP
ZoKEBiE T

Dr C C LUK, JP
PEEIREA

Mr Philip MA Ching-yeung
BiEHmtE

Prof Eric TSE Wai-choi
HE B HHR

Mr Lincoln TSO Lai
ERLAE

Ms WONG Chau-ping
=T

Dr Albert WONG Chi-chiu
FHeIEE

Ms Christine WONG Yi
"EELZL

Ms Camille YAM Ka-yi
FERLt

Mr Paul YU Shiu-tin, BBS, JP
RRREE
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Kowloon Regional Advisory Committee
NEREEAZES

Chairman

FE

Ex-officio members
EAKE

Members

&

Mr David FONG Man-hung, BBS, JP
XA

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

B EERITHAHSERR

Director of Health or his / her representative

BEFBERIHEREK

Mr CHAN Wai-Lit

BRAGZUSEE

Mr CHAU Kwok-woon
BRI L

Ms Kathy CHEUNG Ka-yi
REEXT

Prof David CHEUNG Lik-ching
iR T IEHER

Dr Charles CHEUNG Wai-bun, JP
REWELT

Ms Margot CHOW Yan-tse

BB LT

Mr HO Tak-sum, MH

fafELE L

Dr KWAN Ka-lun

AXRmELT

Ms LAI Po-kwai

REHZL

Mrs Nina LAM LEE Yuen-bing, MH
REE Ik 2t

Mr Jackson LAU (from 21.05.2020)
BIEEST LA (2020495 F21 HiE)

Mrs Marigold LAU, SBS
RRE LR =

Dr Robert LAW Chi-lim
RS

Mr LEUNG Chi-shing
REKEE

Rev Van LO Wai-chuen
B AR

Mr Donny SIU Koon-ming
WERLE

Mr Kazaf TAM Chun-kwok

R

Ms Natalie TSUI Wai-fong
2raL

Dr Hayles WAl Heung-wah

Gk

Ms WONG Chor-kei

EREZ L

Mr James YIP Shiu-kwong

Bk

Mr Ramon YUEN Hoi-man

RN EE

Mr Richard YUEN Ming-fai, GBS, JP
REGELRAE
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Appendix 5
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New Territories Regional Advisory Committee
MABHAAZEES

Chairman Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong

FE BokERE

Ex-officio members  Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

ERRE Bl B BRITHARSEREK
Director of Health or his / her representative
BFEEERIHRE

Members Mr CHAN How-chi, MH

54= PREZRES A

Dr Charles CHAN Kam-kwong
PREEEE L

Mrs CHAN LI Lei, MH
REFJEL L

Mr CHAN Wai-tat

PREESRAE

Mr Francis CHU Chan-pui, BBS
KRBT

Mr DENG Kai-rong, BBS, MH, JP

Mrs Josephine KAN CHAN Kit-har, MH
RBEE L+

Mr Gregory LEUNG Wing-lup, SBS
RIKILFHE

Mr MA Kee

Mr NG Hang-sau, MH
hREEE

Ms Maggie NG Miu-man
gt

Mr Almon POON Chin-hung, JP
ERBITAE

Dr Joey TANG Chung-yee
BT

Prof WING Yun-kwok

Mr WONG Cheuk-kin, MH
BEE@ELE

Mr WONG Kwai-huen, BBS, JP
THEEEE

Mr YAM Kai-bong
ERFABEE

Dr YIP Ka-chee [up to 27.02.2021)
e84 (BF2021F2A27H)

Mr Michael YUNG Ming-chau
TR E
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MEMBERSHIP OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE

Appendix 6
By 8% 6

HOSPITAL AUTHORITY PROVIDENT FUND SCHEME 2020-21

2020-21 FEERERR LR EEIETLTESEMNE

Chairman

EE

Trustees

EREER

Dr KAM Pok-man, BBS (up to 18.11.2020)
HiEE L (#81 = 2020 11 F 18 H)

Mr Philip TSAI Wing-chung, BBS, JP (from 19.11.2020)
BOKASEE (20204 11 A 19 A#8)

Mr CHAN Chor-wing
BR¥IER B

Mr William CHAN Fu-keung, BBS (up to 20.7.2020)
PRERIAE (BE 202067 A20H)

Ms Anita CHAN Shuk-yu

BRI 22 =

Mr Alex CHU Wing-yiu (from 19.11.2020)
RAIBSEE (H120204F 11 A 19 HAE)

Mrs Ann KUNG YEUNG Yun-chi, JP

BSREZ L

Ms Antonia LEE Yuen-chee (from 1.12.2020)
Fhuwct (F2020F 12 4 1 HAE)

Mr David MAK Chi-wai (from 8.2.2021)
BEELE (H2021F2 A8 HE)

Mr Dave NGAN Man-kit

BAN AL

Dr PANG Fei-chau (up to 4.9.2020)

ERNELE (BE2020F9H4H)

Mr QUEK Yat-sum

RIS

Mr Philip TSAI Wing-chung, BBS, JP (from 23.7.2020 to 18.11.2020]
BOKBSE (2020 7 A23 HE 20204 11 A 18 H)

Mr WONG Kwai-huen, BBS, JP
FrEES A

Mr Jason YEUNG Chi-wai

HEBEAE

Mr Benny YEUNG Hiu-bun (up to 30.9.2020]
BEENE S (B = 2020469 H30A)

Dr Joseph YEUNG Shing
e
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Appendix 7
Ff % 7

PUBLIC FEEDBACK STATISTICS
nm= RsT

Complaint / Feedback / Appreciation Received (1.4.2020 - 31.3.2021)

BRI BR/EBEF (20204 A 18 — 202143 A31H)

Public Complaints Committee 2 RIZFEZER

Nature of cases

Number of appeal cases

ERME LERERET
Medical services 5 & ARTES 178
Staff attitude BB RE2E 30
Administrative procedure TTIIZ/F 25
Others E A 6
Total number of appeal cases handled B3 LR {ERAH 239

Hospital Complaint / Feedback / Appreciation Statistics Bz 1% / B R / #EE st

Complaint Feedback Appreciation
Nature of complaint / feedback / appreciation cases received received received
R I BRI EBARME RFHF BEREF fotol e
Medical services B&& RS 867 4517 26 976
Staff attitude Bt B REE 275 2826 7353
Administrative procedure fTBUZF 223 3491 525
Overall performance 88X IR 4ty 1434 181
Others E At 12 748 1737
Total number of hospital complaint / feedback / appreciation 1421 13016 36772

BRRR/ BR/ EEAHY

GOPC* Complaint / Feedback / Appreciation Statistics ZERIFIZ R Frikshk /| B R / BB &

Complaint Feedback Appreciation
Nature of complaint / feedback / appreciation cases received received received
Bk BR /EISERME KRBT ER¥F EEHT
Medical services E& &R 53 442 2100
Staff attitude B B2 29 579 889
Administrative procedure {TBUIZF 16 448 12
Overall performance B48XIR 5 134 15
Others E At 0 78 99
Total number of complaint / feedback / appreciation received by GOPC 103 1681 3115

LZENMIDDMIRF/ BR  HIBRE

*General outpatient clinics

204 Hospital Authority Annual Report E&fr B2 FE 3R 2020-2021



Appendix 8
By 8% 8

STATISTICS OF THE CONTROLLING OFFICER’S REPORT

Enll ABHRSHHF

In the past years, the Hospital Authority (HA) generally achieved its
performance targets. Nevertheless, with the emergence of COVID-19
epidemic in Hong Kong since early 2020, there has been a notable
year-on-year reduction in the service throughput across the wide range
of services provided by the HA. The challenges have straddled over
2019-20 and 2020-21. Demand and service provision for public
healthcare services have been wax and wane. While the overall volume of
activities is projected to be on the low side in 2020-21, it is estimated that,
subject to the development of the COVID-19, there would be a gradual
pick-up in 2021-22. With such impact of COVID-19 epidemic on unit cost
(if any) incorporated in 2019-20 and 2020-21 costing information, costing
information may not be directly comparable across years.

The key activity data in respect of the HA are:

EBREFE  BREER(BER) AR LER
FIHRBRIREIZ - A - BR2020F FHIRER
BHIR 2019 B RSRERE - BERSERKH
RIS EIEFREE TR - 5L PkEE B 2019-20 F
B & 2020-21 F E - A& EER A KA '
BB R A TSR - TH5T2020-21 FE 28R
BEGERREKE - 8T 20198 RESHEE
R - THFT2021-22 FERBERGEGE LB o
7 2019-20 4 & K 2020-21 EE R AN E E
BEEK2019BERASEREBHEMKAN T E
(IE) TRFEEMKATE SR KT AEE
LEER o

ERBERRGHEZEIRNT

2019-20 2020-21
(1) Access to services ATER A #Y BR#%
inpatient services 1Bz IR %
no. of hospital beds (as at 31 March) BFtmKE B (BLZE=A=+—H)
general (acute and convalescent) &%} (ZIE & EEE) 23067 23525
mentally iLl B3R} 3647 3647
mentally handicapped & &R} 680 677
infirmary &R} 2041 2001
overall A5t 29 435 29 850
ambulatory and outreach services H &K% SMNEIRTE
accident and emergency (A&E) services =i Z= AR
percentage of A&E patient attendances seen within target waiting time
£ B EREREANERENSERAKZ ARB D E
triage | (critical cases - 0 minute) (%) & | $25] (fB7a 8% — 05%&) (%) 100 100
triage Il (emergency cases - 15 minutes) (%) 25 || #85 (B2ER — 155 ) (%) 98 98
triage Il (urgent cases - 30 minutes) (%) 28 |1l $85! (B2fE%E — 30958 )(%) 77 80

specialist outpatient services ERIFIZ AR

median waiting time for first appointment at specialist outpatient clinics

HERIPIZ T IR R AP 2K
priority 1 cases £ — B FHARIEZ
priority 2 cases % B ARIEZ
rehabilitation and geriatric services (as at 31 March)
REIRZEARRE (BE=ZA=1+—QH)
no. of geriatric day places & AR} B & 25

psychiatric services (as at 31 March) f&#RARIS (BLZE=A=+—H)

no. of psychiatric day places ¥&#9 %} H fE1 E&Fr 2 58

<Tweek 281 <1 week 25

5weeks 281 5 weeks 2 Hf

669 703

889 889
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2019-20 2020-21
(I} Delivery of services Friz{t#Y AR5
inpatient services 1XBz IR 7§
overall 85t
no. of patient days A A{EFT AKX 8167 243 7526 207
bed occupancy rate (%) FERFAE (%) 86 79
no. of discharges and deaths EFim A Bt AR RILT AZL 1109 302 961912
general (acute and convalescent) & BT} (ZAE & ER1E)
no. of patient days B A{EET B X 6570 417 6001 201
bed occupancy rate (%) FERFAE (%) 89 81
no. of discharges and deaths {EFtim A HFt AR RILT A S 1088 745 942 092
average length of stay (days)* FHI{EF R (A)* 6.1 6.4
mentally ill #&#H7}
no. of patient days B A{EET B X 923 033 896 713
bed occupancy rate (%) R ZE (%) 71 69
no. of discharges and deaths {EBtiE A HBt AR RILT- AZ 16 960 16 597
average length of stay (days)* ¥R (H)* 56 57
mentally handicapped &%}
no. of patient days & AFFT B X 183 568 179 343
bed occupancy rate (%) ERIEAE (%) 74 72
infirmary &
no. of patient days B A{EET BIX 490225 448 950
bed occupancy rate (%) FERITAZE (%) 89 82
ambulatory and outreach services H & R SMNE R
day inpatient services A REFE A RS
no. of discharges and deaths Hft AR RIET AEK 683 477 675 649
A&E services 2IEERTE
no. of A&E attendances SAEEFHZ AR 2 048 039 1640 453
no. of A&E first attendances 2EE B R FLZ AR
triage | 55 | 285 22 335 22 928
triage Il 85 11 $851 52011 48726
triage 11l & 111 $85 711 744 608 311
specialist outpatient services ERIFIZ R
no. of specialist outpatient (clinical) first attendances H#:IFI2 (ERIK) BIXRZ AR 776 166 742 556
no. of specialist outpatient (clinical) follow-up attendances Z#:IF (E&K) B2 AR 6 865 554 6731110
total no. of specialist outpatient (clinical) attendances H#:IF1%2 (FRK) B2 AR 7 641720 7 473 666
primary care services £/ 2 /E iR
no. of general outpatient attendances E@EIFIZ 2 AR 5815680 5568 280
no. of family medicine specialist clinic attendances KEEZHRIFIZ 2 AR 307 614 313065
total no. of primary care attendances EE BB LHEAR 6123 294 5881345
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2019-20 2020-21

rehabilitation and palliative care services BE1E N A7 4% & 12 R 7%

no. of rehabilitation day and palliative care day attendances 84 253 33 429

BRAE R 47 48 32 B RIS 322 AR

no. of community nurse attendances % 5t 5T & T AR AKX 886 315 900 059

no. of allied health (community) attendances ZBE & (1H[E) iz AKX 33153 26 307

no. of allied health (outpatient) attendances EH:E & (F12) ste2 AR 2 654 470 2512370
geriatric services & ARRS

no. of geriatric outreach attendances” ¥ % ARWNERIE AL 679 527 732 985

no. of geriatric elderly persons assessed for infirmary care service 1697 1629

BEXBEBRETZORE AH

no. of geriatric day attendances # AT AE &R si2 AR 129 963 37525

no. of Visiting Medical Officer attendances ' S E|2 B ERB AKX * 92 830 N.A.
psychiatric services fE1HREHIRT

no. of psychiatric outreach attendances X B8 RN ARTE AR 269 705 158 826

no. of psychiatric day attendances #&# %t A &gt AR 194 417 45 285

no. of psychogeriatric outreach attendances” # % £ AR EIINE RIS A R 91390 67983

(1) Quality of services IRIEE &
no. of hospital deaths per 1 000 population® BT A B FRAIEERILT AZKN 2.8 2.7

unplanned readmission rate within 28 days for general inpatients (%) 10.6 1.0

TBEHER R ATEHFRIZ 28 RAARETELI B AL E (%)

(IV) Cost of services FR# F 4

cost distribution 75 77
cost distribution by service types (%) #ZARFSFEBIEI D BIK A DM E 5 E (%)
inpatient 3Bt ARTS 54.5 54.0
ambulatory and outreach BB RIMNE R 455 46.0
cost of services for persons aged 65 or above 65 5%3k LA = A THIARFE A A
share of cost of services (%) BRIEPAIE AR ARETE 55K (%) 499 50.2
cost of services per 1000 population (HK$Mn) BF A A REKA (BB BEET) 27.4 292
unit costs BT

inpatient services 1Bz R
cost per patient day (HK$) B AB B (B7T)

general (acute and convalescent) BT} (ZAE & ER1E) 6,020 7,240
mentally ill #5197} 3,170 3,560
mentally handicapped £ /&EE} 1,980 2,140
infirmary BE&R 1,810 2,070
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2019-20 2020-21

ambulatory and outreach services H &K% SMNEIRTE

cost per A&E attendance (HK$) SEESXZIERIK A (BIT) 1,780 2,590

cost per specialist outpatient attendance (HK$) ERIFIZTIRAAERIKA GEIT) 1,460 1,660

cost per general outpatient attendance (HK$) BRI PI2 BRAIENAA (BIT) 560 620

cost per family medicine specialist clinic attendance (HK$) 1,280 1,370

KEESFRFI2ERZAERKAR (B7T)

cost per community nurse attendance (HK$) 1t EZ& =8 X RISHIKA (BIT) 675 700

cost per psychiatric outreach attendance (HK$) 18 R9NERBE TR AR A (GEIT) 2,000 3,310

cost per geriatric day attendance (HK$) & AR} BB &b 8RR A (BIT) 2,730 5,310
fee waivers W& 2

total amount of waived fees (HK$Mn) BRI E 5 (BB ET) 1,032.3 992.8

percentage of Comprehensive Social Security Assistance (CSSA] fee waiver (%) ~ 16.0 15.7

AT ERERD GE) KBEREEDE (%) ~

percentage of non-CSSA fee waiver (%) ~ JFARBRNBRE B HE (%) ~ 18.8 N.A.

percentage of Higher Old Age Living Allowance (0OALA) fee waiver (%) ~* N.A. 12.1

SREREEETEMBEREADE (%) ™4

percentage of other fee waiver (%) ~* EM M EREBT DK (%) ~4 N.A. 7.7

Notes: e

*

>

Derived by dividing the sum of length of stay of inpatients by the
corresponding number of inpatients discharged and treated.

Starting from 2020-21, the overall service model for Community
Geriatric Assessment Team and Visiting Medical Officer in the HA has
been streamlined. The indicators for the number of geriatric outreach
attendances and number of Visiting Medical Officer attendances are
consolidated.

Excludes attendances arising from consultation liaison services.
Refers to the age-standardised hospital death rate covering inpatient
and day inpatient deaths in HA hospitals in a particular year. The
standardised rate, as a standard statistical technique to facilitate
comparison over years, is calculated by applying the HA age-specific
hospital death rate in that particular year to the “standard” population
in mid-2001.

Refers to the amount waived as percentage to total charge.

In light of the increasing portion of Higher OALA fee waiver, the
indicator “percentage of non-CSSA fee waiver” is categorised into
“percentage of Higher OALA fee waiver” and “percentage of other fee
waiver” from 2020-21 onwards to further differentiate various types
of fee waiver. The percentage of Higher OALA fee waiver for 2019-20
Actual as included under “percentage of non-CSSA fee waiver” is 12.1
per cent.
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STATISTICS ON NUMBER OF BEDS, INPATIENT, ACCIDENT &
EMERGENCY AND OUTPATIENT SERVICES IN 2020-21

2020-21 FRERMEB ~ EIRF - RIEZ IR K PI2 IRISH 5t 2=

Total IP & DP Inpatient Total Allied
No. of hospital - discharges and average Family Medicine Health
beds as at deaths Inpatientbed  length of Total SOP Specialist Clinic ~ (Qutpatient) General
3 March2021)  ABERAE  occupancy stayldays)  TotalARE (clinical)  attendances’ attendances™  Qutpatient
e BREEA rate (%) {ff A attendances  attendances” FE2E  ZRRE atendances”
Institution [BEANF  HRARR ERAARE TRk SEE ZRFD (BF) Y (F%) ERMFY
e 38318) RCAG  (RE(%) BEE)  RPEAR HERBRARY ROAR® HPBARY  HPAR
Hong Kong East Cluster /& & 3R Bz B 48
Cheshire Home, Chung Hom Kok 240 485 82.6 2385 - - - 269 -
ELIEEY
Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital 1897 132474 76.2 6.5 96 651 582 831 53725 166038 356057
RELEXATTZER
Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu Kin Hospitals 653 22 558 75.1 7.7 51825 137 477 8650 80876 116074
BHRRHELER
St. John Hospital RilERR 87 2356 31.9 3.7 6591 - - 6460 28657
Tung Wah Eastern Hospital RERN 265 6725 84.6 15.3 - 87079 - 27249 26931
Wong Chuk Hang Hospital & 175120 160 143 845 3728 - - - - -
Sub-total /Mt 3302 164741 77.5 8.8 155067 807387 62375 280892 527719
Hong Kong West Cluster /& 5 78 B[ B 48
Grantham Hospital B2 50 389 16 676 739 122 - 120830 - 36017 -
MacLehose Medical Rehabilitation Centre 110 1254 498 16.0 - 1703 - 2782 -
RREERR
Queen Mary Hospital 35250z 1639 149690 66.7 44 98145 652 514 20458 120540 329 249
The Duchess of Kent Children’s Hospital 133 2522 bbb 8.4 - 19 500 - 32132 -
at Sandy Bay
AABREABRARERR
Tsan Yuk Hospital E5 Bt 1 176 - - - 19 423 - 3001 -
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals 272 2327 68.9 20.9 - 39 - 244 -
Fung Yiu King Hospital
REZRAENER
Tung Wah Hospital R &fr 532 26 356 75.6 27.0 - 47807 - 8441 24610
Sub-total Nt 3076 199001 67.8 7.4 98145 861816 20458 203157 353859
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Total IP & DP Inpatient Total Allied
No. of hospital ~ discharges and average Family Medicine Health
beds (as at deaths  Inpatientbed  length of Total SOP  Specialist Clinic ~ (Qutpatient) General
3 March2021)  ABERAE  occupancy stayldays)  TotalARE (clinicall attendances’ attendances™  Outpatient
LS E BREBA rate) [\ attendances  attendances™ FEEE  ZREE attendances”
Institution @ZanE  HRARR BEREARK THER REE ENMD (BR) MY () EANMY
g 3A318) RUAE  GRE(%) BE(B)  HPRAR  HREARY ROART BPBARY  BPART
Kowloon Central Cluster J1.5E # 88 P B 48
Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital B4 ##155 376 7 036 80.6 165 - 13 270 - 20500 41705
Hong Kong Children's Hospital B4 78k 244 15085 60.6 7.7 - 30 389 - 7625 -
Hong Kong Fye Hospital EARM Bk 45 6230 16.9 33 - 230214 - 34667 -
Kowloon Hospital LEEE R 1361 15686 81.0 253 - 91813 - 102440 -
Kwong Wah Hospital & 1186 77923 67.6 47 93032 327030 4587 138714 173392
Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital Z&&ft 236 8912 728 106 - 67 164 2415 37969 366351
Queen Elizabeth Hospital (7R A2 2017 177 636 83.8 5.6 145318 641510 8715 199153 462672
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals 531 8 937 80.6 14.8 - 149 - 1372 -
Wong Tai Sin Hospital
REZREABR
Sub-total /&t 5996 317445 78.2 8.0 238350 1401539 15717 542 440 1044120
Kowloon East Cluster J15E R BT 48
Haven of Hope Hospital EE Bt 521 7592 93.9 2238 - 8 628 - 5 491 -
Tseung Kwan 0 Hospital #Z 2 &7 777 67 269 84.9 52 93262 319306 4707 163553 284276
United Christian Hospital EE %5 &t 1548 104 272 84.2 58 124778 491750 62056 209547 551 148
Sub-total /&t 2846 179133 86.4 6.8 218040 819684 66763 378591 835424
Kowloon West Cluster J15E 78 &8 B Bt 48
Caritas Medical Centre FIE B/ 1245 65069 82.2 64 98338 401658 5077 84133 277475
Kwai Chung Hospital Z/Ekt 920 4,305 764 b4 - 235381 - 32800 -
North Lantau Hospital 3t AL &R 180 10 427 126.8 6.9 63007 21358 1652 33504 88637
Princess Margaret Hospital 5327/ 2fx 1760 141339 83.0 56 92055 434940 20 255 94 461 351682
Yan Chai Hospital = #i&hr 801 50 681 79.2 53 100572 208 990 4398 106 695 273 354
Sub-total /&t 4906 271821 82.2 7.2 353972 1302327 31382 351593 991148
New Territories East Cluster #7575 &8 Bt Bk 49
Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital 605 54 934 71.5 4.9 76 884 266731 4305 116337 238679
BERTPE&ITRER
Bradbury Hospice BEBREEH () 26 466 73.7 146 - 49 - 1740 -
Cheshire Home, Shatin > B &R E&H 304 171 61.4 4223 - - - 89 -
North District Hospital 1t /& 2#z 683 44,082 83.0 55 71733 191 430 8344 90506 259983
Prince of Wales Hospital B ET# T Bl 1807 168655 79.4 5.4 121640 766049 48559 202627 460889
Shatin Hospital > F&Fr 591 8162 878 222 - 657 - 2 244 -
Tai Po Hospital A% Efx 1026 9365 82.9 280 - 507 - 770 -
Sub-total /&t 5042 285835 79.4 8.1 270257 1225423 61208 414313 959551
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Total IP & DP
No. of hospital ~ discharges and

beds [as at deaths  Inpatient bed
occupancy stay(days]  Total A&E

3 March2021)  HBERAS

Inpatient
average
length of

Total Allied

Family Medicine Health
Total SOP Specialist Clinic  (Qutpatient) General
(clinical] ~ attendances’ attendances™  Qutpatient

BEERsE BEBA rate (%) {ifF A attendances attendancesz‘3 FEEE  ZREE atendances”
Institution @Z021F  HRARR GRmARR AR SEE MY (B 1Y (%) EENMD
s 38318) RUAE  GRZ(%) EEE)  RIEAR #P Z@}\/H23 REART BPBARY  BPARY
New Territories West Cluster ¥ 5% 75 & b i 43
Castle Peak Hospital E1LE 1156 2573 60.7 100.2 - 146 606 - 16 422 -
Pok 0i Hospital % #ft 770 51491 9.4 69 76996 159182 16708 67527 -
Siu Lam Hospital MEE Rz 520 447 835 4235 - - - - -
Tin Shui Wai Hospital A7KE Bl 200 13 280 79.9 55 102798 14 612 14214 37 415 -
Tuen Mun Hospital EFIER: 2036 151 794 89.4 6.9 126828 735090 24 240 220020 856 459
Sub-total Mzt 4682 219585 81.5 10.0 306622 1055490 55162 341384 856459
GRAND TOTAL 3t 29850 1637561 79.3 8.0 1640453 7473666 313065 2512370 5568280
Notes: et

In view of the emergence of the COVID-19 epidemic in Hong Kong since
early 2020, Hospital Authority (HA) has adjusted its services in response
to the epidemic along with tightening up infection control measures.
Hence, the service throughput across a wide range of services provided

1

by HA might have been reduced when compared with that of previous

years.

R EE B 2020 F F 1 H IR 2019 MR AEFERR
BREER(BER) B NosRRAEHIER
AR BRHERS - At - BERZHERFHIR
BERNEFERL - KEEMTRF -

1. Number of hospital beds as at 31 March 2021 is based on the Annual 1. 2021 £ 3 A 31 B Y 8 Fc s /K 21 B 2k B 2020-21
FEMNAEBFREKREE #AE -
2. Outpatient attendances for different clinics are grouped under 2. ZF2PNFIZHA2AREAHGAFTBERZT ©

Survey on Hospital Beds in Public Hospitals 2020-21.

respective hospital management.

3. Specialist Outpatient (SOP) (clinical) attendances also include 3. ERIFIZ (BRK) M2 RA R BIEZERELD
FREVBERZ AIR °

attendances from Nurse Clinics in SOP setting.

4. Total Allied Health (Outpatient) attendances exclude follow-up 4.
consultations provided by the Medical Social Services Units.
5. General Outpatient (GOP) attendances also include attendances from 5. E@EEIFIZ 52 }\/AE’@ﬁjtﬁﬂ%igﬁﬁﬁﬁ’J

Nurse Clinics in GOP setting and attendances in related healthcare

reform initiative programmes in primary care.

Abbreviations:

IP — Inpatient

DP — Day inpatient

A&E — Accident & Emergency
SOP — Specialist Outpatient

EREE (FI2) 2B AR T REREBLE

HEE‘% BRI BE AR

M2 ARREFERERBAEANEEERER

ﬁ%?jl_:u//\//\ °©
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Appendix 10
By 8% 10

STATISTICS ON COMMUNITY AND REHABILITATION SERVICES
IN 2020-21

2020-21 FEHRKREIRBFH T EF

Community  Allied Health Rehabilitation day

Community Psychiatric ~ Psychogeriatric Geriatric ~ (Community) & palliative care  Geriatric day ~ Psychiatric day
nurse outreach outreach Assessm'eng attendances’  dayattendances attendances’  attendances
atendances attendances’  attendances’ Service ERSE  EERSELR AR =l
Institution BRMEET  BRERN BSzAMeR HEEARK (itR) AR REER AfER
et BBAR  NEREAK HERBAL e’ #PAR® HADAR RPAR® HDAR
Hong Kong East Cluster /& 5 R 8B B# 48
Cheshire Home, Chung Hom Kok - - - - 10 - - -
B
Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital 91 407 17 049 4 680 - 489 560 2599 8737
RRABKABIZER
Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu Kin Hospitals - - - 104 272 345 188 4 654 -
BERRBELER
St. John Hospital &Mk 4936 - - - 5 - - -
Tung Wah Eastern Hospital RER - - - - 57 6983 - -
Wong Chuk Hang Hospital 1512kt - - - - - - 96 -
Sub-total /Mt 96 343 17 049 4680 104272 906 7731 7349 8737

Hong Kong West Cluster /& 5 78 BB B 48

Grantham Hospital B2 - - - - 9 2397 - -
MacLehose Medical Rehabilitation Centre - - - - 38 7374 - -
REEERR

Queen Mary Hospital J5E 50 59 668 13 067 11193 - 215 4872 - 6 044
The Duchess of Kent Children’s Hospital - - - - 4 - - -
at Sandy Bay

RARRELEANRERR

Tsan Yuk Hospital £5 Bt - - - - - - - 1107
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals - - - 61979 2079 - 1551 -
Fung Yiu King Hospital

REZRBRHER

Tung Wah Hospital REHH - - - - 9 3951 1661 -
Sub-total /&t 59 668 13 067 11193 61979 2354 14 204 3212 7151
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Appendix 10

Fffd% 10
Community  Allied Health Rehabilitation day
Community Psychiatric  Psychogeriatric Geriatric ~ (Community) & palliative care  Geriatricday  Psychiatric day
nurse outreach outreach  Assessment attendances’ dayattendances  attendances’ attendances
attendances  attendances’  attendances’ Service' EEEE  EERassn AR fEieRl
Institution FOUREL  BREEN BXzAmN UEZARE (HE) BREG  AMER BEER
e BBAR  EREAR SRRBAL e’ APARS HIAR APAR® HIAR
Kowloon Central Cluster J15E &8 e B4
Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital Z7& (& EH - - - - 134 835 - -
Hong Kong Children’s Hospital E/& 5 E&H - - - - 137 - - -
Kowloon Hospital LEEE R 83379 10 974 6519 4111 520 67 1411 1145
Kwong Wah Hospital EZ 42 486 - - 68 209 611 - 2725 -
Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital Z&-&fx 55 284 - - 14 547 83 482 - -
Queen Elizabeth Hospital FH/H AR - - - 36 852 2269 128 1140 -
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals - - - - 43 - 4214 -
Wong Tai Sin Hospital
REZREAMER
Sub-total /&t 181149 10 974 6519 160719 3797 1512 9490 1145
Kowloon East Cluster J1.RE 3R B P Bk 48
Haven of Hope Hospital ZZ &Pt 35 281 - - 7561 39 205 1559 -
Tseung Kwan 0 Hospital #2257 - - - - 46 2887 - -
United Christian Hospital EE %5 #lt 140 822 22 224 9419 48760 808 224 2 660 8119
Sub-total /&t 176 103 22 224 9419 56 321 893 3316 4219 8119
Kowloon West Cluster J15E 78 8B B 48
Caritas Medical Centre B3 &t 63 607 - - 40 859 161 137 1453 -
Kwai Chung Hospital Z&%0x - 36 373 17 042 - 658 - - 13711
North Lantau Hospital 3t A B Efx 10 002 1205 - 3821 82 1373 - -
Princess Margaret Hospital 5542 48 585 - - 44,933 755 694 2930 -
Yan Chai Hospital (C&EH: 36 364 - - 48 969 228 - 2 459 -
Sub-total /&t 158 558 37578 17042 138582 1884 2204 6842 13711
New Territories East Cluster #7575 & ft i 49
Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital 38 946 - 515 35106 2 804 220 - 1434
TEBRmPEITEER
Bradbury Hospice HEEEEH () - - - - 11 99 - -
Cheshire Home, Shatin > B&RE&H - - - - - - - -
North District Hospital Jt & 2kt 38235 9 489 6 405 32970 4260 581 3766 476
Prince of Wales Hospital L& T Bt 55 605 - 1894 29013 3800 - - -
Shatin Hospital 1 &kt - 19 754 3138 - 143 1 424 5966 59
Tai Po Hospital A&k - 8 556 - - 4 - 5097 1009
Sub-total /&t 132786 37799 11952 97 089 11022 2324 14 829 2978
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Appendix 10
Ffé% 10

Community  Allied Health Rehabilitation day

Community Psychiatric ~ Psychogeriatric Geriatric ~ (Community) & palliative care  Geriatric day ~ Psychiatric day
nurse outreach outreach  Assessment attendances’ dayattendances  attendances’ attendances
attendances attendances'  attendances’ Senvice’ HEEE  FERasEn ZAR fEieRl
Institution ERAEAL  BRRNN BREARSH HEEATK (iE) AEEE  AMER  BEER
g BEAR HEREAL SDERBAL e’ #PARS HDAR APAR® HDAR
New Territories West Cluster 37 5% 7 &8 5 B &
Castle Peak Hospital 5L Eh - 20135 7178 - 144 - - 3168
Pok Oi Hospital BE &t 29138 - - 55 647 530 262 2176 -
Siu Lam Hospital /MEEH - - - - - - - -
Tin Shui Wai Hospital X7KE & 4474 - - - 496 - - -
Tuen Mun Hospital EFIER 61840 - - 60 005 4 281 1876 3475 276
Sub-total Mzt 95 452 20135 7178 115652 5451 2138 5651 3444
GRAND TOTAL £t 900059 158826 67983 734614 26 307 33429 51592 45 285
Notes: et

In view of the emergence of the COVID-19 epidemic in Hong Kong since
early 2020, Hospital Authority (HA) has adjusted its services in response
to the epidemic along with tightening up infection control measures.
Hence, the service throughput across a wide range of services provided
by HA might have been reduced when compared with that of previous
years.

1. Figures also include home visits and crisis intervention.

2. Figures also include home visits.

3. For Community Geriatric Assessment Service, the activity refers to
total number of geriatric outreach attendances and geriatric elderly
persons assessed for infirmary care service. Starting from 2020-21,
the overall service model for Community Geriatric Assessment Team
and Visiting Medical Officer in the HA has been streamlined and the
number of geriatric outreach attendances also includes attendances
from Visiting Medical Officer. Therefore, the service activity is not
directly comparable with figures published in the past editions of this
report.

4. Allied Health (Community) attendances exclude follow-up consultations
provided by the Medical Social Services Units.

5. Geriatric day attendances also include attendances under Integrated
Discharge Support Program for Elderly Patients (IDSP).

The activity performed in different centres and teams are grouped under
respective hospital management.
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Appendix 11(a)
Mgz 11 (a)

MANPOWER POSITION — BY CLUSTER AND INSTITUTION
AFiRIR — REkRE i 058

No. of Full-time Equivalent (FTE) Staff (as at 31.3.2021) "-***
LRESBMABHA (2021F3 431 BHF) >

Institution Medical Nursing Allied Health Others Total
ek B E3s HREE Hity 5t
Hong Kong East Cluster /& 5 3R B[ B 48 706 3076 902 4547 9230
Cheshire Home, Chung Hom Kok Z#) A Z2 G &= b 3 64 10 135 212
Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital 558 2092 620 2 940 6210
REBAERAIIT =0

Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu Kin Hospitals 2R KB EER 5l 96 628 186 855 1765
St. John Hospital KiMNE&FT 7 39 8 83 137
Tung Wah Eastern Hospital JRZE 5t 39 203 74 378 694
Wong Chuk Hang Hospital ET5T &Rt 2 49 4 156 21
Hong Kong West Cluster & & 75 B8 B4 726 3041 1029 3821 8616
Grantham Hospital & 25 35 268 70 357 731
MacLehose Medical Rehabilitation Centre ZE32418 Rt 2 45 4t 93 184
Queen Mary Hospital® J5B8 80 ° 609 2243 736 2 654 6242
The Duchess of Kent Children’s Hospital at Sandy Bay 19 93 60 157 329
RORBBABKARERN

TWGHSs Fung Yiu King Hospital 53 =7 B 227525 17 78 34 144 272
Tung Wah Hospital B2 58k 43 314 85 417 859
Kowloon Central Cluster J13E A &8 P B 48 1430 6203 1873 8845 18351
HK Red Cross Blood Transfusion Service 6 97 82 333 518
ERA T FaRmREH O

Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital &/&#%1 &kt 20 232 61 321 634
Hong Kong Children’s Hospital &/& 7 E 5t 155 379 188 T4t 1467
Hong Kong Eye Hospital &8 R 38 77 23 174 312
Kowloon Hospital JLEEERT 74 830 208 1080 2192
Kwong Wah Hospital 2 354 1344 363 1608 3669
Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital Z2&HE&Ft 62 334 87 378 860
Queen Elizabeth Hospital® FFI A&k ° 694 2611 797 3808 7909
TWGHs Wong Tai Sin Hospital B2 =fr &= AL g 28 300 b4 399 790
Kowloon East Cluster .58 R B P B 48 828 3428 965 4 445 9667
Haven of Hope Hospital & &t 29 371 98 540 1038
Tseung Kwan O Hospital # /2%t 233 979 277 1196 2 685
United Christian Hospital Z &% & Bt 567 2078 590 2710 5944
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Appendix 11(a)

Bis2 11 (a)

No. of Full-time Equivalent (FTE) Staff (as at 31.3.2021) ™***
ZR2BABSHA (2021F3 431 BHF) ">

Institution Medical Nursing Allied Health Others Total

g R 3t HRER Hth #aEt

Kowloon West Cluster J1.5E 75 &5 B 48 1160 5023 1441 6278 13901

Caritas Medical Centre A &l 270 1139 300 1407 3117

Kwai Chung Hospital Zf 2kt 82 765 153 670 1670

North Lantau Hospital b AU L 28t 58 202 108 340 708

Princess Margaret Hospital 532218kt 482 1990 638 2585 5694

Yan Chai Hospital =/ &bz 268 926 241 1275 271

New Territories East Cluster 757 5 && P B 42 1120 4853 1430 6407 13810

Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital 191 785 275 1042 2293

TR i AT =5

Bradbury Hospice & IREEH L) 3 33 6 31 72

Cheshire Home, Shatin /> FIZR&CE & 1 90 10 145 246

North District Hospital Jb[& &5 201 892 251 1029 2372

Prince of Wales Hospital #8473 T 256% 632 2219 705 2976 6533

Shatin Hospital *H &P 47 379 93 607 1126

Tai Po Hospital Xt 45 454 91 578 1168

New Territories West Cluster ¥ 5% 74 8 Bz B 4 926 4069 1167 6199 12361

Castle Peak Hospital 51L&kt 78 605 (K 708 1502

Pok Oi Hospital &% 25 165 674 194 997 2030

Siu Lam Hospital /JMEERT 6 154 10 324 494

Tin Shui Wai Hospital X7KEZ&Fr 50 256 114 539 959

Tuen Mun Hospital HEFIE8fr 627 2380 738 3631 7376

Total #85t 6896 29 693 8807 40541 85937

Notes: it

1. This figure excludes 2 754 staff in the Hospital Authority (HA) Head 1. EBIF T BEEREER (BER) BMWFEH
Office. 2754 BB -

2. Manpower on full-time equivalent (FTE) basis includes all full-time 2. AFZ[EREBAB]  BEEERMESR
& part-time staff in HA's workforce i.e. permanent, contract and BRRBHTERE SO REREE -
temporary.

3. Individual figures may not add up to the total due to rounding. 3. ARUEAAKNAR - FIEEFAENER T

LR -
4. Manpower figures of individual hospitals / institutions include 4. SERAFHE BIEE TR RBHEBEEY
management staff providing hospital and cluster-wide services. WEEAR -
5. Manpower providing services for Tsan Yuk Hospital is included in 5. EEERHIRBAFEBEABEERRA -
Queen Mary Hospital.
6. Manpower providing services for Rehabaid Centre is included in 6. ERERRERH LEREAFE R AF D
Queen Elizabeth Hospital. RE&BTA o
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Appendix 11(b)
Fiéz 11 (b)

MANPOWER POSITION - BY STAFF GROUP
AFiRR — RIS R 718

No. of Full-time Equivalent (FTE) Staff 2016-17 - 2020-21'
EREBASHAE

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

Medical B

Consultant BRI B4 885 889 927 961 1057
Senior Medical Officer / Associate Consultant 1922 1935 1982 2071 2076
SREE /B E

Medical Officer / Resident (excluding Visiting Medical Officer) 2959 3016 3038 3148 3310
B4 B BE (TRERFEE)

Visiting Medical Officer ZI55 & 18 18 16 15 15
Intern St E B84 373 470 469 475 436
Senior Dental Officer / Dental Officer mAR TR E8 4 / FR}E 8 8 8 11 13
Medical Staff Total: 6164 6336 6 440 6681 6906
BRASHE

Nursing #E3H

Senior Nursing Officer and above m#R#E TR A L 196 206 213 226 243
Department Operations Manager BFFTE{ELLIE 191 191 194 199 202
General Z#EF} -

Ward Manager / Nurse Specialist / Nursing Officer / 4 428 4563 4707 5279 5510

Advanced Practice Nurse

TREKEIE | ERlE L/ R/ BEIRERD

Registered Nurse s+ 14 697 15 424 16 044 16 521 17127
Enrolled Nurse E&l#+ 2 421 2 401 2 475 2476 2336
Midwife / Others BE T / Efth 3 3 2 0 0
Student Nurse / Pupil Nurse / Temporary Undergraduate 625 808 1032 1554 1548

Nursing student
AT SA/ FRE T4 EEESL
Psychiatric #5165} -
Ward Manager / Nurse Specialist / Nursing Officer / 571 584 604 642 682
Advanced Practice Nurse

TREIE | BRI L / EE R/ BIRERD

Registered Nurse s+ 1298 1374 1444 1547 1604

Enrolled Nurse E&l#&+ 550 557 537 513 486

Student Nurse / Pupil Nurse sEfiii&+ 24 / Sal# Lt 24 0 0 0 0 0
Nursing Staff Total: 24980 26111 27 252 28 957 29736
EEABBG
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Appendix 11(b)
Bis2 11 (b)

No. of Full-time Equivalent (FTE) Staff 2016-17 - 2020-21'
EREBAEHA"

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

Allied Health SR E &

Audiology Technician BB 21T 8 6 6 5 6 6
Clinical Psychologist F&/R/UIRE SR 171 171 178 188 202
Dietitian & Z A0 160 162 172 176 192
Dispenser fi %5 1289 1316 1367 1409 1482
Medical Technologist / Medical Laboratory Technician 1457 1500 1551 1642 1732
BISLERAD / BB LER B

Mould Technologist / Mould Laboratory Technician 26 23 21 20 20
SR ER=RIA / R ER=RIME

Optometrist 18 3£A 70 68 68 70 75
Orthoptist fREFB EAT 14 15 15 16 17
Occupational Therapist B3 A &AM 815 849 872 903 975
Pharmacist Z7&0 635 673 702 741 780
Physicist #II2 &R 76 74 77 89 89
Physiotherapist #7132 A AN 1028 1064 1097 1179 1248
Podiatrist /&R AN 47 50 51 52 53
Prosthetist-Orthotist ZAABZAN 144 146 151 150 160
Diagnostic Radiographer / Radiation Therapist 1102 1144 1154 1174 1216
HRETRD / TR RN

Scientific Officer (Medical) FHE23EF (57%) 89 89 93 100 107
Speech Therapist & s2 A7 AD 110 115 119 125 134
Medical Social Worker 274t T 330 346 360 376 393
Dental Technician & 1lT & 3 3 3 4 4
Allied Health Staff Total: 7572 7815 8056 8420 8886
ERBREASRG

Supporting (Care-related) &3 % &

Health Care Assistant 2 AR ENIE 1676 1459 1231 1005 726
Ward Attendant &5 R% 8 191 155 121 93 73
Patient Care Assistant & Other Supporting (Care-related) Staff 12 831 13325 13 999 15180 16 434
RARRTSEIE K Bt IR SR A B

Supporting [Care-related) Staff Total: 14 698 14 939 15 351 16 278 17 233
BEXEASHEG

Direct Patient Care Manpower Total: 53 415 55 202 57 099 60 335 62761
HIEmABEAFE:
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Appendix 11(b)
Fiéz 11 (b)

No. of Full-time Equivalent (FTE) Staff 2016-17 - 2020-21'
EREBAEHA'

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

Others E At

Chief Executive / Director / Deputy Director / Head 7 7 7 7 8
TR, | 8 | BIRES / £E

Cluster Chief Executive / Hospital Chief Executive 24 21 20 20 20
EPr B AEsnEs / Bl TR

Chief Manager / Senior Manager / Cluster General Manager / 102 101 106 111 110

General Manager

RITHUCIE | SARTTEUCIE | B4R ACTR / 1R 4518

Other Professionals / Administrator, System Manager, 2 555 2 681 2 847 3099 3362
Analyst Programmer etc

Hih B/ ITHRAR  ZHKIE  ZAREFOTREIES

Other Supporting Staff - Clerks, Secretaries, Workmen, 18771 18914 19579 20928 22 428
Operation Assistants, Executive Assistants etc

Hith2 R AB — X8 - W& - TA - EEBE - THBESE

Non-direct Patient Care Manpower Total: 21 459 21725 22560 24166 25929

FEERABEAFAM:

HA Manpower Total: 74874 76 926 79 659 84501 88 690

BERAFHAG

Note: i

1. Manpower on full-time equivalent (FTE) includes all full-time & part- 1. AFR[ERZBAE ]t BREBERME
time staff in HA's workforce i.e. permanent, contract and temporary. TREFBOEE aORBERE - B
Individual figures may not add up to the total due to rounding. MERANBER  SEBFHEMNEATEIER

e -
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Appendix 12(a)
Ffex 12 (a)

OPERATING EXPENDITURE'
2020-21 FELEM

IN 2020-21

Cluster 2020-21 (HK$Mn)
L E ] 2020-21 £E (B¥EERT)
Hong Kong East Cluster 7 5 5 %8 fo B 48 7,904
Hong Kong West Cluster 7 578 &8 B 43 7,927
Kowloon Central Cluster JLEEA Z&BT B 43 15,592
Kowloon East Cluster J1.EE 5 B8P bt 48 8,261
Kowloon West Cluster J1.32 75 & P Bt 48 12,271
New Territories East Cluster ¥757 5 &2 F i 48 11,951
New Territories West Cluster #7457 78 &8 B B 49 10,559
Hospital Authority Head Office, and Others’ E&fx &2 BN FiE - KHAh’ 4,555
Total #& 5t 79,020

m

Notes:

1. Operating expenditure refers to the expenditure to run Hospital

Authority (HA)'s day-to-day services. It covers manpower, drug,
consumables and daily maintenance of equipment and facilities, etc.
but is separated from expenditure for capital works projects, major
equipment acquisition, major corporate-wide Information Technology
development and transactions of self-financed items paid by patients.

The operating expenditure has also included HK$4,114 million
incurred for combating the COVID-19 pandemic which was supported
by designated funding from the Government.

The operating expenditure of a cluster depends not only on the size
and demographics of the population residing within its catchment
districts, but also on other factors such as service demand generated
from cross-cluster movement of patients and the provision of
designated services (such as liver transplantation). As such, the scope
of hospital facilities and expertise available in different clusters also
vary. Therefore, operating expenditure of individual clusters is not
directly comparable.

. Includes corporate-wide expenditures processed by Head Office
(such as insurance premium, legal costs, claims paid and salary of
medical interns) and on information technology, as well as recurrent
expenditure for supporting the Government’s Electronic Health Record
Programme.
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Appendix 12(b)
Bis% 12 (b)

TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE' IN 2020-21
2020-21 FEBEEIINE RS

Cluster 2020-21 (HK$Mn)
B4 2020-21 FE (B¥BET)
Hong Kong East Cluster 7 & 5 %8 o B 48 275
Hong Kong West Cluster & & 78 %8 b B 49 32.8
Kowloon Central Cluster JLEER B8 Fr Hik4 51.0
Kowloon East Cluster J13E5R EaFe bt 48 16.6
Kowloon West Cluster J1.32 70 & b Bt 48 36.5
New Territories East Cluster ¥757 5 B8 F B 48 27.0
New Territories West Cluster ¥75% 78 28 Bk 4 35.7
Hospital Authority Head Office? Bl BB B4 ER 125.8
Total #85t 352.9
Notes: At
1. Expenditure in providing training and development for HA workforce 1. REERBEREEIIRERENFAS - 21F1E
with items including payroll cost of personnel with primary duties in HEHNEURHIIFHINEHNEE 2
providing or supporting training activities in designated training units, TEKA B2/ REBR KRERIBEE -
course / conference fees, passages and travel, scholarships, teaching REG HMRRFE G- Tl BB
aids and devices, venue, publications, trainer fees, examination fee A ZR B REMERAX -

and other relevant charges.

2. Expenditure includes a number of corporate-wide training 2. FAXBEEERAREFRT RHEFHIEIRE
programmes and initiatives centrally coordinated by HA Head Office. KB o
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Appendix 13
By 8% 13

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
BEDFRATERER

Financial Results (for the Year ended 31 March)

MEER (BEZ8F3A310)

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn
BYEET A¥EEBER ABYAER ABYAER BY%EER
Income WA
Government subvention (recurrent and capital) 78,597 73,985 64,877 57,802 54,469
BURFB) (IR B REARM)
Medical fee income (net of waivers) 4,837 4,827 4,713 4,287 3,818
BREREA (REE)
Non-medical fee income FFE&ZE AUA 1,263 1,513 1,219 1,018 935
Designated donations &€ 18H% 361 202 194 93 171
Capital donations EZA<18 54 166 159 144 138 162
85,224 80,686 71,147 63,338 59,555
Expenditure X tH
Staff costs B TR (57,665) (53,700 (48,703) (45,113) (43,084)
Drugs Z%) (8,685) (8,102) (7.305) (6,663) (6,156)
Medical supplies and equipment E&¥m &% (4,956) (3,842) (3.312) (2,970) (2,762)
Other operating expenses (include depreciation and (13,383) (11,277) (10,381) (9,433) (9,072)

amortisation)

HAb&ER (BEITE K#H)

(84,689) (76,921) (69,701) (64,179) (61,074)
Results for the year FE& R 535 3,765 1,446 (841) (1,519)

Income by Source (in % of Total Income)
FREBRARR (ERBRABDL)

100% -

90%

80%

70%

60%

50%

40%
Others

30% i

20% m Medical fee income
BEREERRA

10% .

u Government subvention
0% BT EEh

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
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Biid% 13
Key Financial Indicators (for the Year ended 31 March)
FTEHMBEE(BES$3A310)
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn

BEEELT BEYERERT BYEER BY¥EEx BE¥EER

Medical fee income (Note 1) BEEHWA (1)

Inpatient fees {EBT Y& 1,093 1,228 1,280 1,234 1,048
Outpatient fees FIZ UL E 1,688 1,802 1,865 1,740 1,354
ltemised charges 9 TEIE 2,936 2,720 2,490 2,085 1,890
Other medical fees Efth E U B 113 109 108 102 99
5,830 5,859 5,743 5,161 4,391
Less: Waivers (Note 2) #IBR : H % (5£2) (993) (1,032) (1,030) (874) (573)
Medical fee income (net of waivers) 4,837 4,827 4,713 4,287 3,818
BREARA GIRER)
Additional allowance for expected credit losses charged 56 50 58 63 61

to the Statement of Income and Expenditure (Note 3)

WX EERAEMNEREAERRE (E3)

Expenditure by Category (in % of Total Expenditure])
BEEXH (BEXHBESL)

100%

90%

80%
70%
60%
50% Other operating expenses
HhiE
40% Hih B
Medical supplies and equipment
30% W smneran
20% Drugs
' =
10%
m Staff costs
0% BIpA

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
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By 13

Notes:

1. Medical fee income
Fees for hospital services are governed by the Hospital Authority (HA)
Ordinance. There are 3 categories of charges: (i) public charges for
Eligible Persons (EPJ; (ii) public charges for Non-eligible Persons
(NEP); and (iii) private charges. The definition of EP and NEP can be
found in HA website whilst the fees and charges schedules are listed
in the Gazette and HA website.

2. Waivers

Under the Government policy, recipients of Comprehensive Social
Security Assistance (CSSA), Level 0 Voucher Holders of the Pilot
Scheme on Residential Care Service Voucher for the Elderly (with
effect from March 2017) and Old Age Living Allowance (OALA])
recipients aged 75 or above with more financial needs (with effect
from 15 July 2017 and renamed as Higher OALA recipients aged 75
or above on 1 June 2018) can obtain free medical treatment at HA's
hospitals and clinics. Other persons with financial difficulties in paying
the medical fees and charges can apply for medical fee waivers.
The granting of waivers is subject to meeting the criteria under the
established waiving mechanism.

The waivers granted to EP and NEP for the year ended 31 March 2021
are HK$879,000,000 and HK$114,000,000 respectively (for the year
ended 31 March 2020 are HK$928,000,000 and HK$104,000,000
respectively).

3. Additional allowance for expected credit losses charged to the
Statement of Income and Expenditure
Each year, HA would make assessment on the collectability of
outstanding hospital fees and charges (accounts receivable). As
a result of the assessment, additional allowance (or reversal of
allowance) would be charged to the Statement of Income and
Expenditure for the year.
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Financial Position (at 31 March)
BBMRR (REBE3831RH)
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn
BEEEL B¥EERT BYEER B¥EErxT BYEER
Non-current assets JER BV E E 29,190 28,102 30,608 29,410 29,369
Current assets BNV &= 38,163 34,061 23,802 23,075 24,053
Total assets BEE#EE 67,353 62,163 54,410 52,485 53,422
Designated fund 3§ E&E® 5,077 5,077 5,077 5,077 5,077
Revenue reserve WA 7,243 6,672 2,906 1,438 2,259
Total funds E&#%58 12,320 11,749 7,983 6,515 7,336
Current liabilities RENE & 22,902 17,663 13,296 12,661 12,233
Non-current liabilities 3ERBI A (& 32,131 32,751 33,131 33,309 33,853
Total liabilities B fE#%E 55,033 50,414 46,427 45,970 46,086
Total funds and total liabilities E& & B B4 %5 67,353 62,163 54,410 52,485 53,422
Note (- e
Total Assets °° (in HK$ millions)
b N —
wWEE"(BEEET)
70,000
60,000
50,000
40,000 Placements with the Exchange Fund
‘ SNEESTFR
u Cash & bank
30,000 RERBTES
m Fixed income instruments
BETASIA
00 Receivables, deposits & prepayments
RN © 2$ RIaR Z0E
Inventories
10,000 e
I I l l u Fixed, intangible & right-of-use assets
0 B - ERREAEAE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Note: Placements with the Exchange Fund have included
HK$6,520,713,000 (2020: HK$6,273,201,000) held by HA on

behalf of the Samaritan Fund.

g NEESTFREEEERAMBAIRAS
A 7 #56,520,713,000 7T (2020 : 5 #

6,273,201,0007T) °
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Key Financial Indicators (at 31 March)
FTEFERER(REF3A31H)

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn
AREET RBWEER AWEER AWEExT BWEER

Inventories &
Drugs %) 1,484 1,410 1,158 1,129 1,073

Other medical and general consumables 1,058 305 219 214 223
HA BB N —MOBRM

2,542 1,715 1,377 1,343 1,296

For enhanced infection control measures to protect staff and patients during the COVID-19 pandemic, a steady supply of Personal
Protective Equipment (PPE) of at least six months has been maintained. The average stock holding period, other than PPE during
the pandemic, for meeting daily operation use is shown below:

2019 BB HRABHE - KREBARE TOMRERAZEHIERT  BESEAAREREEREONEANHES -
BRBEHRNEAREREGS - BRAEEFRNTFHFEERHEDNT

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
Average stock holding period (weeks) for
meeting daily operations
RRBFEFNTHFEERERRE (2H)
Drugs %24 8.5 8.7 7.9 8.8 9.0
Other medical and general consumables 9.1 8.2 7.9 7.7 8.2

HALE BN — OB M
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The Hospital Authority is committed to environmental protection.
You may access this Report on our website www.ha.org.hk

Bl B RBNRERE - WWFHRE LH AN B www.ha.org.hk

Hospital Authority
Hospital Authority Building
147B Argyle Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong

BREER
BENEREEZE147BBER BB RAE

Tel 55 ©  (852) 2300 6555
Fax & : (852) 2890 7726
Email & : enquiry@ha.org.hk

Copyright©2021 Hospital Authority. All rights reserved.
©2021 B EIER  HRIEPTA

This report is printed on environmentally friendly paper.
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